
 

 

 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   

  

 

Mayor: Sam Storey 
Vice Mayor: Dennis Norton 
Council Members: Ed Bottorff 
 Stephanie Harlan 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer: Christine McBroom 
  

 

REVISED 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2014  
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:15 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code § 54956.8) 

  Property: APN 035-141-33, Capitola, CA (City of Capitola, Owner) 
City Negotiator: City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Verizon Wireless 
Under Negotiation: Real Property Lease - Verizon cell tower license 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Govt. Code §54956.9(b) 
  One potential case:  Water Rock claim 
 

 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Govt. Code §54957) 

  City Council’s Performance Evaluation of the City Manager. 
 

1 ,----------1 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, November 13, 2014 
 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council Meeting 
will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information submitted after 
5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor be read by them 
prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor 
Sam Storey 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 

 A. Proclamation honoring Museum Board Member Thomas "Tom" McGranahan. 
 

 B. Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation. 
 

 C. Proclamation supporting the Mayors' challenge to end Veteran homelessness. 
 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 
4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 
 

 A. 8.J. 
DETAILS: 
Email from Gayle Ortiz. 

 
5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

 
7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, November 13, 2014 
 

 

 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
 A. Consider approving the October 23, 2014, Regular City Council Meeting Minutes. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Minutes. 

 
 B. Receive the November 6, 2014, Regular Planning Commission Action Minutes. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Minutes. 

 
 C. Consider an Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green 

Building Ordinance) [2nd Reading]. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Ordinance. 

 
 D. Receive and approve the 2015 Meeting Schedules for City Council/Successor Agency, 

Planning Commission/Architectural and Site Review Committee. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Meeting Schedules. 

 
 E. Consider a Resolution approving the 2015 City Hall Closure Schedule. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Resolution. 

 
 F. Consider a request from the Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce to offer free three-

hour parking in Village Parking Zone A(1), November 26, 2014, through December 25, 
2014; and consider a Resolution establishing temporary three-hour parking in Village 
Parking Zone A (1) November 26, 2014, through December 25, 2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve request and adopt Resolution. 

 
 G. Consider a request from the Heritage Lane Home Owner’s Association for the Mayor to 

send a letter to the USPS to request a Zip Code change from 95062 to 95010. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize staff to prepare a letter for the Mayor’s signature. 

 
 H. Consider a liability claim of Water Rock Construction in the amount of $674,260. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Deny Liability Claim. 

 
 I. Consider approving a Notice of Completion for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 

Project. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Notice of Completion. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, November 13, 2014 
 

 

 
 J. Consider a Resolution authorizing the execution of State Standard Agreement for 

Housing Related Parks Program Grant for Rispin Park. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Resolution. 

 
9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 
 A. Consider approving the Wharf Road Mural Extension Public Art Project; and authorize 

the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement with the artist, John 
Ton, for an amount not to exceed $12,000. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1) Approve the Wharf Road Mural Extension Public Art Project; and 2) authorize the City 
Manager to enter into a professional services agreement. 

 
 B. Receive Report regarding options to relocate the Capitola Mall Transit Center. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Report and provide direction. 

 
 C. Consider a professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates to 

prepare the City’s 2015-2023 Housing Element Update, in an amount not to exceed 
$41,036. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve agreement. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council on Tuesday, November 25, 2014, at 7:00 

PM, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are available 
for review on the City’s website:  www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.     Agendas are also available at 
the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola.  Need more information?   Contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 831-475-7300. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, November 13, 2014 
 

 

 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on 
Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and 
Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on 
the Home Page link “Meeting Video”.  Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

In Recognition and Appreciation to 

THOMAS "TOM" McGRANAHAN 

For service to the Capitola Historical Museum 

1993 - 2014 

WHEREAS, Tom joined the Capitola Historical Museum Board of Trustees in June 
1994 after serving as a volunteer for a year; and 

WHEREAS, Tom dependably served seven consecutive terms as Board Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, during his many years of service to the museum, Tom participated in just 
about every aspect of the museum's operation including acting as a vintage baseball player in 
support of the Harry Hooper exhibit; and 

WHEREAS, Tom helped move the museum's collection of artifacts out of the basement 
of the Rispin Mansion to a more secure location in 1993 and assembled shelving tofit the new 
storage trailers; and 

WHEREAS, Tom used his carpentry skills to build display boards for the museum art 
projects and early exhibits; and 

WHEREAS, in cooperation with the Capitola Art & Cultural Commission, Tom picked 
begonias, built and helped to install the 1994 begonia display on the Museumfacade; and 

WHEREAS, Tom used his culinary talents 10 providefoodfor many museum volunteer 
gatherings and was always on hand to cut the cake at exhibit grand opening events; and 

WHEREAS, Tom brought a sense of humor and a creative problem solving approach 
to Board meetings; and 

WHEREAS, Tom's efforts have contributed in many ways to the growth and 
development of the Capitola Historical Museum. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Sam Storey, Mayor of Capitola, hereby thank and honor 
Thomas "Tom" McGranahan for his leadership and service to the preservation of our history 
and development of our museum, therefore i he o' e in the City of Capitola 
and Santa Cruz County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I h of November, in 
~i---'-"-----

Sam orey, Mayor 
Signed and sealed t . 13th day of November 2014 

-1-

Item #: 2.A. Presentation.pdf

City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

In Recognition and Appreciation to 

THOMAS "TOM" McGRANAHAN 

For service to the Capitola Historical Museum 

1993 - 2014 

WHEREAS, Tom joined the Capitola Historical Museum Board of Trustees in June 
1994 after serving as a volunteer for a year; and 

WHEREAS, Tom dependably served seven consecutive terms as Board Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, during his many years of service to the museum, Tom participated in just 
about every aspect of the museum's operation including acting as a vintage baseball player in 
support of the Harry Hooper exhibit; and 

WHEREAS, Tom helped move the museum's collection of artifacts out of the basement 
of the Rispin Mansion to a more secure location in 1993 and assembled shelving tolit the new 
storage trailers; and 

WHEREAS, Tom used his carpentry skills to build display boards for the museum art 
projects and early exhibits; and 

WHEREAS, in cooperation with the Capitola Art & Cultural Commission, Tom picked 
begonias, built and helped to install the 1994 begonia display on the Museumfacade; and 

WHEREAS, Tom used his culinary talents to provide food for many museum volunteer 
gatherings and was always on hand to cut the cake at exhibit grand opening events; and 

WHEREAS, Tom brought a sense of humor and a creative problem solving approach 
to Board meetings; and 

WHEREAS, Tom's efforts have contributed in many ways to the growth and 
development of the Capitola Historical Museum. 

NOW, THEREFORE, l, Sam Storey, Mayor of Capitola, hereby thank and honor 
Thomas "Tom" McGranahan for his leadership and service ta the preservation of our history 
and development of our museum, therefore il he o' e in the City of Capitola 
and Santa Cruz County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I h_._~ e1J7IltrNoe'/...m 

Sam orey, Mayor 
Signed and sealed t . 13th day of November 2014 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-2-



City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Declaring the month of November 
"Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month" 

WHEREAS, in 2014, an eslimated 46.-120 people will be dingnosed with pancreatic 
cancer in the United States and 39,590 will diefroll1 the disease; and 

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer is one of the deadliest cancers, is currently the fourth 
leading cause Of cancer dealh in the Uniled States and is projected to become Ihe second by 
2020; and 

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer is the only major cancer with afive-year relalive 
survival rate in the single digits at just six percent; and 

WHEREAS, when symptoms of pancreatic clIncer present themselves, it is generally 
late stage, and 73 percent of pancreatic cancer patients die within thefirst year of their 
diagnosis while 94 percent o.fpancreatic cllncer patients die within theftrst.!!ve years; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 4,150 dea/hs will occur in California in 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the Recalcitrant Cancer Research Act was signed inlo law in 2012, which 
calls unlhe National Cancer 1nstitme to develop a scientificfi'amework, or strategic plan, for 
pancreatic cancer and uther deadly cancers, which will help provide the strategiC direction 
and gUidance needed to make true progre.'J's against these dise(lSeS; and 

WHEREAS, California has enacted a combined Senate Concurrent Resolution, SCR 
13-1. introduced by Senator Jim Beall. designating the month of November 20 l.f "Pancreatic 
Cancer Awareness Month in California "; and 

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancer Action Network is the nalional organization 
servil1g the pancreatic cancer community in Capitola and nationwide through a comprehensive 
approach that includes public policy, researchfunding, patient services, and public awareness 
and education related to developing effective treatments and a cu.re for pancreatic cancer; and 

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancer Action Network and its qlfiliates in Capitola 
support those patients currently bal/ling pancreatic cancer. as well as to those who have lost 
their lives to the disease, ond are committed to nolhing less Ihan a cure; and 

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being of the residents o.fCapitola are enhanced 
as a direct result oIincreased awareness about pancreatic concer and research into early 
detection, causes, and effecli've treatments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
Capitola, do hereby deSignate the lIIonth ofNovelllber 

" in the Capito/a. 

-3-

Item #: 2.B. Presentation.pdf

City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Declaring the month of November 
"Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month" 

WHEREAS, in 20]4, an eSlimaled 46.420 people will be diagnosed with pancrealic 
cancer in the United Stales and 39,590 will diefrol11lhe disease; and 

WHEREAS, pancrealic cancer is one oflhe deadliest cancers, is cLlrremly the fourth 
leading cause of cancer death in Ihe United Stales and is projected 10 become Ihe second by 
2020; and 

WHEREAS, pancrealic cancer is Ihe only major cancer with afive-year relalive 
survival rate in the single digits al jLlst six percenl; and 

WHEREAS, when symptoms oJpancrcatic cllncer presenlthemsclves, il is generally 
lale stage, and 73 percel1f of pancreatic cancer polients die wilhinlhe/irst year oj Iheir 
diagnosis while 94 percenl o,f pancreatic cancer patients die within /he firstfive years; and 

WHEREAS. approximately 4,150 deaths will occur in California in 2014: and 

WHEREAS, the Recalcitran/ Cancer Research Act was signed inla law in 2012, which 
calls 01/ the Nalional Cancer InstitUle to develop a scientificji'all1ework, or strategic plan, for 
pancreatic cancel' and other deadlcy cancers, which will help provide the strategiC direction 
(lnd gUidance needed to make true progress against these diseoses: and 

WHEREAS, California has enactcd a combined Senate Concurrent Resolution, SCR 
134. introduced by Senatar Jim Beall. designating the month oj November 2014 "Pancreatic 
Cancel' Awareness Month in Ca/ifol'l1ia "; and 

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancel' Action Network is the national organization 
servil1~ the pancreatic cancel' community il1 Capitola and nationwide through a comprehensive 
approach that includes public policy, researchjimding, patient services, and public awareness 
and education related IV developing eiler/ive treatments and a cu.re for pancreatic cancer; and 

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancer Action Network and its afliliates in Capitola 
supportlhose palients currently baffling pancrealic ('(Incer, as well as to Ihose who have lost 
their lives to the disease, and are cOl17l11ilfed to nolhing less than a cure; ond 

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being oj the residents of Clip ito III are enhanced 
(IS a direct result o.lincreased awareness aboul pancreatic cancer and research info early 
li(!fec/ion, co uses, lind effecNve treatments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
Capitola, do hereby deSignate the 1II0nth of NOI'ember 

" in the Capitola. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-4-



-5-

Item #: 2.C. Presentation.pdf

City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Supporting the Mayors' Challenge to End 
Veteran Homelessness by 2015 

WHEREAS, 2013 data suggests there are approximately 395 military veterans 
experiencing homelessness in Santa Cruz County; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 70% of the Santa Cruz County veteran homeless 
population experiences some form of disabling condition and most are considered 
chronically homeless; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 87% of homeless veterans surveyed in 2013 in Santa 
Cruz County were not sheltered; and 

WHEREAS, permanent supportive housing is recognized as a solution for 
chronically homeless; and 

WHEREAS, there is needfor Santa Cruz County tofocus housing and support to 
homeless veterans who have served our Country; and 

WHEREAS, recent efforts focused on homeless veterans across the nation have 
resulted in a 24% decrease in veteran homelessness; and 

WHEREAS, strong local partnerships have formed to concentrate efforts to end 
veteran homelessness in Santa Cruz County; and 

WHEREAS, local jurisdictions in Santa Cruz County have been invited to join in 
the Mayors' Challenge to End Veteran Homelessness; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 1, Sam Storey, Mayor of the City of 
Capitola, and its elected officials hereby join in the Mayors' Challenge to End Veteran 
Homelessness in 2015. 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
Signed and sealed this 13th day of November 2014 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-6-



Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

GAYLE T ORTIZ [gayle@gocapitola.com] 
Monday, November 10,20141:17 PM 
City Council; Grunow, Rich; Cattan, Katie 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 8.J. 
11/13/14 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Subject: Rispin Grant Project on Thursday's Council Agenda 

The following email trail has some interesting points made by Kathryn Gualtieri and Carolyn Swift about the 
history of garden restoration efforts at the Rispin Estate and the estate's designation as a National Register 
historic district. 

Kathryn reminds us of important information that I think will be valuable in your discussion on Thursday night. 

Many thanks, 
Gayle Ortiz 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: tkcapitola@aol.com 
Subject: Rispin Grant Project on Thursday's Council Agenda 
Date: November 10, 2014 at 10:38:34 AM PST 
To: gayle@gocapitola.com, vlrsmith@sbcglobal.net 
Cc: slharlan@sbcglobal.net, carolyn.swift@gmail.com 

Hi, Everyone, 

I was perusing the City Council's agenda for this coming Thursday's meeting and came across Item J .. 
on the Consent Calendar: "Consider a Resolution authorizing the execution of State Standard 
Agreement for Housing Related Parks Program Grant for Rispin Park." After reading the staff report, 
it sounds like a terrific opportunity to get the ball rolling again at the Rispin Mansion site. 

Gayle, you were involved when the city of Capitola purchased the Rispin Mansion, and we both 
helped organize the Rispin Advisory Committee years ago when Anne Turner was the county's 
librarian. Our Committee worked hard to get the site cleaned up and although Anne was never 
interested in seeing our library within the restored mansion, we did make great progress on ways to 
develop the Rispin. I'm sure all of us recall the failed plan to make it a profitable Band B. 

As a bit of history, Steve Burrell, Capitola's former city manager, and the City Council at that time 
authorized staff to prepare a nomination of the 6 acre site as a National Register of Historic Places 
historic district. The reason I bring all this up is that the staff report for Thursday's discussion 
describes, among other tasks, the restoration of the Rispin garden. I'm curious as to whether the 
current city manager and Council recall the work that was done on this project and whether they are 
planning to hire a consultant with historic and cultural landscaping credentials to help the city bring 
back the historic garden. With that in mind, see below for my email to Carolyn and her response. 
Hopefully, this new information will be brought up on Thursday night. I know all of us look forward to 
a time when we can celebrate the reopening of the historic Rispin grounds. 

Kathryn 

-7-

Item #: 4.A. 8.J. Additional Material.pdf

Sneddon.Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

GAYLE T ORTIZ [gayle@gocapitola.com] 
Monday, November 10,20141:17 PM 
City Council; Grunow, Rich; Cattan, Katie 
Rispin Grant Project on Thursday's Council Agenda 

The following email trail has some interesting points made by Kathryn Gualtieri and Carolyn Swift about the 
history of garden restoration efforts at the Rispin Estate and the estate's designation as a National Register 
historic district. 

Kathryn reminds us of important information that I think will be valuable in your discussion on Thursday night. 

Many thanks, 
Gayle Ortiz 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: tkcapitola@aol.com 
Subject: Rispin Grant Project on Thursday's Council Agenda 
Date: November 10, 2014 at 10:38:34 AM PST 
To: gayle@gocapitola.com, vlrsmith@sbcglobal.net 
Cc: slharlan@sbcglobal.net, carolyn.swift@gmail.com 

Hi, Everyone, 

I was perusing the City Council's agenda for this coming Thursday's meeting and came across Item J .. 
on the Consent Calendar: "Consider a Resolution authorizing the execution of State Standard 
Agreement for Housing Related Parks Program Grant for Rispin Park." After reading the staff report, 
it sounds like a terrific opportunity to get the ball rolling again at the Rispin Mansion site. 

Gayle, you were involved when the city of Capitola purchased the Rispin Mansion, and we both 
helped organize the Rispin Advisory Committee years ago when Anne Turner was the county's 
librarian. Our Committee worked hard to get the site cleaned up and although Anne was never 
interested in seeing our library within the restored mansion, we did make great progress on ways to 
develop the Rispin. I'm sure all of us recall the failed plan to make it a profitable Band B. 

As a bit of history, Steve Burrell, Capitola's former city manager, and the City Council at that time 
authorized staff to prepare a nomination of the 6 acre site as a National Register of Historic Places 
historic district. The reason I bring all this up is that the staff report for Thursday's discussion 
describes, among other tasks, the restoration of the Rispin garden. I'm curious as to whether the 
current city manager and Council recall the work that was done on this project and whether they are 
planning to hire a consultant with historic and cultural landscaping credentials to help the city bring 
back the historic garden. With that in mind, see below for my email to Carolyn and her response. 
Hopefully, this new information will be brought up on Thursday night. I know all of us look forward to 
a time when we can celebrate the reopening of the historic Rispin grounds. 

Kathryn 



On Sun, Nov 9, 2014 at 9:53 AM, <tkcapitola@aol.com> wrote: 
Hi Carolyn, 

News flash: Did you see that the City Council has an item re the Rispin site/park on the Consent 
Calendar for this Thursday night's meeting? Apparently, they got a $300,000+ grant from the State 
to restore the garden, put in disabled pathways, etc. What I'm wondering is if they remember that 
the entire Rispin site is a National Register historic district that was added to the list when I was still 
SHPO back in 1989. Barbara Bernie, a local landscape gardener, was a guiding force on our old 
Rispin advisory committee and she had created plans to bring back the garden. She had also 
enlisted the help of the Cabrillo College horticulture program and Frank Perry's wife Jill, who knew a 
great deal about the heritage roses in the arbor area. I wonder where the paperwork went and if the 
planning department has any idea that we did it? Do you recall what the museum files might hold? 

Thanks! Kathryn 

Hi. 
Yes, the museum might have some detail on that, particularly photographs. I think much of the 
detailed, larger materials on Rispin is all together in the storage documents room. It would be in one 
of the boxes. I'm not sure what is there related to the gardens, but it would be worth a look. The city 
planner just asked Frank some questions about the beach, and Frank was able to find some articles. 
for him. Perhaps a note to Rich would prompt Frank to go take a peek in storage? There are big 
thick files about Rispin in Frank's office, too. I had gone through them so they shouldn't be too poorly 
organized. 
Cheers. 
Carolyn 

2 

-8-

Item #: 4.A. 8.J. Additional Material.pdf

On Sun, Nov 9, 2014 at 9:53 AM, <tkcapitola@aol.com> wrote: 
Hi Carolyn, 

News flash: Did you see that the City Council has an item re the Rispin site/park on the Consent 
Calendar for this Thursday night's meeting? Apparently, they got a $300,000+ grant from the State 
to restore the garden, put in disabled pathways, etc. What I'm wondering is if they remember that 
the entire Rispin site is a National Register historic district that was added to the list when I was still 
SHPO back in 1989. Barbara Bernie, a local landscape gardener, was a guiding force on our old 
Rispin advisory committee and she had created plans to bring back the garden. She had also 
enlisted the help of the Cabrillo College horticulture program and Frank Perry's wife Jill, who knew a 
great deal about the heritage roses in the arbor area. I wonder where the paperwork went and if the 
planning department has any idea that we did it? Do you recall what the museum files might hold? 

Thanks! Kathryn 

Hi. 
Yes, the museum might have some detail on that, particularly photographs. I think much of the 
detailed, larger materials on Rispin is all together in the storage documents room. It would be in one 
of the boxes. I'm not sure what is there related to the gardens, but it would be worth a look. The city 
planner just asked Frank some questions about the beach, and Frank was able to find some articles. 
for him. Perhaps a note to Rich would prompt Frank to go take a peek in storage? There are big 
thick files about Rispin in Frank's office, too. I had gone through them so they shouldn't be too poorly 
organized. 
Cheers. 
Carolyn 

2 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 23,2014, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the 
subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. October 23, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fo.w.i[d, 
By City Manager: f--+if--+-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Rcports\l t 13 14\8.A. CC Minutes staffreport.docx -9-

Item #: 8.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 23,2014, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the 
subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. October 23, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fon.r..rrl, 
By City Manager: f--Hf-l-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Rcports\l t 13 14\8.A. CC Minutes staffreport.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-10-



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING ACTION SUMMARY 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 23,2014 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Storey called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. He announced the items to be 
discussed in Closed Session, as follows: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
Code §54956.9) 

Theresa Kloepfer, GAL for Kaitlin Kloepfer ",,<thl> 

[Santa Cruz County Superior Court, cai,eLr',(~;,,\.>y 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - AwffCliPA'TE[)d 

Significant exposure to litigalttii~o~n~ei~~;aht 
One potential case: Water R, 

TION (Govt. 

Mayor Storey noted that there was no 
recessed at 6: 15 p.m. to the Closed Session 

Council 

1. 

2. 

3. 

REGULAR MEETING 

Council ~~~:;~~~,~~~~i~:ie H",'I<>" DeQii}ls .~".,,!,!!E.ijIBotl'Orff, Michael Termini, 
and Mayor 

City 

A. 

C. 

Finance Officers Association 
[120-40] 

of the Govemment Finance Officers, 

Anniversary Fireworks Proclamation. [120-40] 

::;torey', presented a proclamation to Marc Monte for the Monte 
FOlmdatic)l'l!s~,r narlV contributions to the community. 

lipdlate provided by Assemblymember Mark Stone. [580-40] 

:OS,ED SESSION 

City Attomey Condotti reported on the two items on the agenda under 
Closed Session; there was no reportable action. 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Mayor Storey stated that additional material was provided regarding Item 
9.C. 

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

None provided 

-11-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING ACTION SUMMARY 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 23,2014 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Storey called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. He announced the items to be 
discussed in Closed Session, as follows: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
Code §54956.9) 

Theresa Kloepfer, GAL for Kaitlin Kloepfer I(s;[tIle 
[Santa Cruz County Superior Court, Cai,eL~~fD}G¥ 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - A'''''''''' 
Significant exposure to litigation 
One potential case: Water 

TION (Govt. 

~~:b§549:)6.9(b) 

Mayor Storey noted that there was no 
recessed at 6:15 p.m. to the Closed Session 

Council 

1. 

2. 

3. 

REGULAR MEETING 

Council ~~.,mhAr" 
and Mayor f'ftrii'",; 

City 

ment Finance Officers Association 
[120-40] 

of the Government Finance Officers, 

Anniversary Fireworks Proclamation. [120-40] 

presented a proclamation to Marc Monte for the Monte 
Oim"nv contributions to the community. 

upclate provided by Assemblymember Mark Stone. [580-40] 

U"'zl;>L.U;:"I::U SESSION 

City Attorney Condotti reported on the two items on the agenda under 
Closed Session; there was no reportable action. 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Mayor Storey stated that additional material was provided regarding Item 
9.e. 

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

None provided 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Gary Richard Arnold spoke about California forward's involvement in unethical 
political practices and involvement in unfair government decisions. 

Council Member Harlan stated that the new Children's Museum of Discovery at the 
Capitola Mall will open on November 15, 2014. 

Council Member Norton stated that voters received a brochure in the mail with 
false information regarding law enforcement supporting various candidates. 

Council Member Termini stated that the annual Capitola Halloween Parade will be 
held on October 26th. He also stated that the Art and Cultural Commission is 
working on a free Santa Cruz County Symphony family concert at New Brighton 
Middle School and a Bach On the Beach event. 

7. CITY COUNCIL I CITY TREASURER I STAFF COMMIENl'~ 

City Manager Goldstein stated that he will be in 
2014, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
Board will receive a status update regarding. e fl'~tts 
at the Capitola Mall. 

at the October 24, 
0_ ... ..1' meeting when the 
re(()cate the transit center 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Consider approving the 
Minutes. 

B. Approval of City Check 
September 26, 2014; Ocl:~~lr,3, 

Council Member Norton • ..l",;',.,c"'i";'. 

City Check Register "'o,~~rlf," 

Council 
various City 

Meeting 

,t)!!1!1.!.1lli~.r'~galrdirlg the approval of the 

frO'l~ide additional information on 

ACTION Motion . 

9. 

. ~1~~id~ft~~:d~~~~~r~!f~~:~~~~~;.:~;~=:~~r~~~i seconded by Council Member , appf~~Y!l the two payments to Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 listed 
carried with the following vote: AYES: Council 

Harlan, and Mayor Storey. NOES: Council 
None. ABSTAIN: None. 

bv;:C(WrICil Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
'i Item B.A. The motion was passed unanimously . 

. ENT I PUBLIC HEARINGS 

i"""<;M a contract to MG Creations Skatepark Construction in the 
amount to exceed $50,000 to deSign and build the skate park portion of 
McGregor Park; and review the conceptual design for the skate park deSign. 
[1040-20] 

Michael Greenwald, MG Creations Skatepark Construction, provided 
comments regarding the design of the proposed skate park. 

The following Capitola residents stated that they do not support having the 
proposed skate park on the McGregor property. 

• Trisha Proctor 

• Marie Martorella 

-12-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Gary Richard Arnold spoke about California forward's involvement in unethical 
political practices and involvement in unfair government decisions. 

Council Member Harlan stated that the new Children's Museum of Discovery at the 
Capitola Mall will open on November 15, 2014. 

Council Member Norton stated that voters received a brochure in the mail with 
false information regarding law enforcement supporting various candidates. 

Council Member Termini stated that the annual Capitola Halloween Parade will be 
held on October 26th. He also stated that the Art and Cultural Commission is 
working on a free Santa Cruz County Symphony family concert at New Brighton 
Middle School and a Bach On the Beach event. 

7. CITY COUNCIL I CITY TREASURER I STAFF COIMNIENITl:!2" 

City Manager Goldstein stated that he will be in 
2014, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
Board will receive a status update regarding. e fl'~tts 

f"h"'~"~Q at the October 24, 
meeting when the 

rel(~ci;lte the transit center 
at the Capitola Mall. 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Consider approving the 
Minutes. 

B. Approval of City Check 
September 26, 2014; Ocl:~~lr,3, 

Council Member Norton ."",;',":"''';'. 
City Check Register 

Council MF>ml" 

various City 

ACTION Motion 

Meeting 

September 19, 2014; 
andiPc:tob,er 10, 2014. [300-10] 

,t)l~t.m~'.r~~Jarding the approval of the 

. Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
exception of the two payments to 
was passed unanimously. 

,r:' .. ,,,.,,," seconded by Council Member 
appf~!".e the two payments to Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 listed 

.='i=~~.@j;::7"mc)ti(>n carried with the following vote: AYES: Council 
~ I~'~~!:~B:~'~~~~ Harlan, and Mayor Storey. NOES: Council 

M,~",h.,. N None. ABSTAIN: None. 

';Olum:1I Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
Item B.A. The motion was passed unanimously. 

9. I PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. a contract to MG Creations Skatepark Construction in the 
amount to exceed $50,000 to design and build the skate park portion of 
McGregor Park; and review the conceptual design for the skate park design. 
[1040-20] 

Michael Greenwald, MG Creations Skatepark Construction, provided 
comments regarding the design of the proposed skate park. 

The following Capitola residents stated that they do not support having the 
proposed skate park on the McGregor property. 

• Trisha Proctor 

• Marie Martorella 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Norton, to award a contract to MG Creations Skatepark Construction in 
the amount not to exceed $50,000 to design and build the skate park 
portion of McGregor Park; to amend the contract to include the provision 
that Phase 2 of the project shall not proceed until the final skate park 
design is approved by the City Council and that additional public input be 
obtained, and the City is not obligated to proceed with the construction if 
the skate park design is not approved by City Council. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

B. Introduction of an Ordinance regarding safety requirements for the McGregor 
Skate Park [1st Reading]. [1040-20] 

ACTION 

C. 

Michael Greenwald, MG Creations Skatepark f"n,no'f., 
riders should be able to use scooters and bicycles 

Assistant City Attorney Condotti, stated that the 
regarding hazardous recreational activities 
related to other recreational activities in 
subject further. 
There was City Council consensus 
requirements at the next reading 
City Council asked staff to 
scooters and bicycles. 
Marie Martorella, i I 
and the flow of the riders ," 

recommended that 
"~,K"l'R park. 

the City is seeking is 
<.atE~boarding and is not 

will research this 

'!<R'~de'd by Council Member 
.... ,_._". requirements for the 

Regional Public Libraries 

is the City's representative on the 
Pdw,elrs Board, and is requesting direction 

potential Santa Cruz Regional Public 

Ad Hoc Committee member, stated the urgency 
on the June 2015 ballot. In addition, she stated 

propoisecljfaci';';O:""'h'a,~o, and the distribution of funds should be tied 
Master Plan. 

an(jer~,]?irE~ct()f of Santa Cruz Public Libraries, provided comments 
re~larl:nn,gtll~;~,g:t:ential Santa Cruz Regional Public Libraries Funding Measure. 

Orltizf Gity's Library Ad Hoc Committee member, stated that the proposed 
Libraries ng Measure is to provide funding for all the Santa Cruz libraries, 
and the Capitola is just one of the branches. 

D. Introduction of an Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal 
Code (Green Building Ordinance) [1st Reading]. [570-10/750-10] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Harlan, to approve the first reading of the Ordinance amending Chapter 
17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green Building Ordinance). The motion 
carried unanimously. 

-13-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Norton, to award a contract to MG Creations Skatepark Construction in 
the amount not to exceed $50,000 to design and build the skate park 
portion of McGregor Park; to amend the contract to include the provision 
that Phase 2 of the project shall not proceed until the final skate park 
design is approved by the City Council and that additional public input be 
obtained, and the City is not obligated to proceed with the construction if 
the skate park design is not approved by City Council. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

B. Introduction of an Ordinance regarding safety requirements for the McGregor 
Skate Park [1st Reading]. [1040-20] 

ACTION 

C. 

Michael Greenwald, MG Creations Skatepark Construction, recommended that 
riders should be able to use scooters and bicycles atfhe'~kate park. 

Assistant City Attorney Condotti, stated that the/immunity the City is seeking is 
regarding hazardous recreational activities r~lit$d tC(ISKCiteboarding and is not 
related to other recreational activities in tI:te~~ate parl5,lje will research this 
subject further. ,<':".. '(L0IL .. 

There was City Council consensusJ(l;I~ffher discuss th~'~Kat.e park safety 
requirements at the next reading otlme' proposed Ordinance.'IIlSIii!ddition, the 
City Council asked staff to receiJe~/t\:l,rther inpu~9n whether o'r:Zfj'ot to allow 
scooters and bicycles. "'f"';,,' ,. 
Marie Martorella, Capitolii!0,r~sident, coirWti~81~'d on safety gear requirements 
and the flow of the riderslaJii5e;8foposed s'kiltepark. 
Motion made by Council;~IIn;ijJ'IJ~r:*I!:!rmini~'~~!;onded by Council Member 
Norton, to introduce an O'~~,\(lanC1fl~!9~ding"~~1!:!ty requirements for the 
McGregor Sk~~~,~~r.k. The m;pjjon ,~gr.riet!,~j,l(l~!!rrtlously. 
Presentatiol))regaraiilg, a pofef1ii~["Santa Cruz Regional Public Libraries 
funding m~El'~ore. [230L1Qj""': 
council'l,f0~l11ber Ter~@j stated tl'l~t he is the City's representative on the 
Santa Crozt~,9unty;l,;lRr:~rydoi[ltP'o5Ners Board, and is requesting direction 
from"the Ci!Yt,cO:8ncii regardinQ;t1;u3 potential Santa Cruz Regional Public 
·ti5rarie$FI,l~diHgMeasure. . ... 

BarbaraGol"sQn, CitY!l;Jibrary Ad Hoc Committee member, stated the urgency 
I ...... in getting tht3"{ubpingm.eCisure on the June 2015 ballot. In addition, she stated 

I,that the propOSt3'djfacilities"Measure and the distribution of funds should be tied 
'lalhe Library FacIlities Master Plan. 

T~t~§~.,Lander§,~-Director of Santa Cruz Public Libraries, provided comments 
regarding,the'w,!itential Santa Cruz Regional Public Libraries Funding Measure. 

Gail OrtizCGit'y:~ Library Ad Hoc Committee member, stated that the proposed 
Libraries Funding Measure is to provide funding for all the Santa Cruz libraries, 
and the Capitola is just one of the branches. 

D. Introduction of an Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal 
Code (Green Building Ordinance) [1st Reading]. [570-10/750-10] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Harlan, to approve the first reading of the Ordinance amending Chapter 
17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green Building Ordinance). The motion 
carried unanimously. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

At 9:20 PM Mayor Storey adjourned the meeting in honor of Bob Lee, former 
Santa Cruz County District Attorney, to the to the next Regular Meeting of the 
City Council on Thursday, November 13, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Liz Nichols, Deputy City Clerk 

-14-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, October 23, 2014 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

At 9:20 PM Mayor Storey adjourned the meeting in honor of Bob Lee, former 
Santa Cruz County District Attorney, to the to the next Regular Meeting of the 
City Council on Thursday, November 13, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Liz Nichols, Deputy City Clerk 



-15-

Item #: 8.B. Minutes.pdf

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6,2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ron Graves, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch and Chairperson Gayle 
Ortiz 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. October 2,2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
ACTION: Approved 3-0, 2 Abstentions 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR - No items 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 203 Central Avenue #14-040 APN: 036-111-08 
Design Permit, Variance for rear yard setback and parking, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Coastal Development Permit for a second story addition to a historic resource located in 
the R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the California 
Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Douglas Satzger 
Representative: Richard Emigh, filed 3/13/14 

ACTION: Approved 4-1 

B. 124 Central Avenue #14-116 APN: 036-122-13 
Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for an addition to a Historic Single Family 
home located in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted 
through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Douglas Edwards 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine (filed 7/21/2014) 

ACTION: Tentatively approved, pending variance application for development of a non
conforming property over 80 percent value, 3-2 



-16-

Item #: 8.B. Minutes.pdf

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, November 6, 2014 

C. Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 17 Zoning Ordinance Update 
ACTION: Information only 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

2 

Adjourned at 10:01 p.m. , in honor of the memory of Jim Reding, to the next Planning Commission 
meeting Thursday, December 4, 2014, at 7 p.m., in the Capitola City Council Chambers, 420 Capitola 
Ave., Capitola, California. 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 17.10 OF THE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 
(GREEN BUILDING ORDINANCE) [2ND READING] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City 
Municipal Code (Green Building Ordinance) [2nd Reading]. 

BACKGROUND: The draft Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green 
Building Ordinance) is presented for a second reading. The City Council approved the first reading 
of this Ordinance at the Council meeting held on October 23, 2014. The proposed Ordinance is 
before the City Council for its second reading and final adoption. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Proposed Ordinance 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon 
City Clerk 

R~_d,"dF~ 
By City Manage 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\AgC!nda StaITReports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\08.0. Ord staffreporl.docx -17-

Item #: 8.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 17.10 OF THE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 
(GREEN BUILDING ORDINANCE) [2ND READING] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City 
Municipal Code (Green Building Ordinance) [2nd Reading]. 

BACKGROUND: The draft Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green 
Building Ordinance) is presented for a second reading. The City Council approved the first reading 
of this Ordinance at the Council meeting held on October 23, 2014. The proposed Ordinance is 
before the City Council for its second reading and final adoption. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Proposed Ordinance 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon 
City Clerk 

R","~" .. , F~'d 
By City Manage 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\AgC!nda StaITReports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\08.0. Ord staffreporl.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-18-



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 17.10, 

GREEN BUILDING REGULATIONS 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, increases in population continually raise the demand on natural resources; 
and 

WHEREAS, there is a limited supply of energy, services related to the 
construction of new buildings, both residential and nOll-rElsicje~ti~I\'t~12d 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola has previously cOllfirittEld 
of solutions to Global Climate lliQ:!h..~!9,i.~'ffi}""y![illiLQQ]MiQ!l 

WHEREAS, the Green Building Ordinance f··! ~,pOIJl!rstent with the General Plan of the 
City of Capitola as expressed in the EnerQY 
Conservation Elernent and Ily: Housing Opportunities (B): 
Opportunities for Energy i of the Capitola Local Coastal 
Program (specifically sections A, Band 

WHEREASS~, ~t:h~:e:tdr~~;~~~~~~~~: requirement for rr 
private participation is the 

nIR'p'Rn,m pliance methodology that is 
techni'ClU€IS water conservation, storm water 

rifu9.@!~lQljj """"""'~~~"--'-'''''''£>!l-''''' without bei ng over-burdensome; 
designed to 

I 
and 

WHEREAS, general rule that CEQA applies only to 
projects th<lEQlivetQ,€l ca i ili'ir,ifir'"nt effect on the environment. Where it 
can be,.$e~rvwTtllc~Jj'<ti(lty iW~,PthPI~I"r" is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
signjic~l)f adverse effe,~t,qn the activity is not subject to CEQA (Subdivision 
(b)(3"of Section 15061 ofJbe Environmental Quality Guidelines (14 CCR 15000 et 
seq)).·'····"·",'; 

N(jW~porHEREFOR~~mqHE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOL~QWS: 

~"' , " "',' ,-c 'J' 

Section 1. 
follows: 

Ch~~t~L,,1;Y,1'O is hereby added to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as 

Sections: 
17.10.010 
17.10.020 
17.10.030 
17.10.040 
17.10.050 
17.10.060 
17.10.070 
17.10.080 

"Chapter 17.10 
Green Building Regulations 

Purpose and Findings 
Definitions 
Standards for Compliance 
Exceptions 
Maintenance of Document 
Method of Compliance 
Exceptional Design 
Creation of Green Building Educational Resource Fund 

-19-

Item #: 8.C. Attach 1.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 17.10, 

GREEN BUILDING REGULATIONS 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, increases in population continually raise the demand on natural resources; 
and 

WHEREAS, there is a limited supply of energy, m"tA,ri"ll" <,n'1r1 services related to the 
construction of new buildings, both residential and nOll-rElsicienjial\<,;aJnd 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola has previously cOIJ4TlittEld finding and application 
of solutions to Global Climate ~@J;m.......ml$.( I 

WHEREAS, the Green Building Ordinance js'c:orl~i~;terlt with the General Plan of the 
City of Capitola as expressed in the i EnerQY 
Conservation Elernent and Housing Opportunities (B): 
Opportunities for Energy the Capitola Local Coastal 
Program (specificallY sections A, Band 

private participation is the WHEREAS, the 
requirement for 
designed to enh 

witri'«a:,<" ',I methodology that is 
lCE) 9relen buildirlg,<!COrlstn ' techniques, water conservation, storm water 

J2QJ!!!J!jQO"Jm~:D!!!~ Q.9...9IS~!lJ..Q!~t"lliru[gf!!illl~' l!ll~!§1!!@§ without bei ng over-burdensome; 
and 

WHEREAS, 'general rule that CEQA applies only to 
projects thaHti;i,ve;,jQ,E) causing I effect on the environment. Where it 
can be<.$Ei~i'VwTtll<c~Jj'<l,i(lty is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
signjic~l)f adverse effe,~t"qn' ronment, the activity is not subject to CEQA (Subdivision 
(b)(3"of,Sectlon 15061 ofJbe CaliifQ'r nia Environmental Quality Guidelines (14 CCR 15000 et 
seq)).""""',', 

N(jW~,orHEREFOR~~iiqHE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOL[.QWS: 

~"' , " "',' ,-,<, 

Section 1. 
follows: 

Ch~Rf~r,tY,1'O is hereby added to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as 

Sections: 
17.10.010 
17.10.020 
17.10.030 
17.10.040 
17.10.050 
17.10.060 
17.10.070 
17.10.080 

"Chapter 17.10 
Green Building Regulations 

Purpose and Findings 
Definitions 
Standards for Compliance 
Exceptions 
Maintenance of Document 
Method of Compliance 
Exceptional Design 
Creation of Green Building Educational Resource Fund 



ORDINANCE NO. 

17.10.010 Purpose and Findings 

The City finds that green building design, construction and operation can have a 
significant positive effect on energy and resource efficiency, waste and pollution generation, 
and the health and productivity of a building's occupants over the life of the building. The 
second purpose is to create healthy work and living environments increasing the productivity of 
workers and residents and visitors to the city by improving indoor air quality and lighting. 

The intent of this section is to help promote the environmental sustainability of natural 
resources and improvement of the interior environment by efficiently redirecting the use of 
recyclable materials away from landfills, by introducing I and materials created 
with a low embodied energy materials in construction, and by energy consumption 
needs of structures by making use of efficient construction 

The City also finds that green design and co;:~,~~tC:~OI~i~[~~::~~~s,~m~!ade by the City in the 
construction and remodeling of City buildings can savings to the City 
over the life of the buildings. The City also recog in order to 
have the general populace follow suit and of green 
building for all new and remodeling construction 

I 

17.10.020 

Addition: A structure expansion that is fJll~'.:;1{;;311~;;\)~£jn~,ctl'd 

Interior remodel: Change or alteration in':' 

pre,vlclusly existing building. 

bCliIli!i.rlQ that does not increase its 

net square footage. ejN8~i~;i~ll~ffl~j 
New construction: A nl ph~fsi<;'a1i:~lW,j;' . previously existing building. 

not legally 

or multi-family residences. 

building that does not increase its net square footage. 

Par'sorls C()nEilrUICliI1(']i;;'a' new building, adding to or substantially remodeling a building in 
the City of '. i in the Capitola Green Building Program. In order to obtain a 
building permi , addition or SUbstantial remodel in excess of those 
exempted in each project must include elements from the program checklist 
equal to or ng: 

TABLE 1: NON-RESI (COMMERCIAL) ACTIONS AND POINT REQUIREMENTS 

Total points possible 75 

Action Points required to receive action: 

C-1. Receipt of Building Permit* 7 

C-2. Green Building Award 40 

*Exceptions: These points are not required for non-residential additions and remodels totaling 
less than 1000 square feet, or interior-only non-residential remodels of any size. 

R:\CITY COUNC\UAgenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\8.0. Attach 1 Green Building Ordinance_Ord.doc 

-20-

Item #: 8.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

17.10.010 Purpose and Findings 

The City finds that green building design, construction and operation can have a 
significant positive effect on energy and resource efficiency, waste and pollution generation, 
and the health and productivity of a building's occupants over the life of the building. The 
second purpose is to create healthy work and living environments increasing the productivity of 
workers and residents and visitors to the city by improving indoor air quality and lighting. 

The intent of this section is to help promote the environmental sustainability of natural 
resources and improvement of the interior environment by efficiently redirecting the use of 
recyclable materials away from landfills, by introducing and materials created 
with a low embodied energy materials in construction, and by energy consumption 
needs of structures by making use of efficient construction 

The City also finds that green design and carlsiruel 
construction and remodeling of City buildings can 
over the life of the buildings. The City also recognlzE,::Eln§l1 
have the general populace follow suit and thF,rAl"" 
building for all new and remodeling construction 

17.10.020 

),d,3CII • .lqrls made by the City in the 
savings to the City 
F"",mlnll'" in order to 
":llr·acllce of green 

Addition: A structure expansion that is fJll~,,:;";;311~0\)~!9,~~cI:ed tq;~)?reviously existing building. 

Interior remodel: Change or alteration in':' that does not increase its 

net square footage. e~Ng~:i~ii~~I~ffi~t 
New construction: A n.! ph~fsi<;'a1i:~lW,j;' previously existing building. 

property that is not legally 

or multi-family residences. 

that does not increase its net square footage . 

•. new building, adding to or substantially remodeling a building in 
the City parligipat:e in the Capitola Green Building Program. In order to obtain a 
building ilding, addition or SUbstantial remodel in excess of those 
exempted in .. 10'040. each project must include elements from the program checklist 
equal to or exc:eeding".!ilie"following: 

TABLE 1: NOIN-RESIIDENTI (COMMERCIAL) ACTIONS AND POINT REQUIREMENTS 

Total points possible 75 

Action Points required to receive action: 

C-1. Receipt of Building Permit* 7 

C-2. Green Building Award 40 

*Exceptions: These points are not required for non-residential additions and remodels totaling 
less than 1000 square feet, or interior-only non-residential remodels of any size. 

R:\CITY COUNC\UAgenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\8.0. Attach 1 Green Building Ordinance_Ord.doc 



ORDINANCE NO. 

TABLE 2: RESIDENTIAL NEW CONSTRUCTION ACTIONS AND POINT REQUIREMENTS 

Action Points requi 

First 350 
Square Feet 

3: RESIDENTIAL REMODEL AND ADDITION 

Action 

'Exception: These points are not required for 
sq uare feet. 

17.10.040 Exceptions '--::;:>:}:iiK:;. 

The following are exempt from th~prcJ~i§IQl'lsof this S'""ction' 

to receive action: 
Each Additional 100 

Square Feet or fraction 

receive action: 
Additional 100 

SCiuare Feet or fraction 

• Additions and remodels of les§·'fhan th'r~~;Ft\,;;'dred square feet of any 
residential dweIJIr·gE~trHgture. . .•..•....•.....•• / ..•.•.••... ··············.f. 

• Additions9n~fJ;e'm~d~ik~Q.tless th~n@';ethousandHooo) square and interior 
remodeL~Wa:ny non-reSicl~ntial structure. 

'*;:~'~~__ ,:<-:.{2 '<:_:-.:>: 
• Equipmehtal'll:! non-str~ctl!rfll.modifications of any residential or non-residential 

s lru ctu re ..' . '. .>, •• c ... ""·· ';' .. :.". ."" .... " 
• "'NlD6-'tl~9it99Ie re~~~ntial structure~"ejr'less than one thousand (1000) square feet. 

..General;\,~j~t~nari6~·9Lany structure. 

• Historical stn.i~t£tes wh~'rethe historic fabric would be compromised. 
> __ ,_: -:-0< -,_ -'/0.<"3-

17.10.050.' Maintenanc~;gf Docurhent 

3 

Builclii']g.and planning,il'laff shall update the Green Building Program documentation and 
checklist to reflectfldvance'~:;ifi green building techniques and materials and to make necessary 
modifications in prQgrarrl.·implementation on an annual basis. 

17.10.060 Metha§cJfCompliance 

The Chief Building Official and/or the Community Development Director shall maintain 
the following documents for the public: 

• City of Capitola: Standards for Green Building Compliance 
• New Home Green Points Check List for Residential Buildings 
• New Building Green Points Check List for Non-Residential Buildings 

These documents shall be to aid in the design and certification of new residential and 
non-residential buildings and significant remodels and additions thereto. Every applicant of a 
building permit not exempted by 17.10.040 (Exemptions) above shall complete and submit the 

-21-

Item #: 8.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

TABLE 2: RESIDENTIAL NEW CONSTRUCTION ACTIONS AND POINT REQUIREMENTS 

Action Points ,.mllll'!O to receive action: 

First 350 Each Additional 100 
Square Feet or fraction Square Feet 

3: RESIDENTIAL REMODEL AND ADDITION 

Action 

'Exception: These points are not required for 
sq uare feet. 

17.10.040 Exceptions '--::;:>:}:iiK:;. 

The following are exempt from th~prcJ~i§IQnsof this ~"'i.,tion· 

receive action: 
Additional 100 

~i'ii;,;:'r'''' Feet or fraction 

• Additions and remodels of les§·'fhan th'r~~;Ft\,;;'dred square feet of any 
residential dweIJiWgE~!r!JRture ,.' •.•.. ••.. ;1;,1,;3'.; 

• Additions'w~~tefmOdel~~~tless thcirfd,Me thousand(1 000) square and interior 
remodeL~Wa:ny non-reSicl~ntial structure. 

'*;:~'~~__ ,:<-:.{2 '<:_:-.:>: 
• Equipmehtafi1J:! non-str~ctl!rfll.modifications of any residential or non-residential 

structure. . .•... ':i.~ii· .i·'·:·i ;.; ••.. 
• ,'NlD6;tl~9itfl9Ie re~~~ntial structure~;;dness than one thousand (1000) square feet. 

..Generalm~j~t~nari6~·9Lany structure. 

• Historical stn.i~t£tes wh~;rethe historic fabric would be compromised. 
> __ ,_: -:-0< -~_ -'/0.<"3-

17.10.050.' Maintenanc~;~f Docurhent 

3 

Builclii']g.and planningli!>1aff shall update the Green Building Program documentation and 
checklist to reflectfldvance'~:;ifi green building techniques and materials and to make necessary 
modifications in prQgram,'implementation on an annual basis. 

17.10.060 Metha§cJfCompliance 

The Chief Building Official and/or the Community Development Director shall maintain 
the following documents for the public: 

• City of Capitola: Standards for Green Building Compliance 
• New Home Green Points Check List for Residential Buildings 
• New Building Green Points Check List for Non-Residential Buildings 

These documents shall be to aid in the design and certification of new residential and 
non-residential buildings and significant remodels and additions thereto. Every applicant of a 
building permit not exempted by 17.10.040 (Exemptions) above shall complete and submit the 



ORDINANCE NO. 

appropriate check list for their project as well along with the standard application documents. All 
compliance measures shall be clearly delineated on plan sets. 

17.10.070 Exceptional Design 

Designers and builders employing exceptional design, construction practices and/or 
maintenance features may have their project modified from the strict interpretatioh of the 
program if in the opinion of the Community Development Director or Building Official such 
features exhibit at least a 20 percent increase in points over the minimum standards for a 
Green Building Award as outlined in 17.10.30 Standards for Compliance above. Exceptional 
designs shall also be recognized by the City and eligible to rec<live a plaque that may be 
displayed on the structure. . ..... . 

17.10.080 Creation of Green Building EduGatianal Resp~t~~'Fund 
Building permits which are required to comply With"ttt$':.i§~~~~E\uilding Regulations shall 

be assessed a fee equal to .0025 times the overall valualtori'of the proj~ct Revenues collected 
shall be maintained by the Finance Department as<;lrel(olving Green BUi\qiOg Ed.matien Fund 
and shall be used only for program management,draii1ing, publications, an·~,p .. ublic educational 
purposes. incentive programs, and materials gntl'supplies necessary to prdrnote sustainable 
development, water conservation, storm water p()lIution prevention, and climate action planning 
activities. 

Section 2. Severability ........ ';;:;;, 

If any section, subsection, SUbdivision~'~~f~gJ<lph, sente~·6~(:·"lause or phrase of the Section, or 
any part thereof, is for any reason heldtp?ge'Lli1'GPf'l.stitutional)ilJvalid, or ineffective by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision'~rall no{C;affecl the'<validity or effectiveness of the 
remaining portions of this 9<lstipn or any part therIilRfi'1"he;City Council hereby declares that it 
would have passed eacp;sectiC)n;< subsedlgD,;suodivisiorl,paragraph, sentence, clause and 

phrase of this Sectlon;Jif~spe~tiV~;.;pf the 't~~f;that one or more sections, subsections, 
paragraphs, sentef'),~s"clauses, or;phrases beqeclared unconstitutional, invalid of effective. 
To this end, the provrsipgSOf this,,?<?dionare decJ~red to be severable. 

Section 3. Thi~ordin~ricesha.lrt~kee~eCj;a.~t:I;~eiri full force on December 1, 2014 

ThisQr,clinance~.as ;~t~gd1~ed on the 23,d'8ay of October, 2014, and was passed and 
adoptedcbythe City Coul'lciLof tne'City of Capitola on the 13th day of November, 2014, by the 
followi~l(ete: .. , ';'z .. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

~ __ ~~~~~~~,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

APPROVED: 
Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StuffReports\2014 Agenda RepOlis\ll13 14\8.0. Attach I Green Building Ordinance_ Ord.doc 

-22-

Item #: 8.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

appropriate check list for their project as well along with the standard application documents. All 
compliance measures shall be clearly delineated on plan sets. 

17.10.070 Exceptional Design 

Designers and builders employing exceptional design, construction practices and/or 
maintenance features may have their project modified from the strict interpretatioh of the 
program if in the opinion of the Community Development Director or Building Official such 
features exhibit at least a 20 percent increase in points over the minimum standards for a 
Green Building Award as outlined in 17.10.30 Standards for Compliance above. Exceptional 
des'lgns shall also be recogn'lzed by the CHy and eng'lble to rec,lrve. a plaque that may be 
displayed on the structure. . ..... . 

17.10.080 Creation of Green Building EduGatianal Re$a~~~'Fund 
Building permits which are required to comply with"tttg·.i§~g~~BlJilding Regulations shall 

be assessed a fee equal to .0025 times the overall valuattori'of the pro]~()t. Revenues collected 
shall be maintained by the Finance Department as<;lrel(olving Green BUi\qiOg Edllsation Fund 
and shall be used only for program management,Arail1ing, publications, an·~cp.lJblic educational 
purposes. incentive programs, and materials gntlsupplies necessary to prdmote sustainable 
development, water conservation, storm water p()lIution prevention, and climate action planning 
activities. 

Section 2. Severability,.. i..., 
If any section, subsection, SUbdivision~[~~r'ag.r<lPh, sente~6~(::('lause or phrase of the Section, or 
any part thereof, is for any reason heldtp'ge'u'I1i:;gf'l.stitutionali,JlJvalid, or ineffective by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision'~rall not"affeci the'valitlity or effectiveness of the 
remaining portions of this 9!'()tion or any part ther!'C)f,''1"he;City Council hereby declares that it 
would have passed each!$~ctiqf');, subsedtgD,,$ubdivisiorl,paragraph, sentence, clause and 

phrase of this Sectlon;Jif~spe~tiV~;.,pf the 't~~f!that one or more sections, subsections, 
paragraphs, sente.~"clause~, or,phrases bePE!c:lared IJnconstitutional, invalid of effective. 
To this end, the proVlslpgsof thls,,?<?dlonare decJ~red to be severable. 

Section 3. This ordin~ric~Sh'll£t~kee~ecti~nt:lb,~iri full force on December 1, 2014 

ThiSQl;clir1anCe:~.as iritrg~uced on the 23fd"~ay of October, 2014, and was passed and 
adoptedbythe City Coul'lciLof tRe'City of Capitola on the 13th day of November, 2014, by the 
followi~l(ote: ." , ';"" 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

~ __ ~~~~~~~,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

APPROVED: 
Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StuffReports\2014 Agenda RepOlis\ll13 14\8.0. Attach I Green Building Ordinance_ Ord.doc 



FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: 2015 MEETING SCHEDULES FOR THE CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY & THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION/ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the 2015 City meeting schedules as an informational item and 
direct staff to post this information at City Hall, the Capitola Branch Library, on the City's website, and 
distribute to department heads, newspapers, and various groups that regularly submit items to the City. 

DISCUSSION: At the end of each calendar year staff prepares the meeting schedules for the following 
year. Attached are the proposed schedules for City Council/Successor Agency, Planning Commission, 
and Architectural and Site Review Committee for 2015. 

Regular meetings of the City Council are held on the second and fourth Thursday of the month at 7:00 
p.m., with the exception of the following:' 

v' Wednesday, February 11 th due to the February 12 th Lincoln's Birthday holiday; and 
v' Tuesday, November 24 th due to the November 25 th Thanksgiving holiday. 

There is no second meeting held in December due to the Christmas holiday. Pursuant to past practice 
one meeting has been scheduled for the month of August. The Successor Agency meetings are held on 
an as needed basis. 

Regular meetings of the Planning Commission are held on the first Thursday of the month at 7:00 p.m. in 
the City Hall Council Chambers. Since City Hall offices will be closed December 21 - 25, 2015, and City 
Council will meet on Thursday, January 8, 2015, the regular meeting of the Planning Commission for 
January has been scheduled for Thursday, January 15, 2015. In addition, the July 2015 Planning 
Commission meeting is scheduled for Thursday, July 16, 2015, due to the July 4th holiday, and City 
Council meeting on Thursday, July 9, 2015 

Regular meetings of the Architectural & Site Review Committee are generally held on the second and 
fourth Wednesday of each month at 3:30 p.m. with the exception of Wednesday, November 18th due to 
the Thanksgiving holiday. In the event there are no items for review by the Committee, meetings would 
be cancelled and noticed accordingly. 

All regular meetings of the City Council, Successor Agency, and Planning Commission are televised 
"Live" on Charter Communications Cable Channel 8, and rebroadcast by Community Television of Santa 
Cruz County following the meetings on Charter Cable Channel 71 and Comcast Cable Channel 25. In 
addition, "Live Streaming" and "On Demand" replay of the meetings can be viewed via the Internet from 
the City's website at: www.cityofcapitola.org. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 2015 City Council/Successor Agency Meeting Dates and Deadline for Submittal of Agenda Items. 
2. 2015 Meeting Schedules for the Planning Commission/Architectural & Site Review Com ittee 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, City Clerk Reviewed and Fo 
City Clerk By City Manager r-'tb"-T-

1 There will be a Special City Council Workshop on Tuesday, January 6th
, at 6:00 p.m., held Capitola Community 

Center, 4400 Jade Street, Capitola. . 

-23-

Item #: 8.D. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: 2015 MEETING SCHEDULES FOR THE CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY & THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION/ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the 2015 City meeting schedules as an informational item and 
direct staff to post this information at City Hall, the Capitola Branch Library, on the City's website, and 
distribute to department heads, newspapers, and various groups that regularly submit items to the City. 

DISCUSSION: At the end of each calendar year staff prepares the meeting schedules for the following 
year. Attached are the proposed schedules for City Council/Successor Agency, Planning Commission, 
and Architectural and Site Review Committee for 2015. 

Regular meetings of the City Council are held on the second and fourth Thursday of the month at 7:00 
p.m., with the exception of the following:' 

v' Wednesday, February 11 th due to the February 12 th Lincoln's Birthday holiday; and 
v' Tuesday, November 24 th due to the November 25 th Thanksgiving holiday. 

There is no second meeting held in December due to the Christmas holiday. Pursuant to past practice 
one meeting has been scheduled for the month of August. The Successor Agency meetings are held on 
an as needed basis. 

Regular meetings of the Planning Commission are held on the first Thursday of the month at 7:00 p.m. in 
the City Hall Council Chambers. Since City Hall offices will be closed December 21 - 25, 2015, and City 
Council will meet on Thursday, January 8, 2015, the regular meeting of the Planning Commission for 
January has been scheduled for Thursday, January 15, 2015. In addition, the July 2015 Planning 
Commission meeting is scheduled for Thursday, July 16, 2015, due to the July 4th holiday, and City 
Council meeting on Thursday, July 9, 2015 

Regular meetings of the Architectural & Site Review Committee are generally held on the second and 
fourth Wednesday of each month at 3:30 p.m. with the exception of Wednesday, November 18th due to 
the Thanksgiving holiday. In the event there are no items for review by the Committee, meetings would 
be cancelled and noticed accordingly. 

All regular meetings of the City Council, Successor Agency, and Planning Commission are televised 
"Live" on Charter Communications Cable Channel 8, and rebroadcast by Community Television of Santa 
Cruz County following the meetings on Charter Cable Channel 71 and Comcast Cable Channel 25. In 
addition, "Live Streaming" and "On Demand" replay of the meetings can be viewed via the Internet from 
the City's website at: www.cityofcapitola.org. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 2015 City Council/Successor Agency Meeting Dates and Deadline for Submittal of Agenda Items. 
2. 2015 Meeting Schedules for the Planning Commission/Architectural & Site Review Com ittee 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, City Clerk Reviewed and Fo 
City Clerk By City Manager r-'tb"-'t-

1 There will be a Special City Council Workshop on Tuesday, January 6th
, at 6:00 p.m., held Capitola Community 

Center, 4400 Jade Street, Capitola. . 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-24-



2015 CITY OF CAPITOLA 
City Council and Successor Agency Meeting Dates 

and Deadline for Submittal of Agenda Items 

SUBMITTAL DATE1 MEETING DATE2 

DECEMBER 29, 2014 TUESDAY, JANUARY 6 (Special Workshop) 

DECEMBER 29, 2014 JANUARYB 

JANUARY 12 JANUARY 22 

FEBRUARY 2 WEDNESDAY, 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17 

MARCH 2 

MARCH 16 

MARCH 30 

APRIL 13 

APRIL 27 

MAY 11 

JUNE 1 

JUNE15 

JUNE 29 

SEPTEMBER 10 

SEPTEMBER 24 

OCTOBER 8 

OCTOBER 22 

NOVEMBER 12 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 24 ...... 

DECEMBER 10 

Items to be included on a 
submittal date so that a staff 
agenda. 

ClU""UCI must be submitted to the City Manager's Office NO LATER than 5 p. m. on the 
may be prepared. Items received after that date may be scheduled for the next available 

NOTE: • DUE TO LINCOLN'S BIRTHDAY HOLIDAY, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 
•• DUE TO THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 

1 Submittal dates are on Mondays, with the exception ofTuesdays that follow a holiday as indicated above. 

2 Regular Meetings of the City Councill Successor Agency are held on the 2nd & 4th Thursdays of each month. The Regular 
City Council meetings begin at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.) in the Capitola City Hall Council Chambers, 
420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 

-25-

Item #: 8.D. Attach 1.pdf

2015 CITY OF CAPITOLA 
City Council and Successor Agency Meeting Dates 

and Deadline for Submittal of Agenda Items 

SUBMITTAL DATE1 MEETING DATE2 

DECEMBER 29, 2014 TUESDAY, JANUARY 6 (Special Workshop) 

DECEMBER 29, 2014 JANUARYB 

JANUARY 12 JANUARY 22 

FEBRUARY 2 WEDNESDAY, 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17 

MARCH 2 

MARCH 16 

MARCH 30 

APRIL 13 

APRIL 27 

MAY 11 

JUNE 1 

JUNE15 

JUNE 29 

SEPTEMBER 10 

SEPTEMBER 24 

OCTOBER 8 

OCTOBER 22 

NOVEMBER 12 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 24 ...... 

DECEMBER 10 

Items to be included on a 
submittal date so that a staff 
agenda. 

must be submitted to the City Manager's Office NO LATER than 5 p. m. on the 
may be prepared. Items received after that date may be scheduled for the next available 

NOTE: ... DUE TO LINCOLN'S BIRTHDAY HOLIDAY, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 
""DUE TO THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 

1 Submittal dates are on Mondays, with the exception ofTuesdays that follow a holiday as indicated above. 
2 Regular Meetings of the City Councill Successor Agency are held on the 2nd & 4th Thursdays of each month. The Regular 
City Council meetings begin at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.) in the Capitola City Hall Council Chambers, 
420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-26-



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
2015 MEETING SCHEDULES 

ARCHITECTURAL & SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

_SUBMITTAL BARCH & SITE REVIEW 

DECEMBER 15, 2014 JANUARY 14 

JANUARY 28 

FEBRUARY 11 

JANUARY 26 25 

FEBRUARY 9 MARCH 1 

MARCH 25 

MARCH 9 8 

MARCH 23 APRIL 

APRIL 27 

MAY 11 

-SUBMITTAL 

DECEMBER 16, 2014 

JANUARY 6 

OCTOBER 6 

NOVEMBER 3 

+PLANNING 
COM 

JANUARY 15** 

FEBRUARY 5 

5 

APRIL 

JULY 16** 

AUGUST 6 

SEPTEMBER 3 

1 

NOVEMBER 5 

Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, and are generally scheduled as follows: 

_ i may be submitted by the deadline, it does not guarantee a hearing 
staff review and analysis shall be completed prior to scheduling an 

B 2nd and 4th Wednesday of each month at 3:30 p.m. in the City Hall 
Council Chambers. NOTE: * The November Architectural & Site Review Committee will be held on the third 
Wednesday due to the Thanksgiving holiday. 

• Planning Commission Meetings: 1st Thursday of each month at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
NOTE: ** The January and July Planning Commission meetings will be held on the third Thursday due to 
the holidays. 

-27-

Item #: 8.D. Attach 2.pdf
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
2015 MEETING SCHEDULES 

ARCHITECTURAL & SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

_SUBMITTAL BARCH & SITE REVIEW 

DECEMBER 15, 2014 JANUARY 14 

2014 JANUARY 28 

JANUARY 1 

JANUARY 26 

FEBRUARY MARCH 11 

FEBRUARY 23 

MARCH 9 APRIL8 

MARCH 23 APRIL 22 

APRIL 13 MAY 13 

27 MAY 27 

MAY 11 

MAY 25 

JUNE8 

-SUBMITTAL 

DECEMBER 16, 2014 

OCTOBER 6 

"n,\IcR"'ER 3 

+PLANNING 
COM 

JANUARY 15** 

MARCH 5 

APRIL 2 

JULY 16** 

AUGUST 6 

s 

OCTOBER 1 

NOVEMBER 5 

DECEMBER 3 

Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, and are generally scheduled as follows: 

_ may be submitted by the deadline, it does not guarantee a hearing 
staff review and analysis shall be completed prior to scheduling an 

B i 2nd and 4th Wednesday of each month at 3:30 p.m. in the City Hall 
Council Chambers. NOTE: * The November Architectural & Site Review Committee will be held on the third 
Wednesday due to the Thanksgiving holiday. 

• Planning Commission Meetings: 1st Thursday of each month at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
NOTE: ** The January and July Planning Commission meetings will be held on the third Thursday due to 
the holidays. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-28-



FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING DAYS FOR CLOSURE OF CITY OFFICES DURING 
THE 2015 CALENDAR YEAR 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution establishing days for closure of City Offices 
during the 2015 Calendar Year. 

DISCUSSION: Ordinance No. 497 provides that "The City Council may, from time to time, designate 
holidays which shall be granted to employees with pay. The Council may also by Resolution designate 
holidays upon which the City offices shall be closed." In November of each year staff reviews the 
calendar for the following year as it relates to holidays and prepares a Resolution for adoption by the 
City Council. 

A draft Resolution for the 2015 Calendar Year is attached for your consideration. As has been done for 
the past several years and is consistent with employee Memoranda of Understanding, the proposed 
Resolution identifies the holiday closure of City Hall offices during the week between the Christmas and 
the New Year's Day holidays. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk _Md(j; 

By City Manag r , 

R:\ClTY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\8.0. City HallI-Ioliday Closure SRdocx 

-29-

Item #: 8.E. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING DAYS FOR CLOSURE OF CITY OFFICES DURING 
THE 2015 CALENDAR YEAR 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution establishing days for closure of City Offices 
during the 2015 Calendar Year. 

DISCUSSION: Ordinance No. 497 provides that "The City Council may, from time to time, designate 
holidays which shall be granted to employees with pay. The Council may also by Resolution designate 
holidays upon which the City offices shall be closed." In November of each year staff reviews the 
calendar for the following year as it relates to holidays and prepares a Resolution for adoption by the 
City Council. 

A draft Resolution for the 2015 Calendar Year is attached for your consideration. As has been done for 
the past several years and is consistent with employee Memoranda of Understanding, the proposed 
Resolution identifies the holiday closure of City Hall offices during the week between the Christmas and 
the New Year's Day holidays. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

_'M\}; By City Manag r , 

R:\ClTY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\!! 13 14\8.0. City HallI-Ioliday Closure SRdocx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-30-



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ESTABLISHING DAYS FOR CLOSURE OF CITY OFFICES 

DURING THE 2015 CALENDAR YEAR 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 497 provides that days for closure of City offices may, 
from time to time, be set by Council Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Capitola to establish days 
for closure of City offices during the 2015 calendar year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by 
Capitola as follows: City Offices, except for essential 
Department, shall be closed on the following days 

Council of the City of 
such as the Police 

year 2015, unless 
otherwise noted: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

January 1 (Thursday) 
January 19 (Monday) 
February 12 (Thursday) 
February 16 (Monday) 
May 25 (Monday) 
July 3 (Friday) 
September 7 IMflnrl,,, 

October 12 IMfmrl"v\ 

November 11 (W,,,rlr,,,,, 

November 26 

i of any City Councilor Planning 
days. For pOlles of Government Code Section 6704, 

for closure of the City business office. 

intended to define holidays, for which employees 
Employees paid holidays are defined in 

that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 13th day 

lowing vote: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
ATTEST: ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaITRcports\2014 Agenda Rcports\t 1 13 14\8.G. City Hall Holiday Closure Schedule Reso.docx -31-

Item #: 8.E. Attach 1.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ESTABLISHING DAYS FOR CLOSURE OF CITY OFFICES 

DURING THE 2015 CALENDAR YEAR 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 497 provides that days for closure of City offices may, 
from time to time, be set by Council Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Capitola to establish days 
for closure of City offices during the 2015 calendar year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by 
Capitola as follows: City Offices, except for essential 
Department, shall be closed on the following days 

Council of the City of 
such as the Police 

year 2015, unless 
otherwise noted: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

January 1 (Thursday) 
January 19 (Monday) 
February 12 (Thursday) 
February 16 (Monday) 
May 25 (Monday) 
July 3 (Friday) 
Septem ber 7 Mnnrl,,, 

October 12 IMrmrl"v\ 

November 11 (W,,,rlr,,,,, 

November 26 

)"[lUIIIJ(] of any City Councilor Planning 
days. For Government Code Section 6704, 

for closure of the City business office. 

intended to define holidays, for which employees 
Employees paid holidays are defined in 

that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 13th day 

vote: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
ATTEST: ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaITRcports\2014 Agenda Rcports\t 1 13 14\8.G. City Hall Holiday Closure Schedule Reso.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-32-



FROM: POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM THE CAPITOLA-SOQUEL CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE TO OFFER FREE THREE-HOUR PARKING IN VILLAGE PARKING 
ZONE A(1), NOVEMBER 26, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 25, 2014; AND 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING TEMPORARY THREE-HOUR 
PARKING LIMIT IN VILLAGE PARKING ZONE A(1) NOVEMBER 26, 2014 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 25, 2014 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Authorize the suspension of the two-hour parking limit in the Village, Zone A (1), from November 

26,2014, through December 25,2014; and 

2. Approve the proposed Resolution to establish a three-hour parking limit in Zone A (1), from 
November 26,2014, through December 25,2014. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce has submitted their annual request to 
the Council to offer free parking in the Village for a maximum three-hour time limit during the holiday 
season. The Council has been authorizing this program since 2001, with the exception of 2003. 

DISCUSSION: The purpose of the parking meters has been to encourage parking rotation for the 
Village business community. Although the late fall through early winter is not as filled with tourists as 
the early spring through early fall season, the need for the parking meters still prevails. 

The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce has submitted a letter requesting that the Council 
authorize the suspension of the two-hour parking limit, and allow free three-hour parking limits in the 
Village, Zone A (1), from November 26, 2014, through December 25, 2014, in order to encourage 
holiday shopping. The Capitola City Council has established parking zones, meter rates, and fines for 
parking violations in accordance with Chapter 10.36 Capitola Municipal Code (CMC). More 
specifically, Section 10.36.290 CMC, authorizes the City Council, by Resolution, to limit the period of 
time in which a vehicle may be parked within a designated area of the streets. 

It was brought to the attention of City staff by the local Business Improvement Area (BIA) community, 
that there was no enforcement mechanism in place to enforce the three-hour time limit violations. 
Without the ability to enforce the three-hour time limits, visitors and Village employees were parking in 
the free spaces longer than the three-hour time periods; therefore defeating the purpose of 
encouraging parking rotation. 

If the free three-hour time limit is granted, the proposed Resolution would allow for the enforcement of 
parking violations as described in 10.36.045 CMC. The parking fines for a three-hour time limit 
violation will remain the same as currently listed on the approved fee schedule as $36.00. 

FISCAL IMPACT: It is estimated that last year's suspension of the parking meters and pay stations 
cost the City $10,000. The Fiscal Year 2013/2014 takes into account temporarily suspending parking 
meter and pay station enforcement for this time period. Therefore, there is no budget impact. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Letter dated October 6, 2014, from the Capitola Soquel-Chamber of Commerce; 
2. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Rudy Escalante 
Chief of Police 

R:\CITY COUNCIUAgcnda SlaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\Holiday parking rates SR.docx 

Reviewed and F~4ar~ed 
By City Manager~ 

-33-

Item #: 8.F. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM THE CAPITOLA-SOQUEL CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE TO OFFER FREE THREE-HOUR PARKING IN VILLAGE PARKING 
ZONE A(1), NOVEMBER 26, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 25, 2014; AND 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING TEMPORARY THREE-HOUR 
PARKING LIMIT IN VILLAGE PARKING ZONE A(1) NOVEMBER 26, 2014 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 25, 2014 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Authorize the suspension of the two-hour parking limit in the Village, Zone A (1), from November 

26,2014, through December 25,2014; and 

2. Approve the proposed Resolution to establish a three-hour parking limit in Zone A (1), from 
November 26,2014, through December 25,2014. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce has submitted their annual request to 
the Council to offer free parking in the Village for a maximum three-hour time limit during the holiday 
season. The Council has been authorizing this program since 2001, with the exception of 2003. 

DISCUSSION: The purpose of the parking meters has been to encourage parking rotation for the 
Village business community. Although the late fall through early winter is not as filled with tourists as 
the early spring through early fall season, the need for the parking meters still prevails. 

The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce has submitted a letter requesting that the Council 
authorize the suspension of the two-hour parking limit, and allow free three-hour parking limits in the 
Village, Zone A (1), from November 26, 2014, through December 25, 2014, in order to encourage 
holiday shopping. The Capitola City Council has established parking zones, meter rates, and fines for 
parking violations in accordance with Chapter 10.36 Capitola Municipal Code (CMC). More 
specifically, Section 10.36.290 CMC, authorizes the City Council, by Resolution, to limit the period of 
time in which a vehicle may be parked within a designated area of the streets. 

It was brought to the attention of City staff by the local Business Improvement Area (BIA) community, 
that there was no enforcement mechanism in place to enforce the three-hour time limit violations. 
Without the ability to enforce the three-hour time limits, visitors and Village employees were parking in 
the free spaces longer than the three-hour time periods; therefore defeating the purpose of 
encouraging parking rotation. 

If the free three-hour time limit is granted, the proposed Resolution would allow for the enforcement of 
parking violations as described in 10.36.045 CMC. The parking fines for a three-hour time limit 
violation will remain the same as currently listed on the approved fee schedule as $36.00. 

FISCAL IMPACT: It is estimated that last year's suspension of the parking meters and pay stations 
cost the City $10,000. The Fiscal Year 2013/2014 takes into account temporarily suspending parking 
meier and pay station enforcement for this time period. Therefore, there is no budget impact. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Letter dated October 6, 2014, from the Capitola Soquel-Chamber of Commerce; 
2. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Rudy Escalante 
Chief of Police 

R:\ClTY COUNCIUAgcnda SlaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\Holiday parking rates SR.docx 

Reviewed and F~4ar~ed 
By City Manager~ 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-34-



; :t '/ i ,) \1 'I "(, (-

"16-G Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
Phone: (831) ,}75-6522 
Fax: (831) 475-6530 

City of Capitola 
Mayor Storey and 
City Council Members 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, Ca. 95010 

October 6, 2014 

Mayor Storey lind City Council Members: 

Tlte Capitola·Soquel Chamber of Commerce would like to request that metered 
parking in the Village become free with II 3 hour limit for H.oliday Shoppers starting 
Thursday, November 26'h tbru Christmas Day, December 2Sth 2014. 

The Capitola Village Businesses have eujoyed more Holiday Sales during this 
period of time and appreciate the City of' Capitola's consideration of this item. 

7iJ/ereo/J _-
j~dd'-

cc: Carin Hanna - BJA Toni Castro 
Chief Executive Officer 

-35-

Item #: 8.F. Attach 1.pdf

; :t '/ i ,) \1 'I "(, (-

'16-G Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
Phone: (831) ,}75-6522 
Fax: (831) 475-6530 

City of Capitola 
Mayor Storey and 
City Council Members 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, Ca. 95010 

October 6, 2014 

Mayor Storey lind City Council Members: 

Tlte Capitola·Soquel Chamber of Commerce would like to request that metered 
parking in the Village become free with II 3 hour limit for H.oliday Shoppers starting 
Thursday, November 26'h tbru Christmas Day, December 2Sth 2014. 

The Capitola Village Businesses have eujoyed more Holiday Sales during this 
period of time and appreciate the City of Capitola's consideration of this item. 

7iJ/ereyy _~ 
j~id'-

cc: Carin Hanna - BJA Toni Castro 
Chief Executive Officer 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-36-



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ESTABLISHING TEMPORARY PARKING TIME LIMITS 
WITHIN DESIGNATED PARKING METER ZONE A (1) 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.290 authorizes the City Council 
by Resolution, to limit the period of time in which a vehicle may be parked within a 
designated area of the street; and 

WHEREAS, said parking time limits in Parking Meter 
Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.055, were established 

WHEREAS, The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of 
letter requesting that the Council authorize the su~;pen5 
and allow free three-hour parking limits in Zone A 
December 25,2014, in order to encourage nOIIICla' 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEI~EB''Gi 
Capitola as follows: 

1. The following time limits 
from November 26, 201 

Zone A (Village 

2. 

(1) established in 
~-nllJlJr time limit; and 

submitted an annual 
parking limit, 

, 2014, through 

City of 

or white parking spaces 
10.37.037 within these 

""nHmir 10 was passed and adopted by the 
November, 2014, by the following vote: 

ATTEST: 

~ __ ~~ __ ~~~ __ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCILlAgenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\Holiday parking Reso.docx -37-

Item #: 8.F. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ESTABLISHING TEMPORARY PARKING TIME LIMITS 
WITHIN DESIGNATED PARKING METER ZONE A (1) 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.290 authorizes the City Council 
by Resolution, to limit the period of time in which a vehicle may be parked within a 
designated area of the street; and 

WHEREAS, said parking time limits in Parking Meter 
Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.055, were established 

WHEREAS, The Capitola-Soquel Chamber of 
leiter requesting that the Council authorize the sueipel1~ 
and allow free three-hour parking limits in Zone A 
December 25,2014, in order to encourage I 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HERE:BY,; 
Capitola as follows: 

1. The following time limits 
from November 26, 

Zone A (Village 

2. 

zones. 

A (1) established in 
time limit; and 

submilted an annual 
'-rl'DIlI parking limit, 

2014, through 

City of 

or white parking spaces 
10.37.037 within these 

was passed and adopted by the 
November, 2014, by the following vote: 

ATTEST: 

-=-_-=:---:-:---=-:-----=-:-: __ ,' CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCILlAgenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\Holiday parking Reso.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-38-



CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: ZIP CODE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to 
send a letter to the United States Postal Service requesting a Zip Code Boundary 
Adjustment to align the Zip Code boundary with the City's municipal boundary. 

BACKGROUND: The Heritage Lane Homeowner's Association (HOA) has requested 
the City's support and assistance with processing a Zip Code Boundary Adjustment 
through the United States Postal Service (USPS). Heritage Lane, as well as other 
properties located in west Capitola, currently have a 95062 Zip Code. 

The Zip Code system was created and designed to provide an efficient postal distribution 
and delivery network. Zip Code assignments are based on factors such as. mail volume, 
delivery area size, geography, and topography. While the USPS assigns Zip Codes 
primarily based on delivery efficiency, they also consider municipal identity and review 
boundary adjustment requests to align Zip Codes with municipal boundaries. 

In September, 2011, then Mayor Norton sent a letter to the USPS requesting a Zip Code 
Boundary Adjustment for Heritage Lane. The USPS considered, but ultimately denied the 
request based on service and safety impacts (Attachment 2). 

DISCUSSION: The Heritage Lane HOA has requested the City support a renewed effort 
to change their Zip Code from 95062 to 95010. To improve the likelihood of success, the 
new request would ask the USPS to consider a broader Zip Code Boundary Adjustment 
which would include other nearby properties to minimize potential issues with service 
efficiencies. The HOA has reviewed and endorsed a draft letter prepared by staff 
(Attachment 5). 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Zip Code Boundary Map 
2. September 12, 2011 Letter from USPS 
3. 2014 Letter from HOA to City Council 
4. Draft Letter to USPS 

Report Prepared By: Richard Gru now 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and F~ed 
By City Manager~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\111314\8.G. Zip Code Staff Report.docx 

-39-

Item #: 8.G. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: ZIP CODE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to 
send a letter to the United States Postal Service requesting a Zip Code Boundary 
Adjustment to align the Zip Code boundary with the City's municipal boundary. 

BACKGROUND: The Heritage Lane Homeowner's Association (HOA) has requested 
the City's support and assistance with processing a Zip Code Boundary Adjustment 
through the United States Postal Service (USPS). Heritage Lane, as well as other 
properties located in west Capitola, currently have a 95062 Zip Code. 

The Zip Code system was created and designed to provide an efficient postal distribution 
and delivery network. Zip Code assignments are based on factors such as. mail volume, 
delivery area size, geography, and topography. While the USPS assigns Zip Codes 
primarily based on delivery efficiency, they also consider municipal identity and review 
boundary adjustment requests to align Zip Codes with municipal boundaries. 

In September, 2011, then Mayor Norton sent a letter to the USPS requesting a Zip Code 
Boundary Adjustment for Heritage Lane. The USPS considered, but ultimately denied the 
request based on service and safety impacts (Attachment 2). 

DISCUSSION: The Heritage Lane HOA has requested the City support a renewed effort 
to change their Zip Code from 95062 to 95010. To improve the likelihood of success, the 
new request would ask the USPS to consider a broader Zip Code Boundary Adjustment 
which would include other nearby properties to minimize potential issues with service 
efficiencies. The HOA has reviewed and endorsed a draft letter prepared by staff 
(Attachment 5). 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Zip Code Boundary Map 
2. September 12, 2011 Letter from USPS 
3. 2014 Letter from HOA to City Council 
4. Draft Letter to USPS 

Report Prepared By: Richard Gru now 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and F~ed 
By City Manager~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\111314\8.G. Zip Code Staff Report.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-40-



• •• 

COFFEY 

I rI 

~ . "';'8" 
<.J 

I 
1 inch = 633 feet 

City of Capitola 

-41-

Item
 #: 8.G

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
City of Capitola 
Zip Code Map 

Northwest Corner 

r-' ::-.'. "" I ?"l n I .!. ,1 r ~~ 

Qr::n,,? 

I ,/ 
I---

1. I 

I ~ 
0 J " I." ~~ <l 
l:. 

I'- - _-", 

I 
1 inch = 633 feet 

City of Capitola 



"'U" " 

D~ 
, 

c z z 
~ 
i!l 

RENWICK 

D~ 

n DRIve 'AY 

1 inch = 633 feet 

ARTIMUS 

City of Capitola 
Zip Code Map 

Southwest Corner 

~GI.S 

~OMMER 

GAI!>e. 

1----1' 

I 

\ 

J 
DRIVEWAY 

l:: ~~ D~AY,-, _ 

DfWEWAY I 

i ~:J UNN~ED I DRIVE AY 
MARILYN r-=J --=, ___ ,. __ 

,~ I TRANQUIUP:- r== U.~eD r 

STAR 
ED I UNNAMED ID~ y 

..1 ,--,,==: 

i 

CRYSTAL 

~ DRI1I£WAY 

{ DIAMOND .... RALD 

ALLEY ~ 
GARNEY 

\ -..., , 
¢ 

).JY 
JEWEl. 

AllEY~ 
OPAL 

TOPAZ 

I 

City of Capitola 

-42-

Item
 #: 8.G

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

~ ~\/I~- \ ~ 
I 

~ " ~ 

City of Capitola 
Zip Code Map 

S th t Corner ou wes - t-

~~~ 
\ 

~~\.o i 
C~ 2 ~ :=:J. j I I 

~ ~~ ,J 11 " ..... " 
) ~ S ~_ j 

r---'~ J D~ 1-
~ 

DEE SHEILA J .... _" 
'-r- 1 ..--.. 

fr 
I ~. 

ARTIMUS 

i ~ 
I - -.oJ 

:Iu.AMEIl 
-- -.E 

~ 

t. --::-- G ~"'--EJCT 
GAl peN I l..... ~ 

1I506~ _REPOSA 
\ SANDY ~ 

10N.~~ 
g 

I~ 0= 

MeLTON I 
I r 

0 •• 
-C:) 

~I 
,..-

10. 

Rio .l;; 
0"0 ~l 

~-.~,~ lC l / 

_W ~ -
-~ -

~ ~ IIY 

n :l 1_ 
~N -

STAR ~ .1 _1= 

1 inch = 633 feet 

D~ 

~ ! % i ~ 
; 

- ;:--

1 

CRYSTAL 

.u.!!. DRIVEWAY 

9501 
DIAMOND .... RAlD 

GAAHr
5 S I ~~ 

tJ=1 I" V JEWEL 

_OPAL 

~ ~ ~Y~ 
.TOf'AZ IJADI f-

f-J.!l -

I ~ r 
t-, 

U -/"l NOVA 

.PJ 
~ 

City of Capitola 



ADDRESS MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

Iii!1I1 UNITED SmH;$ 
POSTlJL, SImVICE 

September 12, 2011 

Mayor Dennis Norton 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola CA 95010-3399 

Thank you for your interest in the Capitola/East Santa Cruz ZIP Code boundary situation, specifically 
Heritage Lane, 

The Postal Service's ZIP Code system was designed specifically as a tool for mail processing and 
delivery, Postal delivery designations and boundaries are not adjusted solely for the purpose of 
providing local identity and do not necessarily coincide with city, county or township boundaries, 
Regrettably, problems have arisen when others try to use ZIP Codes for purposes unrelated to postal 
functions. 

Recognizing the difficulties that result from these non-postal uses of the ZIP Codes, the Postal 
Service has developed a uniform review process for communities that request ZIP Code changes. 
1I\I~~r1 a reg!!5Jl?t is r~.c.eiyedLI! !:af(;lfl!lJ1naJysjs_ofthe cost, sJilfe1y . .6.1ld $,e,IYi.ce implications .. oUhe. , 
change is initiated, Should it be determined that the both the fiscal, safety and customer service 
impacts are non existent, a formal survey would be sent out to all residents concerned 10 express 
their opinion on the matter. Only after compiling all the data and meetlng with the local municipalities 
involved, would a final decision be rendered. 

Unfortunately, there are service and safety impacts with this proposal. The territory immediately 
surrounding Heritage Lane is delivered by East Santa Cruz, A change would not be cost effective for 
the Postal Service as the East Santa Cruz carrier would still by-pass these deliveries to make 
surrounding deliveries, The only access to Heritage Lane is off of Capitola Road and would 
necessitate a carrier from Capitola making an unsafe u·turn. 

Thank you for your concern in this malter, Should you have any further questions or concerns, please 
contact Denise Galaviz, Address Management Systems Specialist (408) 723·6271. 

Thank you, 

Dorothy Wilson 
Manager, Address Management Systems 
Bay Valley District 

1676 7111 STRIOI:;T nOOM 120M 

OAKLAND CA 9461.1i~9321 

(510) 847-S573 

-43-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 2.pdf

ADDRESS MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

Iii!1I1 UNITED SmH;$ 
POSTlJL, SImVICE 

September 12, 2011 

Mayor Dennis Norton 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola CA 95010-3399 

Thank you for your interest in the Capitola/East Santa Cruz ZIP Code boundary situation, specifically 
Heritage Lane, 

The Postal Service's ZIP Code system was designed specifically as a tool for mail processing and 
delivery, Postal delivery designations and boundaries are not adjusted solely for the purpose of 
providing local identity and do not necessarily coincide with city, county or township boundaries, 
Regrettably, problems have arisen when others try to use ZIP Codes for purposes unrelated to postal 
functions. 

Recognizing the difficulties that result from these non-postal uses of the ZIP Codes, the Postal 
Service has developed a uniform review process for communities that request ZIP Code changes. 
1I\I~~r1 a reg!!5Jl?t is r~.c.eiyedLI! !:af(;lfl!lJ1naJysjs_ofthe cost, sJilfe1y . .6.1ld $,e,IYi.ce implications .. oUhe. , 
change is initiated, Should it be determined that the both the fiscal, safety and customer service 
impacts are non existent, a formal survey would be sent out to all residents concerned 10 express 
their opinion on the matter. Only after compiling all the data and meetlng with the local municipalities 
involved, would a final decision be rendered. 

Unfortunately, there are service and safety impacts with this proposal. The territory immediately 
surrounding Heritage Lane is delivered by East Santa Cruz, A change would not be cost effective for 
the Postal Service as the East Santa Cruz carrier would still by-pass these deliveries to make 
surrounding deliveries, The only access to Heritage Lane is off of Capitola Road and would 
necessitate a carrier from Capitola making an unsafe u·turn. 

Thank you for your concern in this malter, Should you have any further questions or concerns, please 
contact Denise Galaviz, Address Management Systems Specialist (408) 723·6271. 

Thank you, 

Dorothy Wilson 
Manager, Address Management Systems 
Bay Valley District 

1676 7111 STRIOI:;T nOOM 120M 

OAKLAND CA 9461.1i~9321 

(510) 847-S573 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-44-



-45-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Lou Scalzo, President 
Heritage of Capitola HO~ clo Shoreline Property Management· 1100 Water Street, Suite lA . 

Santa Cruz, CA 95062 . (925) 519-0898 . Iscalzo 1389@gmai1.com 

[Insert Councilmember/Mayor Address] 

To: Stephanie Harlan, City Council Member 

The Heritage of Capitola Homeowners Association (Heritage) is a homeowners 
association that represents a community of twelve homes, located directly across the 
street from the Capitola Mall. Heritage is unquestionably within the municipal boundary 
of the City of Capitola (The City), but the United State Postal Service (USPS) has 
assigned Heritage a Santa Cruz ZIP Code. While it may seem trivial, this ZIP Code has 
tangible economic effects on the residents of Heritage. Although Heritage has lobbied the 
USPS to clmnge its ZIP Code to reflect its location in The City as opposed to Santa Cruz, 
those requests have been denied. The USPS has made it clear that when municipalities 
directly request 01' join in proposed ZIP Code Changes the USPS must make greater 
efforts to accommodate those requests as opposed to requests directly from community 
groups. The purpose of this letter is to build a coalition between The City and Heritage to 
assist Heritage in successfully requesting that the USPS change its ZIP Code to 
accurately reflect Heritage's location in The City. 

I. Background On The Heritage Subdivision 

The houses in Heritage were offered for sale from 2005 to 2006. All of the 
information given to the purchasers confirmed that the houses' ZIP Code was 95010. All 
purchaser's mortgage and closing documents reflected that the development would 
receive The City's ZIP Code. Heritage President, Lou Scalzo, spoke with Gary Lindeke, 
the builder, in early 2007 wherein he promised to work on the ZIP Code issue saying it 
was probably a "clerical" error. Between 2008 and 2009, Gary Lindeke relinquished 
control of Heritage to Heritage's Board of Directors. Simply put, all members of Heritage 
were led to believe at the time of purchase that their homes would receive The City's ZIP 
Code. l 

II. Local Support Is A Pre-Requisite 

USPS designed their ZIP Code system for efficient distribution of mail; however, 
USPS is cognizant of the fact that ZIP Codes may have a substantive effect on an 
individual or community group's identity. As a result, and through congressional 
direction, USPS has created a process for ZIP Code Boundary Review. (See Attached.) 

Heritage is no way asserting presently that 1be City or builder in any way intentionally or 
negligently mislead tllcm into purchasing in Heritage. 

1 



-46-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Lou Scalzo, President 
Heritage of Capitola HOA, c/o Shoreline Property Management· 1100 Water Street, Suite lA . 

SantaCruz, CA 95062' (925) 519-0898 ·lscalzo1389@gmail.com 

However, the accommodations provided differ sharply between a direct request 
from a municipality as opposed to a local community group. When a municipality 
requests a ZIP Code change "in order to provide municipal identity ... every reasonable 
effort will be made to [accommodate the reqtlestl." (ZIP Code Boundary Review Process, 
at p. 1.) On the other hand, no language referencing accommodations is present within 
the section regarding community groups and "[ d]ocumented endorsement of the request 
by the local government is strongly recommended." (Id.) What these provisions disclose 
is that local support is a pre-requisite to any successful accommodation for a ZIP Code 
change. Most importantly, municipal requests are entitled to great deference because 
USPS must make every reasonable effort to accommodate the municipality's ZIP Code 
change request. 

III. The City's Government Should Request A ZIP Code Change On Behalf Of 
Heritage 

Heritage residents are undoubtedly a part of The City. They live directly across the 
street from the Capitola Mall. Heritage benefits from The City's Services, e.g., fire, 
police, water, garbage, and sanitation. Moreover, it was the intent of Heritage purchasers 
to buy into the City's community. The currently assigned ZIP Code cannot change the 
fact that each member of Heritage feels inextricably intertwined with TIle City's 
community. These facts should also assuage any concern of an additional burden on The 
City's services as a result ofa ZIP code change because The City is ah'eady servicing the 
addresses. 

More importantly ,Heritage residents suffer current, and prospective, economic 
harm as a result of Heritage being labeled a Santa Cl'UZ ZIP Code. The property values 
within Heritage are significantly reduced because land value is tied to properties' ZIP 
Code. One member recently tried to sell his house and found it significantly devalued. 
Other tax issues arise because of Heritage's ZIP Code. For instance, one member 
purchased a car and had to pay a higher sales tax because of Heritage's ZIP Code. These 
tangible economic harms will not dissipate until a property remedy is found
unfortunately the only remedy is a ZIP Code change. 

Accordingly, given tile identity and economic concerns, the City should assist 
Heritage in securing a ZIP Code change. As noted, a direct request by TIle City would 
receive greater deference as opposed to a request directly from Heritage. It's Heritage's 
hope that we can work with The City Councilmembers and the Mayor to draft a request 
011 the part of The City to request a ZIP Code change. In the alternative, Heritage would 
like to have the full endorsement of all members of The City body in the event that it 
must propound its own request. 

2 



-47-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Lou Scalzo, President 
Heritage of Capitola HOA, c/o Shoreline Property Management· 11 00 Water Street, Suite IA . 

Santa Cruz, CA 95062· (925) 519·0898· Iscalzo1389@gmail.com 

To be sure, this is not Heritage's first attempt at a ZIP Code change. In 2009 
Heritage's Board began to communicate with both USPS and The City to attempt to 
resolve the ZIP Code issue. During 2010, Heritage's Board President communicated with 
The City's now former Mayor, Mayor Norton. In 2010, Mayor Norton wrote a letter to 
USPS (Heritage never received a copy). In that letter, he purportedly requested that USPS 
consider changing Heritage's ZIP Code. On September 12,2011, the President of 
Heritage's board was copied on a response to Mayor Norton from USPS refusing the ZIP 
Code change. (See Attached.) USPS' rationale was that the postal service vehicle would 
have to make an unsafe U·turn. 

However, this present attempt would be different than Mayor Norton's prior 
attempt. It is unclear whether Mayor Norton enlisted the help of the entire City. Nor is it 
clear whether Mayor Norton sent a personal letter as opposed to one on The City's 
behalf. In short, a coalition between Heritage and The City is more likely to succeed as 
opposed to the appeal made by Mayor Norton three years ago because of the guidance 
provided by the USPS with respect to municipal requests for a ZIP Code Change. 

This has been an eight year process for Heritage. Heritage was previously unaware 
of the USPS ZIP Code Boundary Review Process. Finally, Heritage has identified a more 
effective avenue to address the issue which requires The City's direct support. Given the 
strong ties Heritage has to The City, and given the tact that The City provides all the 
essential services to Heritage, it would be in The City's best interest to form a coalitioll 
with Heritage to effectuate a change in Heritage's ZIP Code. 

We have retained cotmse1 in order to expedite this matter. It is our hope that you 
will work with them to create some form of correspondence between The City and USPS. 
We look forward to you meeting with our representatives in person to further discuss this 
matter in detail. 

Thank you in advance for your support. 

Very Truly Yours, 

d ~ ,;!J r" I /lA' 
Louis Scalzo ~~ 
President, Heritage of Capitola Homeowners Association 

3 



-48-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Order Code RL33488 

CRS Report for Congress 
Received through the CRS Web 

Changing Postal ZIP Code Boundaries 

June 23, 2006 

Nye Stevens 
Specialist in American National Government 

Government and Finance Division 

Congressional Research Service" The Library of Congress 



-49-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Changing Postal ZIP Code Boundaries 

Summary 

Ever since the ZIP Code system for identifYing address locations was devised 
in the 1960s, some citizens have wanted to change the ZIP Code to which their 
addresses are assigned. Because ZIP Codes are often not aligned with municipal 
boundaries, millions of Americans have mailing addresses in neighboring 
jurisdictions. This can cause higher insurance rates, confusion in voter registration, 
misdirected property and sales tax revenues for municipalities, and property value 
effects. Some communities that lack a delivery post office complain that the need to 
use mailing addresses of adjacent areas robs them of a community identity. 

Because the ZIP Code is the cornerstone for the U.S. Postal Service's (USPS's) 
mail distribution system, USPS long resisted changing ZIP Codes for any reason 
other than to improve the efficiency of delivery. Frustrated citizens frequently have 
turned to Members of Congress for assistance in altering ZIP Code boundaries. In 
the 101" Congress, a House subcommittee heard testhnony from Members, city 
offlCialS, and the Government Accountability Office (GAO) that USPS routinely 
denied local requests for adjusting ZIP Code boundaries in a peremptory manner. It 
considered three bills that would allow local governments to determine mailing 
addresses for their jurisdictions. 

Since then, USPS has developed a "ZIP Code Boundary Review Process" that 
promises "every reasonable effort" to consider and if possible accommodate 
mU/licipal requests to modify the last lines of an acceptable address andlor ZIP Code 
boundaries. The process places responsibility on distdctmanagers, rather than local 
postmasters, to review requests for boundary adjustment, to evaluate costs and 
benefrts of alternative solutions to identified problems, and to provide a decision 
within 60 days. If the decisioll is negative, the process provides for an appeal to the 
manager of delivery in USPS headquarters, where a review based 011 whether or Ilot 
a "reasonable accommodation" was made is to be provided within 60 days. 

The boundary review process, coupled with a more flexible attitude 011 the part 
of USPS than was formerly the case, offers enhanced possibilities of accommodating 
community desires. One accommodation that can often be made is to allow the 
alternative use of more than one city namc in tbe last line of the address, while 
retaining the ZIP Code number of the delivery post office. This can help with 
community identity problems, though not with problems such as insurance rates or 
tax remittances being directed by ZIP Code. 

Members of Congress who are contacted by constituents desiring a ZIP Code 
accommodation should first ensure that the constituents are aware of the boundary 
review process requirements. Constituents should be made aware that simply having 
approached a local postmaster and having been told that an adjustment would be 
disruptive and impractical is not part of the process. TIle local postmaster has no 
power to make changes and may be unaware ofthe headquarters instructions to make 
"every reasonable effort" to reach an accommodation. 

This report will be updated only if tllel'e is a change in the ZIP Code process. 



-50-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Contents 

Background .................................................. 1 
ZIP Codes Are Widely Used by Others ............................. 1 

Problems Caused by Misalignment with Municipal Boundaries ...... 2 
Congressional Hearing Registers Concern ........................... 3 
Posta! Service Attempts To Resolve Problems ....................... 4 

Current USPS Process for Realigning ZIP Codes ................. 4 
Process for Considering Community or Municipality Suggestions .... 4 
What the Process Requires ................................... 5 

Possible Accommodations To Resolve ZIP Code Complaints ........... 6 
What Can a Member of Congress Do? ............................. 7 



-51-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

Changing Postal ZIP Code Boundaries 

Citizens often turn to Members of Congress for assistance in securing changes 
to ZIP Code boundaries, usually because their mailing addresses do not correspond 
to the geographical and political boundaries of their jurisdictions. This report 
explains why ZIP Code boundaries often are not aligned with political jurisdiction 
boundaries, describes the kinds of problems that occur because of the misalignment, 
and discusses efforts by the Postal Service and Congress to address these problems. 

Background 

The Post Office Department began dividing large cities into detivery zones in 
1943, inselting two digits between the city and the state in the lower address line. In 
1963, the whole counlrywas divided into five-digit postal delivery codes, termed ZIP 
Codes by the Post Office, that corresponded to the post offices where final sorting of 
mail was done and from which letter carriers were dispatched to make deliveries. The 
term itself, originally trademarked and always capitalized, was an acronym for 
"Zoning lmpl"ovement Plan." Mass mailers were required to use ZIP Codes in 1967, 
and today their use is virtually universal. 

Almost all mail is now automatically sorted, and the hasis for it is u code that 
has now expanded to 11 digits, allowing mail to be directed to a unique delivery 
point or mail box. Most customers still know only their five-digit codes. The first 
three direct mail to a large regional sorting facility, where mail is sorted for 
distribution to a specific delivery post office, identified by the fourth and fifth digits. 
For example, the ZIP Code for Altul·as, the county seat of Modoc County in the 
nOitheastern corner of ('Allifornia, is 96101. The 961 directs mail to the processing 
facility in Reno, Nevada, which is the dist1"ibution point for some California post 
offices such as Alturas, Cedarville (96104), FOli Bidwell (96112), and Likely 
(96116), distinguished by the last two digits of the code. Reno is also the processing 
facility for ZIP Codes in Nevada beginning with 894, 895, and 897. 

ZIP Codes Are Widely Used by Others 

The Postal Service has always contended that the ZIP Code system's only 
purpose is to facilitate the efficient and orderly delivery of the mail. Nevertheless, 
ZIP Code information is readily available to the public, and both private and 
governmental entities have found it a convenient and accessible tool for many 
purposes unrelated to mail delivery. Postal Service competitors like FedEx and UPS 
use the ZIP Code. But the ZIP Code also has been adopted by non~delivery entities 
as a geographic locator, providing a convenient if imperfect means of targeting 
populations for performing demographic research, setting insurance rates, estimating 
housing values, remitting state tax revenues back to localities, and directing 
advertising messages. 



-52-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-2 

Because ZIP Codes are based on the location of delivery post offices, tbey often 
do not correspond to political jurisdiction boundaries. This means that millions of 
Americans receive their mail from a post office in an adjacent town, village, or 
neighborhood, and their mailing address reflects tbe name and ZIP Code of that post 
offICe rather tban the jurisdiction where they actually live. This situation was not 
uncommon when ZIP Codes were first assigned 40 years ago, and it has become 
more common since then, particularly in rapidly growing suburban areas. The 
boundaries of many jurisdictions have changed witb growth, annexation, and the 
incorporation of new communities on tbe outskirts. At the same time, USPS has 
sought to reduce rather tban expand tbe number of post offices as its retail business 
model has changed, and in order to concentrate expensive labor-saving investments 
rather than duplicate tbem in nearby facilities. 

Problems Caused by Misalignment with Municipal Boundaries. 

The widespread use of ZIP Codes for non-postal purposes has exacerbated 
problems for tbose citizens whose mailing addresses do not match their actual town 
or city of residence, and ft'equently for tbe municipalities as well. A sample of the 
problems that have been brought to congressional attention includes: 

• Higher automobile insurance rates for drivers who live in the 
suburbs but ate charged city rates based on their ZIP Code. 

• Residents who are confused about where to vote in mtmicipal 
elections because they do not distinguish between tbeir voting and 
mailing addresses. 

• Sales tax revenues rebated by states to tbe cities where they are 
collected are often misdirected because they are collected by 
merchants with ZIP Codes in differentjnrisdictions, or by merchants 
who mail their products to customerslrnowing onlytbeir Zip Codes. 

• Citizens being sent jUly duty notices when they are not eligible to 
serve based on their actual residence. 

• Emergency service vehicles being misdirected by confusion over 
what town a call has come from, based on mailing address 
infonnation. 

• Homeowners in an expensive neighborhood complaining tbat their 
housing values are diminished because their mailing addresses place 
them in a less prestigious community. 

In addition, many communities lack a delivery post office and complain that the 
need to use mailing addresses from neighboring towns robs them oftheir community 
identity. For example, even tbough Haddon Township, NJ, is 3n incorporated 
municipality with a 2000 population of 14,651 people, it has no delivery post office 
and its residents receive mail from seven different nearby post offices, each with a 



-53-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-3 

different ZIP Code. The mailing address of the Haddon Township Municipal 
Building is 135 Haddon Avenue, Westmont, NJ 08108. 1 

Congressional Hearing Registers Concern 

These problems and others were aired in a 1990 hearing of a House postal 
subcommitte(l.' Ten M(lmbers of Congress described ZIP Code alignment problems 
in their districts, and statements were received from many local governments, as well 
as the National League of Cities. The hearing considered three bills (H.R. 2380, H.R. 
2902, and H.R. 4827) that would allow local governments, rather than 'the Postal 
Service, to determine local addresses or ZIP Code boundaries, as a solution to the 
widespread problems. 

USPS expressed strong opposition to these bills and said that depriving USPS 
of control over "the most basic tool of the postal trade ~ the mailing address" would 
be "disastrous.'" A USPS boundary survey found that more than 11 million 
deliveries were served by carriers who cross municipal boundaries, and estimated that 
if delivery boundaries were realigned to match muuicipal boundaries, 1 ,600 new 
postal facilities and 10,500 new carriers would be needed.'~ Also to be considered 
was the availability of additional ZIP Codes in certain large areas. At of the end of 
1989,924ofthe 1,000 possible three-digit combinations had already been assigned; 
in 20 areas, 90 or more cfthe 100 possible ZIP Codes had already been assigned; and 
in Hanston, all J 00 possible ZIP Codes had been used,' 

These arguments may have proved persuasive because the legislation nevel' 
advanced, nor have similar bills introduced in later Congresses. However, USPS also 
earned some criticism because of its "peremptory denials" of local suggestions and 
an approach to local suggestions that was variously characterized as "cold and 
haugbty," "Cllrsory," "unresponsiVe," "stonewalling," and "uncaring.'" The 
Government Accountability Office (GAO, then the General Accounting Office) 
examined postal case files on 26 municipal requests for ZIP Code changes, only 2 of 
which were approved by USPS. GAO reported that USPS could not only do a better 
job of providing facts and reasoning to explain its decisions in individual cases, it 
also could "do more to ' .. resolve problems caused by conflicts between municipal 
and ZIP Code boundaries.'" 

I See [http://www.haddontwp.com/townsbip.pbp]. 

2 U,S. Congress, House Committee on Post Office and Civil Service, Subcommittee on 
Postal Operations and Service, ZIP Code Boundories, hearingonH.R. 2380, H.R. 2902, and 
H.R. 4827, 101" Cong., 2" sess., June 7,1990 (Washington: GPO, 1990). Hereafter cited. 
as "ZIP Code Boundary Hearing." 

, ZIP Code B(}undary Hearing, p. 105. 

, ZIP Code Boundary Heal'ing, p. 92. 

, ZIP Code Boundary Hearing, p. 92. 

6 ZIP C(}de BoundalY Hooring, pp. 3, 38, 49,95,97. 

'U.S. Genom! Accounting Office, Conjlicts Between Postal and Municipal BoundarieN, 
(continued ... ) 



-54-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-4 

Postal Service Attempts To Resolve Problems 

Current USPS Process for Realigning ZIP Codes. 

In the years since the 1990 hearing and GAO's investigation, USPS has made 
a concerted effort to develop a process for the l'egular review of ZIP Code 
bOlll1daries. Under Section 439 of the Postal Operations Manual, postmasters are 
responsible for reviewing ZIP code assignments in their areas and proposing changes 
if operational and financial conditions justify them. Increased growth in a geographic 
area is the most common precipitating factor in such changes. A rule of thumb is that 
the establishment of25,000 new deliveries,8 or 50 carrier routes, is the threshold for 
review of the need for a ZIP Code change and possibly a new delivery station. 
Because changes are invariably sensitive locally, and often involved considel'able 
coordination and investment, approval from the area (regional) office and 
headquarters is required before changes can take effect. 

Most of the analysis required is based on operational considerations, but one of 
the questions postmasters must address asks whether mUllicipal boundaries will be 
crossed, and another asks whether mUllicipal officials have been asked to comment 
on the revised boundaries. The guidance requires that "officials should consider 
municipal boundaries and customer interests in all zone splits. If a ZIP Code that is 
being considered for adjustment crosses municipal boundaries, consult municipal 
offices before submitting the proposal, and consider all reasonable solutions."9 

Proposed changes must be sent to the area office by December in order for 11 

change to take place in July ofthe following year. Changes are made once per year, 
on July 1, because mail volume is at a low point then. Concentrating changes on this 
date is also advantageous to large mailers, wbo generate most of the mail volume, 
because they can make the necessary changes to their mailing lists in one operation 
before the heavy autUl1l!1 mailings begin. 

Process for Considering Community or Municipality Suggestions. 

While the requirement for a regular review of ZIP Code boundaries has long 
existed because it is an operational necessity, the process for considering requests 
from municipalities and community groups for ZIP Code changes dates to March 
1991, not long after the congressional hearing referenced above. It has taken some 
time for the process to become a settled practice and for USPS to adopt a willingness 
to consider requests for boundary adjustments that are based solely on "community 
identity" concerns. A key event was a November 18, 1999, directive to the vice 
presidents in charge of each of the nine postal areas tluID John E. Potter (now 

7 ( ... continued) 
GAO/T-GGD-90-47,June7,1990,pp.14-16,23. 

, "Deliveries" would be a fraction of population growth in an area, since most delivery 
points are households with multiple occupants. 

'U.S. Postal Service, Postal Operations Manual, Section 439.211, Washington,DC, Nov. 
29,2001. 



-55-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-5 

Postmaster General, then seninr vice president for operations) and Deborah Wllhite, 
senior vice president for government relations and public policy. The memorandum 
noted that a review of correspondence with the public on the issue of ZIP Code 
changes "has indicated a need for general improvement." The memorandum then 
reemphasized in emphatic language the expectation that USPS would give careful, 
objective consideration to community wishes, even if they are based only on 
"identity" considerations. 

As indicated when the Review Process was first implemented in 1991, "just 
saying no" does not make identity issues go away. In fact, growth and the 
increasing use of ZIP Codes as database links and demographic tools tend to 
make them worse over time. If you receive a municipal identity request and 

. a reasonable means offull or partial accommodation can be ideutified, offer 
It, apply tbe customer survey process, alld move on. Requests call be denied, 
but only based on appropriate, objective reasons that are consistent with the 
Review Pmcess .... 

(p)ostal policy is to offer any reasonable administrative or operational 
accommodation that call correct, or alleviate, the municipal identity concerns. 
Tbe Objective is to find ways to say "yes," uot excuses for saying "uo." Do 
not deny a request out of concern that "other communities will want the same 
thing." Others will make requests .... In the case of identity, customers measure 
the Postal Service by its impact on their daily lives. Wben mailing identities 
generate negative effects on our customers' properties, households and 
associ ations, even when caused by third-pal'ty actions, they are perceived as "bad 
service" and intrusive bureaucl'acy. (Emphasis in original.) 

What the Process Requires. 

The boundary review process requires municipality and community groups that 
desire a ZIP Code change to submit the reqnest in writing to the manager of the 
district (there are 80 districts), with any rationale and justification. The local 
postmaster is not the decision maker; his or her only responsibility is to forward any 
requC<!ts received to the district level and provide information if requested for the 
evaluation. District mooagers are to identify all relevant issues and potential 
solutions to them, quantify the specific operational impacts and feasibility of the 
request, meet with proponent groups to discuss issues and explain potential 
alternatives, and provide a determination within 60 days. lfthe proposal is denied, 
the district manager must advise the proponent in writing, giving the specific reasons 
for denial. The response must be based on the results of the analysis and must advise 
the proponent of the appeal process. 

If the request is feasible, the process then requires a formal survey of alI of the 
customers who would be affected by the proposed change. This is an important step, 
because it might reveal that the proponent group was an activist minority and most 
customers would prefer not to notify their correspondents, change their magazine 
SUbscriptions, replace their stationery, go to a different post office to pick up left
notice mail, or perhaps to identify with a different "community identity." A simple 
majority of the survey respondents is adequate for approval. 



-56-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS·6 

Finally, there is a process in place for customers to appeal to headquarters an 
adverse USPS determination of a community's request for a change in ZIP Code 
boundaries when "munioipal identity" issues are involved. Any proponent may 
appeal an adverse decision to the manager of delivery operations, except in cases 
where a potential accommodation was not implemented because a majority of 
affected customers did not support it in the survey. 

Within delivery operations at headquarters, an operations specialist who works 
full time on boundary review appeals tal(es over the case file and investigates to 
determine whether the district provided "reasonable accommodation" to the proposed 
change. Having knowledge of situations all over the country, and a variety of 
accommodations that have been implemented, the operations specialist is in a good 
position to judge whether the distriot manager has fully applied the spirit and letter 
of the 1999 guidance (made available to proponents on request) to "find ways to say 
'yes.'" The manager of delivery operations must make a final decision on the appeal 
within 60 days. 

There is some evidence that the boundary review process is having some 
positive effect. USPS has not kept statistics on resolutions in recent years, but it did 
report that in 1991, the first year, accommodations were reached in 64% of the first 
28 reviews to be completed. lo Steve Burkholder, mayor ofLa](ewood, CO, and point 
person for the National League of Cities on the issue, told CRS that he believed 
USPS was open to constructive dialogue and sincerely interested in resolving 
problems, and that if other cities followed the boundary review procedure, a 
reasonable accommodation could often be reached. 11 

Possible Accommodations To Resolve ZIP Code Complaints 

The most common form of request to the Postal Service (and to, Members of 
Congress) is for "a new ZIP Code" for a specific area. Most customers do not realize 
that a new, unique ZIP Code usually accompanies the creation of a new delivery post 
office. They also do not realize dlat a delivery post office (as opposed to a retail 
station) is a major investment, requil'ing lots of space, loading docks, sorting 
equipment, access to major transportation routes, and negotiations with several 
unions over work assignment~. However, USPS believes that such requests "are 
fundamentally identity issues" and are made because customers perceive a new ZIP 
Code as "the only means of achieving postal identity."" In fact, other options are 
often available and much simpler to achieve. 

Sometimes, when excess capacity exists, fairly minor adjustments in carrier 
routes can be made that will solve at least part of a community's boundary problem. 
It is complicated to make changes in the status quo, and therefore a disincentive 

10 U.S. Postal Service, Comprehensive Statement on Postal Operations, 1991 (Washington, 
1992), p. 47. 

11 Telephone intel'View, June 14,2006. 

12 USPS Internal Memorandum to Vice Pl'esidents, Area Operations, "Proper Treatment of 
Appeals, ZIP Code Boundary Review Process," Nov. 18, 1999, p. 2. 



-57-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-7 

exists to do so, but sometimes it can be accomplished without unacceptable 
disruption. 

A compromise solution that does not involve changing USPS delivery structure 
is to allow customers to use an alter'native city name in the last line of their address, 
while not changing the ZIP Code. For example, the rapidly growing city of Windsor 
Heights, IA, still lacks its own post office, but USPS sorting machines will accept the 
use of "Windsor Heights, lA, 50311" rather than requiring that cllstomers in that area 
use "Des Moines, IA 50311," which is where their post office is located. USPS will 
also accept Windsor Heights as a valid city nanle for ZIP Codes 50312 and 50322-
post offices in Des Moines and Urbandale, respectively, that deliver the rest of the 
mail to Windsor Heights residents.!' When a large portion of the mail was sorted 
manually, this option could have caused mis-sorting and delayed mail, but today 
almost all mail is sorted by compnter. It should be noted that this alternative can help 
ameliorate community identity issues, but not issues arising from use of ZIP Codes 
for demographic "redlining." 

Another option that can address community identity concerns is for 
municipalities and individuals to use a community designation on the second line 
(above the street designation) of their address. Since USPS sorting technology pays 
attention only to the last two lines, this does not disrupt delivery and does not require 
special permission. 

Finally, USPS routinely works with large mailers to improve their address files, 
sorting in some cases to 11 digits rather than the ZIP Code's 5 digits. Ifmailers care, 
it should not be difficult to refine municipal mailing lists to conform to political 
jurisdictions and eliminate errors based on crude use ofthe five-digit code. 

What Can a Member of Congress Do? 

When a Member's office receives a request for assistance in persuading USPS 
that a new ZIP Code or a new post office is needed in a certain area, the most 
important thing to ascertain at the outset is the underlying reason for the request. If 
the constituents are complaining about poor delivery service, then the Postal Sel'vice 
is likely to take the complaints seriously, determine ifthey have merit, and look for 
causes if they do. USPS is a customer service organization, and realizes it cannot 
ignore allegations of shortfalls in service expectations. If indeed population growth 
or obsolescence of a delivery facility are leading to service problems, USPS wants 
to Imow it and to resolve the problems, including any that may be traced to the 
condition of a delivery facility or confusion over ZIP Code boundal"ies. Although 
Congress does not appropriate money for postal construction projects, and there is 
no role for Congress in the process by which facilities investments arc given p1"iority, 
a Member can expect that a referral of service complaints to the USPS government 
relations staffwill get attention and a response, though quite possibly no more than 
the citizens would get by bl"inging their complaints to USPS directly. 

13 ZIP Codes can be accessed online at [http://zip4.usps.com/zip4/citytown.jspj. 



-58-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 3.pdf

CRS-8 

More likely, the request has nothing to do with delivery service, but rather stems 
from community identity issues, and concern centers on the ZIP Code. Constituents 
are frequently unaware of the boundary review process. In many cases, constituents 
or municipal officials have approached a letter carrier or local postmaster and been 
told that an adjustment would be disruptive and impractical. The local postmaster 
has no power or incentive to make changes and may be unaware oflhe headqualters 
instructions to make "every reasonable effort" to reach an accommodation. 

When informed of the boundary review process, and of tbe availability of a 
formal appeal ifasatisfactory accommodation is not reached, municipal officials and 
community groups should feel empowered to take the steps that tbe process requires. 
While in the past USPS tended to brush oft'complaints based on community identity 
issues, there is considerable evidence tbat this is no longer the case. Its internal 
policies (as described above) quite firmly state that a cursory, negative response is 
no longer permissible. Even if an accommodation Call110t be reached, the 
requirement to fully explain tbe reasons why based on a comprehensive review of 
operational and cost data is insisted on by headquaJ'ters, A full explanation at least 
defuses the argument tbat tbe constituents aJ'e dealing witb all uncaring, unresponsive 
bureaucracy tbat can only be brought to Ilee1 through congressional pressure. 

OccasiolJRlly, Members will be requested to introduce legislation to force USPS 
to align ZIP Code boundaries in a certain way, often to correspond to municipal 
boundaries. Legislation of this nature has never succeeded in the past, and 
constituents should not expect that such legislation would receive serious 
consideration. Even behind-the-scenes pressure is less effective on the Postal Service 
than it can be with other, less independent agencies. USPS receives no 
appropriations from Congress for its operations,14 and the Postal Reorganization Act 
of 1970" has several provisions designed to shield it from political interference. 

Finally, constituents should not be advised tbat tlley may simply substitute their 
preferred city name before the ZIP Code in an address line, witbout receiving USPS 
permission to do so, USPS computers have internal checks that compare the ZIP 
Code witb the proper city name, and iftbe two do not match, default sequences come 
in to play and mail will very likely be directed to the wrong delivery post office, 
certainly causing delay and possibly callsingtbemail to be returned as undeliverable. 

'4 For more explanation, see CRS Report RS21025, The Poslal Revenue Forgone 
Appropriation: Overview and Current Issue .• , by Nye Stevens. 

" P.L. 91-375; 84 Stat. 719; 39 U.s.C. 101 et seq. 



November! ,2014 

Mr. Mark Martinez, District Manager 
United States Postal Service 
Bay Valley District 
1750 Lundy Avenue 
San Jose, CA 95101-7024 

Subject: ZIP CODE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT 

Dear Mr. Martinez: 

This letter is to request a ZIP Code boundary adjus1:rI 
with the City of Capitola municipal 
currently applied to Heritage Lane and 

The 95010 ZIP Code is entirely contai 
largely represents eastern portions of 
County. Capitola within 
with the assigned east 
tax assessments, 

The City of Capitola 
processing and aellvery 
bou . 

420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California 95010 

Telephone: (831) 475··7300 
FAX: (831) 479-8879 

Website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us 

the postal boundary to coincide 
ity requests the 95062 ZIP Code 

,,,nC1F!rI to 95010. 

whereas the 95062 ZIP Code 
unincorporated Santa Cruz 

have reported ongoing issues 
property values, incorrect sales 

issues, and a lack of community identity. 

nations are assigned to ensure efficient mail 
to work with USPS to identify a ZIP Code 

delivery service while also recognizing the 

desig nation on Heritage Lane was considered by the 
1!dilnF!rI the request based on service and safety impacts. 

Unlike ustment request which focused solely on Heritage Lane, the City 
respectfully examine an adjustment scenario which includes Heritage Lane 
AND any to provide a logical, safe, and efficient geographic delivery 
area. By area, it is our hope that a postal delivery model can be 
developed which i u-turn movements or service inefficiencies. Surrounding 
streets which should as part of this request include, but are not limited to: Capitola 
Road, Thompson Avenue, Bulb Avenue, 38th Avenue, and Clares Street 

Thank you for you consideration. If you have any questions, please contact Rich Grunow, 
Community Development Director, at 831.475.7300 or by email atrgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

Respectfully, 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
City of Capitola 

-59-

Item #: 8.G. Attach 4.pdf

November!> , 2014 

Mr. Mark Martinez, District Manager 
United States Postal Service 
Bay Valley District 
1750 Lundy Avenue 
San Jose, CA 95101-7024 

Subject: ZIP CODE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT 

Dear Mr. Martinez: 

This letter is to request a ZIP Code boundary adjus1:ri 
with the City of Capitola municipal 
currently applied to Heritage Lane and 

The 95010 ZIP Code is entirely cDrltainec 
largely represents eastern portions of 
County. Capitola . within 
with the assigned east 
tax assessments, 

The City of Capitola 
processing and dellver~ 
boundary 

420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California '15010 

Telephone: (831) 475··7300 
FAX: (831) 479-8879 

Website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us 

the postal boundary to coincide 
City requests the 95062 ZIP Code 

to 95010. 

whereas the 95062 ZIP Code 
unincorporated Santa Cruz 

have reported ongoing issues 
property values, incorrect sales 

issues, and a lack of community identity. 

n<l!';nr", are assigned to ensure efficient mail 
to work with USPS to identify a ZIP Code 

delivery service while also recognizing the 

designation on Heritage Lane was considered by the 
""lilnprl the request based on service and safety impacts. 

Unlike ,,,lrm,,,1 request which focused solely on Heritage Lane, the City 
respectfully examine an adjustment scenario which includes Heritage Lane 
AND any to provide a logical, safe, and efficient geographic delivery 
area. By raphic area, it is our hope that a postal delivery model can be 
developed which u-turn movements or service inefficiencies. Surrounding 
streets which should as part of this request include, but are not limited to: Capitola 
Road, Thompson Avenue, Bulb Avenue, 38th Avenue, and Clares Street 

Thank you for you consideration. If you have any questions, please contact Rich Grunow, 
Community Development Director, at 831.475.7300 or by email atrgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

Respectfully, 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
City of Capitola 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-60-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13,2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

.1. Water Rock Construction, $674,260 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Reviewed and Fo 
by City Manager' ---1~+ 

R:ICITY COUNCILlAgenda Staff ReportsI2014 Agenda Reportsl11 13 1418.H. Liability Claims_SR.docx -61-

Item #: 8.H. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13,2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

.1. Water Rock Construction, $674,260 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Reviewed and Fo 
by City Manager' ---\""""-+-

R:ICITY COUNCILlAgenda Staff ReportsI2014 Agenda Reportsl11 13 1418.H. Liability Claims_SR.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-62-



-63-

Item #: 8.I. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF OCTOBER 23, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: LOWER PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT PROJECT 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project, constructed by 
Water Rock Construction, as complete at a final cost of $1,342,502, and authorize the Director of 
Public Works to release the contract retention of $64,864.30 in 35 days following the recordation of 
the attached Notice of Completion. 

~ACKGROUND: Water Rock Construction has completed all work on the new parking lot in the 
former Pacific Cove Mobilehome Park. The parking lot first opened for weekends on May 3, 2014, 
for the Open Streets Capitola event and was fully opened on May 23, 2014. 

Since the opening, the contractor and the City have been in discussions regarding final pay 
quantities and amounts, and a dispute has arisen and litigation threatened. Approval of the Notice 
of Completion is based on the City's approved costs and will allow release of the retention amount 
to the contractor. The City will retain the right to seek liquidated damages from the contractor 
should they continue to pursue claims against the City. 

DISCUSSION: The final contract cost of $1,342,502 included eleven contract change orders and 
several agreed upon adjustments to the quantities. The final cost was $246,631 higher than the 
amended contract amount. A project cost summary is included as Attachment 2. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Financing for this project was obtained through the combination of a $1.3 million 
low interest rate loan through the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank 
(IBank) and $200,000 of City funds to repair retaining walls damaged in the 2011 flood. The City 
has received payment from the loan for all but $68,625 which will be received following the filing of 
the Notice of Completion. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Notice of Completion 
2. Final Cost Summary 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Fn~ded 
By City Manage~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 1314\8.1. Lower Pac Cove NOC.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-64-



-65-

Item #: 8.I. Attach 1.pdf

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

City of Capitola 
Public Works Department 
Attn: Steven Jesberg 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California 95010 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

THIS INSTRUMENT IS BEING RECORDED FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA. 
NO RECORDING FEE IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE §27383. 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Capitola, owner of the property hereinafter described, 
whose address is 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, has caused a work of improvements 
more particularly described as follows: 

PROJECT NAME: Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Surface Parking Lot Construction 

to be constructed on property more particularly described as follows: 

DESCRIPTION: 

ADDRESS: 426 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

APN: 035-141-33 

The work of the improvement was completed by: 

CONTRACTOR: Water Rock Construction 

ADDRESS: 2314 Walsh Avenue, Santa Clara, CA 95051 

The work of the improvements was actually completed on the 23rd day of May 2014, and accepted by 
the City Council of said City on the 13th day of November 2014 

Signature of City Official: _ ___________ _ 

The undersigned certifies that he is an officer of the City of Capitola, that he has read the foregoing 
Notice of Completion and knows the content thereof; and that the same is true of his own knowledge, 
except as to those matters which are therein stated on information or belief, and as to those matters 
that he believes to be true. I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
Executed at the City of Capitola, County of Santa Cruz, State of California. 

Steven E. Jesberg 
Director of Public Works 

Signed: _______ ________ _ 

Date: 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-66-



-67-

Item
 #: 8.I. A

ttach
 2.p

d
f

City of Capitola 
Final Cost Summary 

Item No. Item Description 
1 MOBILIZATION 

2 TREE REMOVAL 

3 TREE PROTECTION FENCING 

4 DEMOLITION 

5 EARTHWORK 

6 SLIDE REPAIR 

7 SITE RETANING WALLS 
New Wood Walls 
Wood Wall Repairs 
Wood Tie-Ins 

8 ASPHALT CONCRETE BERM / DIKE 

9 FLUSH CONCRETE CURB 

10 WHEEL STOPS 

Wheel Stop Steaks 

11 DECOMPOSED GRANITE 

12 GRAVEL GRID PAVER 

13 3/8" CLEAN CRUSHED DRAIN ROCK 

14 3/4" CLEAN CRUSHED DRAIN ROCK 

15 MIRAFI HP 370 FABRIC 

16 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

17 CAL TRANS CLASS 2 AGGREGATE BASE ROCK 

18 SUBGRADE RECOMPACTION 

19 6 MIL LINER 

20 SDCO 

21 SDMH 

22 SDMH MODIFY EXISTING 

23 PERMEABLE PAVERS 

24 CATCH BASIN 18X18 

25 BUBBLER CATCH BASIN 18X18 

26 OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE BIO 18X18 

27 OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE 12X12 

Catch Basin Behind Wall 

28 BIORETENTION 

Project: Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 

Actual 
Bid Final 

Unit Quantity Quantity Diff 
LS 1 1 0 

EA 13 9 -4 

LF 261 268 7 

SF 92,642 92642 0 

LS 1 1 0 

LS 1 1 0 

SF 1,192 1920.1 728 
SF 77.17 77 
SF 41 41 
SF 60.20 60 
LF 911 816.55 -94 

LF 160 215.5 56 

EA 223 223 0 

LS 1 1 

CY 50 67 17 

SF 35,743 34242 -1,501 

CY 120 120 0 

CY 721 721 0 

SY 4,149 4149 0 

TON 890 810.1 -80 

TON 2,830 2789.23 -41 

CY 2,880 0 -2,880 

LF 2,244 2244 0 

EA 33 39 6 

EA 3 3 0 

EA 4 4 0 

SF 1,596 1596 0 

EA 3 12 9 

EA 1 2 1 

EA 6 9 3 

EA 23 24 1 

EA 6 

SF 2,699 2699 0 

Page 1 of 3 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Unit 
Cost 

50,000.00 

698.00 

11.00 

0.50 

80,000.00 

42,000.00 

112.00 
75.00 
75.00 
56.00 
11.00 

41.00 

50.00 

2,354.00 

294.00 

3.00 

94.00 

92.00 

4.00 

142.00 

23.00 

7.00 

4.00 

336.00 

12,000.00 

1,600.00 

5.00 

2,500.00 

445.00 

1,200.00 

750.00 

500.00 

3.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

Final 
Cost 
50,000.00 

6,282.00 

2,948.00 

46,321.00 

80,000.00 

42,000.00 

215,054.00 
5,788.00 
3,075.00 
3,371 .00 
8,982.00 

8,835.50 

11,150.00 

2,354.00 

19,698.00 

102,726.00 

11,280.00 

66,332.00 

16,596.00 

115,034.20 

64,152.29 

-
8,976.00 

13,104.00 

36,000.00 

6,400.00 

7,980.00 

30,000.00 

890.00 

10,800.00 

18,000.00 

3,000.00 

8,097.00 

Difference 
$ -
$ (2,792) 

$ 77 

$ -
$ --
$ -
$ 81,550 
$ 5,788 
$ 3,075 
$ 3,371 
$ (1,039) 

$ 2,276 

$ -
$ 2,354 

$ 4,998 

$ (4,503) 

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ (11,346) 

$ (938) 

$ (20,160) 

$ -
$ 2,016 

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 22,500 

$ 445 

$ 3,600 

$ 750 

$ -
$ -



-68-

Item
 #: 8.I. A

ttach
 2.p

d
f

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

CCO#1 

CCO#2 

CCO#3 

CCO#4 

CCO#5 

CCO#6 

CCO#7 

CCO#8 

CCO#9 

CCO#10 
CCO #11 

Summary 
Original Bid: 

Changes: 
Final Cost: 

4" PERFORATED SD LINE 

6" SD LINE 

8" SO LINE 

12" SD LINE 

THERMO PLASTIC STRIPING AND MARKINGS 

Credit for Thermoplasitic 

LIGHTING 

LANDSCAPING 

RESTROOM REMODEL 

Concrete Curb & Gutter 

Concrete Sidewalk 

Pay Station Slabs 

1-1/2" Water Line 

Concrete Shower Slab 

Adjust Utility to Finish Grade 

Remove and Replace Pavement 

Contract Chanae Orders 
SWPPP 

Prepare Building Pad for Modular Building (+2 days) 

Cut, Handle, Bag & Dispose of ACP sanitary pipe 

Misc. Items (Trash,Wall Demo,Modular Footings) 

Lean Concrete Cap on ex. 72" CMP 

Install 8" of 3" stone over Mirafi 500x or equivalent (T& 

Dispose of AC with Petromat 

Utilities @ Modular, Sanitrary repair & Misc. items 

Additional Work @ Modular & Misc. Work 

Railing @ Modular, Railing @ City Hall & Misc. Work 
Misc. Quantity Adjustments 

$ 
$ 
$ 

1,095,871 

246,631 
1,342,502 

LF 726 

LF 435 

LF 909 

LF 50 

SF 2,152 

LS 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LF 130 

SF 665 

EA 3 

LF 500 

LS 1 

EA 10 

SF 2,000 

LS 1 

LS 1 

T&M 1 

T&M 1 

T&M 1 

T&M 1 

Ton 482 

T&M 1 

T&M 1 

T&M 1 
LS 1 

Page 2 of 3 

726 0 $ 1.00 $ 
503 68 $ 15.00 $ 
979 70 $ 25.00 $ 

50 0 $ 35.00 $ 
2152 0 $ 8.00 $ 

-1 -1 $ 3,180.00 $ 
1 0 $ 52,000.00 $ 
1 0 $ 19,600.00 $ 
0 0 $ 

179.4 49 $ 40.00 $ 
840.4 175 $ 15.00 $ 

3 0 $ 1,300.00 $ 
380 -120 $ 23.00 $ 

0 -1 $ 
. 10 0 $ 355.00 $ 
2343 343 $ 4.00 $ 

Contract Bid Items Total $ 

1.0 

1.0 

0.9 

1.0 

0.0 

0.7 

431 .5 

0.9 

0.9 

0.9 
1.0 

0.0 $ 2,800.00 $ 
0.0 $ 2,200.00 $ 
-0.1 $ 5,000.00 $ 
0.0 $ 10,000.00 $ 
-1.0 $ 12,000.00 $ 
-0.3 $ 37,500.00 $ 

-50.5 $ 8.29 $ 
-0.1 $ 18,000.00 $ 
-0.1 $ 15,000.00 $ 
-0.1 $ 30,000.00 $ 
0.0 45209.62 $ 

Total Change Orders $ 

Final Contract Costs $ 
5% Retention $ 
Paid to date $ 

726.00 $ -
7,545.00 $ 1,020 

24,475.00 $ 1,750 
1,750.00 $ -

17,216.00 $ -
(3,180.00) $ (3,180) 
52,000.00 $ -
19,600.00 $ -

- $ -
7,176.00 $ 1,976 

12,606.00 $ 2,631 
3,900.00 $ -
8,740.00 $ (2,760) 

- $ -
3,550.00 $ -
9,372.00 $ 1,372 

1,190,702 

2,800.00 $ 2,800 

2,200.00 $ 2,200 
4,259.00 $ 4,259 

9,938.00 $ 9,938 

575.00 $ 575 

26,837.00 $ 26,837 

3,577.00 $ 3,577 

16,075.00 $ 16,075 

13,973.00 $ 13,973 

26,356.00 $ 26,356 
45,209.52 $ 45,210 

151,799.52 

1,342,502 

64,864.30 ceo #11 paid in full 

1,277,637.21 



-69-

Item #: 8.J. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF STATE STANDARD AGREEMENT 
FOR HOUSING RELATED PARKS PROGRAM GRANT FOR RIPSIN PARK 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution authorizing execution of State Standard Agreement 
for Housing Related Parks Program Grant for renovation of Rispin Park. 

BACKGROUND: The State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development 
(Department) issued a Notice of Funding Availability dated October 2, 2013 (NOFA), under its 
Housing-Related Parks (HRP) Program. This program is funded through the Housing and Emergency 
Shelter Trust Fund Act of 2006 (Prop 1 C). The 2013 NOFA made $25 million available to fund the 
creation and renovation of parks and community recreation facilities that benefit the community and 
add to the quality of life. 

On December 12, 2013, the City Council authorized submittal of a grant application. The grant awards 
were calculated based upon the number of bedrooms in qualifying affordable housing units assisted 
by Capitola between January 1, 2010, and June 30, 2013. Qualifying units must have been newly-built 
or preserved, with affordability covenants. Two affordable housing projects met the criteria: Bay 
Avenue Senior Apartments (all 108 units, including 33 new units); and Castle Mobile Home Park (33 
units). 

The City was recently notified that it has received the award. Awards were calculated based upon the 
number of bedrooms in qualifying affordable housing units. The City also qualified for Bonus Awards 
for new construction units, infill units, very-low income units, and park-deficient communities. Using 
the State's calculation algorithm, the City was awarded $383,925 for renovation of Rispin Park. 

DISCUSSION: These grant funds would be used for improvements at the Rispin property, including: 
(1) Restoration of Rispin Gardens; (2) Accessible pathways; (3) Lighting for security and public 
access throughout the property; (4) Interpretive elements focusing on the historic site and existing 
natural resources; and (5) Partial removal/lowering of the wall along Wharf Road, increasing property 
visibility from the road while retaining elements of the historical wall . 

This Resolution is to authorize execution of the State of California Standard Agreement Housing 
Related Parks Program Grant. 

A IT ACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Steve Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager: \------t.:-

R: \CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\ I I 13 14\8.1. Rispin-HRPP Grant A ward SR.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-70-



-71-

Item #: 8.J. Attach 1.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF STATE STANDARD AGREEMENT 

FOR HOUSING RELATED PARKS PROGRAM GRANT 

WHEREAS: 

A. The State of California Department of Housing and Community Development (the Department) 
issued a Notice of Funding Availability dated October 2, 2013 (NOFA), under its Housing-Related 
Parks (HRP) Program. 

B. By Resolution No. 3972, the City of Capitola was authorized to apply for a HRP Program Grant 
and submitted the 2013 Designated Program Year Application Package released by the 
Department for the HRP Program. 

C. The Department is authorized to approve funding allocations for the HRP Program, subject to the 
terms and conditions of the NOFA, Program Guidelines, Application Package, and Standard 
Agreement. 

D. The Department awarded the City of Capitola an HRP Program Grant in the amount of $383,925. 

THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The City of Capitola is hereby authorized and directed to enter into, execute, and {JE;lliver a State 
of California Standard Agreement (Standard Agreement), for an HRP Program Grant in the 
amount of $383,925, and any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or 
appropriate to secure the HRP Program Grant from the Department, and all amendments thereto 
(collectively, the "HRP Grant Documents"). 

2. The City of Capitola shall be subj~ct to the terms and cO{lditicms as specified in the Standard 
Agreement. Funds are to be used foraliowable·capitaLassetproject expenditures to be identified 
in Exhibit A of the Standard Agreement. The application in full is incorporated as part of the 
Standard Agreem~t. Any :and all aGtivities funded, information provided, and timelines 
represented in the application are enfo~ceable through the Standard Agreement. Applicant 
hereby agrees to use the furds for eligib~e capital asset(s) in the manner presented in the 
application as approved by the Department ahd in accordance with the NOFA and Program 
Guidelines and Applfcation-'Packa~e. 

3. T"hat the City Manager is authorized to execute the HRP Grant Documents as required by the 
Department for participation in the HRP Program. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that theaoove an,d fO(egoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 13th day of November, 2014, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-72-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: WHARF ROAD MURAL EXTENSION- PUBLIC ART PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the Wharf Road Mural Extension Public Art Project; and 2) 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional service agreement with the artist, John Ton for 
an amount not to exceed $12,000. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council authorized the original Wharf Road Mural project in July of 2010. 
The current mural is located on the retaining wall on the west side of Wharf Road, between the 
railroad trestle and Prospect Avenue. The selected artist was Jon Ton, a well known mural artist in 
northern California. The Art & Cultural Commission is recommending the extension of the mural by the 
same artist along Wharf Road under the railroad trestle. 

DISCUSSION: The original mural depicts beach goers traveling to the Village surrounded by begonia 
flowers. The new concept envisioned by the Art & Cultural Commission is to extend the same scene 
along the railroad trestle walls. The area for the mural extension is owned by the Santa Cruz County 
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), therefore this project will also need to be brought to their 
board for consideration. Mr. Ton has agree to perform the work with the assistance of a local artist, 
Mia Negre who assisted him with the original mural. · 

The Art & Cultural Commission approved the design concept at their meeting held on October 14, 
2014. If the City Council should approve the mural extension, staff will bring the project to the RTC for 
their consideration in December. If approved by the RTC, work can begin as soon as January 2015, 
dependant upon the weather. 

According to Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.56.050, the City Council must approve the art work 
and artist before finalizing the project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total funding required for this project is $12,000 from the Public Art Fund. $10,000 
for the installation, and $2,000 for additional expenses related to the installation. Funding is derived 
from development fees as required by the Municipal Code. This fund is restricted in its use for the 
acquisition, installation, and improvement of public art projects. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Contract 
2. Proposed design (to be displayed at the meeting) 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

R~;owe<t '"" Fo~ by City Manager: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffRcports\2014 Agenda Reports\ II 13 14\9.A. WharfRd Mural Extension_str.docx -73-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: WHARF ROAD MURAL EXTENSION - PUBLIC ART PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the Wharf Road Mural Extension Public Art Project; and 2) 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional service agreement with the artist, John Ton for 
an amount not to exceed $12,000. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council authorized the original Wharf Road Mural project in July of 2010. 
The current mural is located on the retaining wall on the west side of Wharf Road, between the 
railroad trestle and Prospect Avenue. The selected artist was Jon Ton, a well known mural artist in 
northern California. The Art & Cultural Commission is recommending the extension of the mural by the 
same artist along Wharf Road under the railroad trestle. 

DISCUSSION: The original mural depicts beach goers traveling to the Village surrounded by begonia 
flowers. The new concept envisioned by the Art & Cultural Commission is to extend the same scene 
along the railroad trestle walls. The area for the mural extension is owned by the Santa Cruz County 
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), therefore this project will also need to be brought to their 
board for consideration. Mr. Ton has agree to perform the work with the assistance of a local artist, 
Mia Negre who assisted him with the original mural. . 

The Art & Cultural Commission approved the design concept at their meeting held on October 14, 
2014. If the City Council should approve the mural extension, staff will bring the project to the RTC for 
their consideration in December. If approved by the RTC, work can begin as soon as January 2015, 
dependant upon the weather. 

According to Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.56.050, the City Council must approve the art work 
and artist before finalizing the project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total funding required for this project is $12,000 from the Public Art Fund. $10,000 
for the installation, and $2,000 for additional expenses related to the installation. Funding is derived 
from development fees as required by the Municipal Code. This fund is restricted in its use for the 
acquisition, installation, and improvement of public art projects. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Contract 
2. Proposed design (to be displayed at the meeting) 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

R~; ... d '"d Fo't 
by City Manager: 

R;\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Rcports\2014 Agenda Reports\1! 13 14\9.A. WharfRd Mural Extensioll_str.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-74-



-75-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Wharf Road Mural Extension 
John Ton 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on , 201_, by and between the City of 
Capitola, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called "City" and John Ton, hereinafter called "Consultant". 

WHEREAS, City desires certain services described in Appendix One and Consultant is capable 
of providing and desires to provide these services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, City and Consultant for the consideration and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter specified agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 
Scope of Services 

The services to be performed under this Agreement are for the Wharf Road Mural Extension and 
further detailed in Appendix One. 

SECTION 2 
Duties of Consultant 

All work performed by Consultant, or under its direction, shall be sufficient to satisfy the City's 
objectives for entering into this Agreement and shall be rendered in accordance with the generally 
accepted practices, and to the standards of, Consultant's profession. 

Consultant shall not undertake any work beyond the scope of work set forth in Appendix One 
unless such additional work is approved in advance and in writing by City. The cost of such additional 
work shall be reimbursed to Consultant by City on the same basis as provided for in Section 4. 

If, in the prosecution of the work, it is necessary to conduct field operations, security and safety of 
the job site will be the Consultant's responsibility excluding, nevertheless, the security and safety of any 
facility of City within the job site which is not under the Consultant's control. 

Consultant shall meet with Lisa Murphy, called "Director," or other City personnel, or third parties 
as necessary, on all matters connected with carrying out of Consultant's services described in Appendix 
One. Such meetings shall be held at the request of either party hereto. Review and City approval of 
completed work shall be obtained monthly, or at such intervals as may be mutually agreed upon, during 
the course of this work. 

SECTION 3 
Duties of the City 

City shall make available to Consultant all data and information in the City's possession which 
City deems necessary to the preparation and execution of the work, and City shall actively aid and assist 
Consultant in obtaining such information from other agencies and individuals as necessary. 

The Director may authorize a staff person to serve as his or her representative for conferring with 
Consultant relative to Consultant's services. The work in progress hereunder shall be reviewed from time 
to time by City at the discretion of City or upon the request of Consultant. If the work is satisfactory, it will 



-76-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13, 2014 
Wharf Road Mural ' 
John Ton 
Page 2 

be approved. If the work is not satisfactory, City will inform Consultant of the changes or revisions 
necessary to secure approval. 

SECTION 4 
Fees and Payment 

Payment for the Consultant's services shall be made upon a schedule and within the limit, or 
limits shown, upon Appendix Two. Such payment shall be considered the full compensation for all 
personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant in carrying out the work. If Consultant 
is compensated on an hourly basis, Consultant shall track the number of hours Consultant, and each of 
Consultant's employees, has worked under this Agreement during each fiscal year (July 1 through June 
30) and Consultant shall immediately notify City when the number of hours worked during any fiscal year 
by any of Consultant's employees reaches 900 hours. In addition each invoice submitted by Consultant 
to City shall specify the number of hours to date Consultant, and each of Consultant's employees, has 
worked under this Agreement during the current fiscal year. 

SECTION 5 
Changes in Work 

City may order major changes in scope or character of the work, either decreasing or increasing 
the scope of Consultant's services. No changes in the Scope of Work as described in Appendix One 
shall be made without the City's written approval. Any change requiring compensation in excess of the 
sum specified in Appendix Two shall be approved in advance in writing by the City. 

SECTION 6 
Time of Beginning and Schedule for Completion 

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will terminate on the 
earlier of: 

• The date Consultant completes the services required by this Agreement, as agreed by the City; or 

• The date either party terminates the Agreement as provided below. 

Work shall begin on or about January 1, 2014. 

In the event that major changes are ordered or Consultant is delayed in performance of its 
services by circumstances beyond its control, the City will grant Consultant a reasonable adjustment in 
the schedule for completion provided that to do so would not frustrate the City's objective for entering into 
this Agreement. Consultant must submit all claims for adjustments to City within thirty calendar days of 
the time of occurrence of circumstances necessitating the adjustment. 

SECTION 7 
Termination 

City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving ten days written 
notice to Consultant. Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to City should the 
City fail to fulfill its duties as set forth in this Agreement. In the event of termination, City shall pay the 
Consultant for all services performed and accepted under this Agreement up to the date of termination. 



-77-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13, 2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 3 

SECTION 8 
Insurance 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage 
(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 

2. Insurance Services office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1 (any auto). 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 

4. Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. 
Architects' and engineers' coverage shall include contractual liability. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance 

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability: 
(including operations, 
products and completed 
operations) 

2. Automobile Liability: 

3. Errors and Omissions 
Liability: 
Limits 

Other Insurance Provisions 

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in 
aggregate (including operations, for bodily injury, 
personal and property damage. 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

$1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 

1. The City of Capitola, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insured's as respects: liability arising out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Consultant or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Consultant. 

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees 



-78-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13, 2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 4 

or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice 
by certified mail, returned receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the 
additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured 
would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to the City. 

Verification of Coverage 

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting 
coverage by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the City or on other than the 
City's forms provided those endorsements conform to City requirements. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

SECTION 9 
Indemnification 

Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, or jUdgments, including 
associated costs of investigation and defense ariSing in any manner from consultant's negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct in the performance of this agreement. 

SECTION 10 
Civil Rights Compliance/Equal Opportunity Assurance 

Every supplier of materials and services and all consultants doing business with the City of 
Capitola shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, and shall be an equal opportunity employer as defined by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and including the California Fair Employment and Housing Act of 1980. As such, consultant shall not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical conditio'n, marital status, age or sex with respect to hiring, application for employment, 
tenure or terms and conditions of employment. Consultant agrees to abide by all of the foregoing 
statutes and regulations. 

SECTION 11 
Legal Action/Attorneys' Fees 

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the proVisions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees in addition to any other relief to which 
he or she may be entitled. The laws of the State of California shall govern all matters relating to the 
validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged changes, the 
performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of Consultant and the City. 



-79-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13,2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 5 

SECTION 12 
Assignment 

This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the express written consent of the 
Director after approval of the City Council. 

SECTION 13 
Amendments 

This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a written instrument which 
expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, which expressly states that its purpose is to 
amend this particular Agreement, and which is duly executed by the City and Consultant. Consultant 
acknowledges that no such amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the City 
Council, or an officer of the City when the City Council may from time to time empower an officer of the 
City to approve and authorize such amendments. No representative of the City is authorized to obligate 
the City to pay the cost or value of services beyond the scope of services set forth in Appendix Two. 
Such authority is retained solely by the City Council. Unless expressly authorized by the City Council, 
Consultant's compensation shall be limited to that set forth in Appendix Two. 

SECTIO~ 14 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Project Manager. Director reserves the right to approve the project manager assigned by 
Consultant to said work. No change in assignment may occur without prior written approval of the City. 

2. Consultant Service. Consultant is employed to render professional services only and any 
payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional services. 

3. Licensure. Consultant warrants that he or she has complied with any and all applicable 
governmental licensing requirements. 

4. Other Agreements. This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter, and no other agreement, 
statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

5. City Property. Upon payment for the work performed, or portion thereof, all paintings, 
drawings, specifications, records, documents or any tangible work product generated by Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement are, and shall remain, the property of the City whether the project for which 
they are made is executed or not. The Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including 
reproducible copies, of drawings and specifications for information and reference in connection with the 
City's use and/or occupancy of the project. The drawings, specifications, records, documents, and 
Consultant's other work product shall not be used by the Consultant on other projects, except by 
agreement in writing and with appropriate compensation to the City. 

6. Consultant's Records. ConSUltant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 
written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project. Such records and documentation 
shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period of this Agreement, and after the term of this 
Agreement for a period of three years from the date of the final City payment for Consultant's services. 



-80-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13, 2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 6 

7. Independent Contractor. In the performance of its work, it is expressly understood that 
Consultant, including Consultant's agents, servants, employees, and subcontractors, is an independent 
contractor solely responsible for its acts and omissions, and Consultant shall not be considered an 
employee of the City for any purpose. 

8. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant stipulates that corporately or individually, its firm, its 
employees and subcontractors have no financial interest in either the success or failure of any project 
which is, or may be, dependent on the results of the Consultant's work product prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

9. VARA Waiver. All work performed by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
subject to the provisions of Appendix Three, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

10. Notices. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party 
to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given and fully received when made in writing and 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective 
parties as follows: 

CITY 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

831-475-7300 

By:_---=------:------:------=-_ _______ _ 
Benjamin Goldstein, City Manager 

Dated: -----------------------------

Approved as to Form: 

John G. Barisone, City Attorney 

CONSULTANT 
JOHN TON 

365 Petaluma Blvd N. 
Petaluma, Ca 94952 

(707) 322-0009 

By: _____________ _ 
John Ton, Muralist 

Dated: ____________ _ 



-81-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13, 2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 7 

APPENDIX ONE 
Scope of Services 

The mural surface is located along the entryway to the Capitola Village on an existing concrete retaining 
wall just beneath the Union Pacific Railroad Crossing on Wharf Road where it descends down the hill into 
Capitola Village at Stockton Bridge. The wall dimensions are approximately 40' in length and ranges 
from approximately 15' to 25' in height. 

Task 1: $10,000 
The Artist will be responsible for: 

• Preparing the design 
• Preparing and priming the wall 
• Providing all materials, including scaffolding or other equipment 
• Painting the Mural according to submitted and approved design by the City Council 
• Providing any necessary security during the mural construction 
• Graffiti coating the mural 

Reimbursement: Maximum of $2,000. Artist (John Ton) will be reimbursed for actual and necessary 
expenses incurred for mileage and lodging when traveling to Capitola for work on the Wharf Road 
Mural. Artist will submit all receipts for described expenses above for approval prior to reimbursement 
and within 30 days of the date of the travel. Mileage will be reimbursed based on the 2014 IRS 
Mileage Rate. 



-82-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13,2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 8 

APPENDIX TWO 
Fees and Payments 

For the services performed, City will pay consultant on a time-charge plus expense basis, 
monthly as charges accrue, the sum of consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses. 

Salary expenses include the actual direct pay of personnel assigned to the project (except for 
routine secretarial and account services) plus payroll taxes, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacation, 
and other fringe benefits. The percentage of compensation attributable to salary expenses includes 
all of Consultant's indirect overhead costs and fees. For purposes of this Agreement, Consultant's 
salary expenses and non-salary expenses will be compensated at the rates set forth in the fee 
schedule attached to this appendix and in accordance with the terms set forth therein. Non-salary 
expenses include travel, meals and lodging while traveling, materials other than normal office 
supplies, reproduction and printing costs, equipment rental, computer services, service of 
subconsultants or subcontractors, and other identifiable job expenses. The use of Consultant's 
vehicles for travel shall be paid at the current Internal Revenue Service published mileage rate. 

Salary payment for personnel time will be made at the rates set forth in the attached fee 
schedule for all time charged to the project. Normal payroll rates are for 40 hours per week. 
Consultant shall not charge the City for personnel overtime salary at rates higher than those set forth 
in the attached fee schedule without the City's prior written authorization. 

In no event shall the total fee charged for the scope of work set forth in Appendix One exceed 
the total budget of $ ( Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents), without specific, written 
advance authorization from the City. 

Payments shall be made monthly by the City, based on itemized invoices from the Consultant 
which list actual costs and expenses. Such payments shall be for the invoice amount. The monthly 
statements shall contain the following affidavit signed by a principal of the Consultant's firm: 

"I hereby certify as principal of the firm of , that the charge of $ as 
summarized above and shown in detail on the attachments is fair and reasonable, is in accordance with 
the terms of the Agreement dated _, _, and has not been previously paid." 



-83-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

Professional Services Agreement November 13,2014 
Wharf Road Mural 
John Ton 
Page 9 

APPENDIX THREE 
VARAICAPA Waiver 

As a material part of the consideration provided by Consultant under the terms of this Agreement, 
Consultant waives any and all rights Consultant may have with respect to the mural produced under the 
terms of this Agreement (the "Work") pursuant to the federal Visual Artists Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. 
sections 106A and 113(d)), the California Art Preservation Act (Cal. Civil Code section 987 et seq.), and 
any other local, state, federal or international laws that convey rights of the same nature as those 
conveyed under 17 U.S.C. section 106A, Cal. Civil Code section 987 et seq., or any other type of moral 
right protecting the integrity of works of art. Consultant expressly agrees that the Work performed 
hereunder is 'Work Made for Hire" under the provisions of 17 U.S.C. section 101. The provisions of this 
Appendix Three shall apply to modify Artist's rights of attribution and integrity as set out in the Visual 
Artists Rights Act, 17 U.S.C §§106A and 113(d) ("VARA"), the California Art Preservation Act, Cal. Civil 
Code §§ 987 and 989 ("CAPA"), and any rights arising under United States federal or state law or under 
the laws of another country that convey rights of the same nature as those conveyed under VARA and 
CAPA, as against the City of Capitola ("City") and its officers, employees or agents. The City has the 
absolute right to change, modify, destroy, remove, relocate, move, replace, transport, repair or restore 
the Work, in whole or in part, in City's sol~ discretion. Consultant bears the sole responsibility for 
providing the City with any changes to the Artist's Address for Notice. Notice of changes must be mailed 
to the City at the address for notice set forth in Paragraph 10, above. 

CONSULTANT 

Date: ------------------
John Ton 

R:\Contracts Adm\Current Contract Forms\Cily Contract Form_Revised 6-16-11.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-84-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MALL TRANSIT CENTER RELOCATION AND MALL REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT UPDATE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Support conceptual plans to relocate the Capitola Mall transit 
center to a new location on the property between Kohl's and Macy's, and direct staff to continue 
to work with the Mall owners (Mace rich) to pursue options to help finance the overall Mall 
redevelopment project and/or modify the project scope to meet budget constraints. 

BACKGROUND: In 2011 the Redevelopment Agency and Macerich entered into an agreement 
for the Agency to provide $1.03 million in funding to support public improvements associated 
with Mall redevelopment. 

The Agreement obligated the City and Agency to lund public improvements associated with Mall 
redevelopment including: widening sidewalks within public right of way; installing landscaping, 
street trees, and street furniture within public right-ol-way; assisting with the reconstruction of the 
existing public translt center currently located on the Capitola Mall property to improve public 
access and circulation; and improving bicycle access. 

Agency funding is predicated on Macerich commencing Mall redevelopment, which includes 
construction 01 frontage improvements along 41 51 Avenue and updating existing architectural 
features, and various other site improvements. If the redevelopment project is not built, the 
Agency is under no obligation to fund public improvements under this Agreement. 

DISCUSSION: One of the challenges that Macerich has identified with Mall redevelopment is the 
current location of the Transit Center, which currently occupies a large amount of space directly 
between the Mall and 41 s1 Avenue. Macerich has stated they view that space as an opportunity 
to create more indoor/outdoor commercial space and to improve the Mall's 41 51 Avenue frontage. 

In an effort to resolve this issue, City staff has held numerous meetings with the Transit Center 
operator, Santa Cruz Metro, and Macerich. Progress has been difficult, however at this point all 
parties have identified the site between Kohl's and Macys as the most viable option to relocate 
the Transit Center. 

That option was reviewed by the Metro Board on Oct. 24. At that hearing the Metro Board 
unanimously supported continuing the design process to relocate the Transit Center to the new 
location, and adopted negotiating principles to help direct that process. Those principles are 
included in Attachment (X). The new location would accommodate six buses simultaneously, 
modern shelters and lighting, and a new entrance to the Mall adjacent to the relocated Transit 
Center (Attachment V). 

Finding a viable location lor the Transit Center has been seen by Macerich as the first step in a 
Mall redevelopment process. Unfortunately, after the Oct. 24 Metro Board hearing Macerich 
contacted City staff and indicated the estimated costs to relocate the Transit Center and improve 
the Mall's 41 51 Ave frontage exceeded their project budget. Macerich has indicated that they do 
not intend to continue pursuing this project at this time. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center_str.docx -85-

Item #: 9.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MALL TRANSIT CENTER RELOCATION AND MALL REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT UPDATE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Support conceptual plans to relocate the Capitola Mall transit 
center to a new location on the property between Kohl's and Macy's, and direct staff to continue 
to work with the Mall owners (Mace rich) to pursue options to help finance the overall Mall 
redevelopment project and/or modify the project scope to meet budget constraints. 

BACKGROUND: In 2011 the Redevelopment Agency and Macerich entered into an agreement 
for the Agency to provide $1.03 million in funding to support public improvements associated 
with Mall redevelopment. 

The Agreement obligated the City and Agency to lund public improvements associated with Mall 
redevelopment including: widening sidewalks within public right of way; installing landscaping, 
street trees, and street furniture within public right-ol-way; assisting with the reconstruction of the 
existing public translt center currently located on the Capitola Mall property to improve public 
access and circulation; and improving bicycle access. 

Agency funding is predicated on Macerich commencing Mall redevelopment, which includes 
construction 01 frontage improvements along 41 51 Avenue and updating existing architectural 
features, and various other site improvements. If the redevelopment project is not built, the 
Agency is under no obligation to fund public improvements under this Agreement. 

DISCUSSION: One of the challenges that Macerich has identified with Mall redevelopment is the 
current location of the Transit Center, which currently occupies a large amount of space directly 
between the Mall and 41 s1 Avenue. Macerich has stated they view that space as an opportunity 
to create more indoor/outdoor commercial space and to improve the Mall's 41 51 Avenue frontage. 

In an effort to resolve this issue, City staff has held numerous meetings with the Transit Center 
operator, Santa Cruz Metro, and Macerich. Progress has been difficult, however at this point all 
parties have identified the site between Kohl's and Macys as the most viable option to relocate 
the Transit Center. 

That option was reviewed by the Metro Board on Oct. 24. At that hearing the Metro Board 
unanimously supported continuing the design process to relocate the Transit Center to the new 
location, and adopted negotiating principles to help direct that process. Those principles are 
included in Attachment (X). The new location would accommodate six buses simultaneously, 
modern shelters and lighting, and a new entrance to the Mall adjacent to the relocated Transit 
Center (Attachment V). 

Finding a viable location lor the Transit Center has been seen by Macerich as the first step in a 
Mall redevelopment process. Unfortunately, after the Oct. 24 Metro Board hearing Macerich 
contacted City staff and indicated the estimated costs to relocate the Transit Center and improve 
the Mall's 41 51 Ave frontage exceeded their project budget. Macerich has indicated that they do 
not intend to continue pursuing this project at this time. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\11 13 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center_str.docx 



AGENDA STAFF REPORT NOVEMBER 13, 2014 
MALL TRANSIT CENTER RELOCATION AND MALL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

Given the work involved to date, and the importance of the Mall to the City's economic future, 
staff is recommending the City Council: support the new location for the transit center, and direct 
staff to continue to work with Macerich to pursue options to help finance the overall Mall 
redevelopment project and/or modify the project scope to meet budget constraints. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The 2011 Agreement pledges $1.03 million in Redevelopment Agency funds 
to the City for Mall Redevelopment from future tax increment receipts. That obligation has been 
carried on the Successor Agency Recognized Obligation Schedule (ROPS) since 2012, and has 
been approved by the Oversight Board and the State Department of Finance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Metro negotiating principles 
2. Conceptual plans 
3. 2011 Public Infrastructure Agreement 

Report Prepared By: Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 

Reviewed and 0 

by City Mana 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffRepOlts\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center_str.docx -86-

Item #: 9.B. Staff Report.pdf
AGENDA STAFF REPORT NOVEMBER 13, 2014 
MALL TRANSIT CENTER RELOCATION AND MALL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

Given the work involved to date, and the importance of the Mall to the City's economic future, 
staff is recommending the City Council: support the new location for the transit center, and direct 
staff to continue to work with Macerich to pursue options to help finance the overall Mall 
redevelopment project and/or modify the project scope to meet budget constraints. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The 2011 Agreement pledges $1.03 million in Redevelopment Agency funds 
to the City for Mall Redevelopment from future tax increment receipts. That obligation has been 
carried on the Successor Agency Recognized Obligation Schedule (ROPS) since 2012, and has 
been approved by the Oversight Board and the State Department of Finance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Metro negotiating principles 
2. Conceptual plans 
3. 2011 Public Infrastructure Agreement 

Report Prepared By: Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 

Reviewed and 0 

by City Mana 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffRepOlts\2014 Agenda Reports\l! 13 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center_str.docx 



SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT NEGOTIATING PRINCIPLES 

o An agreement that ensures that SC METRO receives a like property easement in 
exchange for the one we currently have. 

o An agreement that Includes language establishing, without question, SC 
METRO's right to be on Mall property in perpetuity. 

o The alternate Transit Center site location decided on is not to be outside of the 
Mall footprint and within close proximity to the main Mall building structure. 

o The design is to include adequate safe ingress and egress for buses to and from 
the Transit Center. 

o The Transit Center is to be of sufficient size to accommodate six buses 
simultaneously. 

o Shelter and lighting design to meet with SC METRO's approval. 

• Design of an aesthetically pleasing and inviting Mall entrance from the Transit 
Center into the Mall. 

o Design of an aesthetically pleasing and inviting Transit Center entrance from 
inside the Mall to the Transit Center. 

o Transit Center design to meet with all ADA accessibility requirements. 

o Provide a designated restroom facility for SC METRO Operators within close 
proximity to the newly proposed Transit Center entrance approved by SC 
METRO. 

o SC METRO will not be expected to fund any part of the relocation and 
improvements proposed. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\1113 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center Attach 1 Neg Principalsr.docx 

-87-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT NEGOTIATING PRINCIPLES 

o An agreement that ensures that SC METRO receives a like property easement in 
exchange for the one we currently have. 

o An agreement that Includes language establishing, without question, SC 
METRO's right to be on Mall property in perpetuity. 

o The alternate Transit Center site location decided on is not to be outside of the 
Mall footprint and within close proximity to the main Mall building structure. 

o The design is to include adequate safe ingress and egress for buses to and from 
the Transit Center. 

o The Transit Center is to be of sufficient size to accommodate six buses 
simultaneously. 

o Shelter and lighting design to meet with SC METRO's approval. 

• Design of an aesthetically pleasing and inviting Mall entrance from the Transit 
Center into the Mall. 

o Design of an aesthetically pleasing and inviting Transit Center entrance from 
inside the Mall to the Transit Center. 

o Transit Center design to meet with all ADA accessibility requirements. 

o Provide a designated restroom facility for SC METRO Operators within close 
proximity to the newly proposed Transit Center entrance approved by SC 
METRO. 

o SC METRO will not be expected to fund any part of the relocation and 
improvements proposed. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\1113 14\9.C. Mall Transit Center Attach 1 Neg Principalsr.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-88-



'---!. \ 

i ~ 

) 
i 
i 
i 

BUILDI~G P 

I , 

; L ----- ----i 

~ KIOSK B 

BUILDING Q 

~ 

\ 
~ , -01 i 

I 
,@ 

) I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1 L. 
\ 

i 

KOHL'S 
BUILDING B 

, 

-, 
1\ 

- - -- -
--- - - - - -~------

,~~~~~~~==~=====-========~=-

1', 
I 
L-r'l 

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

I~~"r--

{f:~--=---=-~---=---=---=-~-=-=-~~~-=---:-=-=~~~~ 
11\1 

\'.l 

/ , 
I .) 
I \ 

r) 

1/ 

l-, 
/ 

, 
, , 
I ) 

f 
I ' 
cl 

r, 
'" I / 

r_-_-~:: 

--------- -------

r---

~u _ __________ _____ _ _ 
------;;;--"------- --------------1- - - - - - --

R 15k..'=.=:.:r-- ! 
iii' /. - 1 - ----
(r j- -- '-
I ! 
,~ 

""",,- - rtf 

.... _ ... '0 .. 

-89-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

\..._-'!. 

! ~ 

; I 
i 
i 

BUILDI~G P 

I 

; L 
- .. -. 

~ KIOSK B 

BUILDING Q 

L 

! \ 
~d 

01 
I 

,@ 

) I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
'--

\ 

I 

~ 
KOHL'S 

BU ILDING B 

/ 
/ 

/ 

I 
I 

/ 
/ 

- ~- ~ --~---... 1\ I.~_~_~~~-~~~ 
,~ ~-- ---~=~======~~~~~ -~~ 

,{:~--=--=-=--~--=--=-=-=~~ ~-=-=---~ ---=~ ~-=-=~ 
II \< 
\IJ' 

r -. 
I I 
I I 
I' 
I 7 
lJ 

, 
\ 

I ) 

r. 
I ' 
c) 

..... ,· · w ................. 

".----



Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Cetner 
Site C: Rendering 1 - Original 

-- --
Rendering by Antonea Colon 

-90-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Cetner 
Site C: Rendering 1 - Original 

Rendering by Antonea Colon 



Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Cetner 
Site C: Rendering 1 

, Rendering by Antonea Colon 

-91-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Cetner 
Site C: Rendering 1 

Rendering by Antonea COl 



Santa Cruz Metro" Capitola Mall Transit Center 
Site C "Rendering Original 

Rendering by Anlonea Colon 

-92-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Mall Transit Center 
Site C - Rendering Original 

Rendering by Arllonea Colon 



Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Mall Transit Center 
Site C - Rendering 

Rendering by Antonea Colon 

-93-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Mall Transit Center 
Site C - Rendering 

Rendering by Antooea Col 



Santa Cruz Metro· Capitola Transit Center 
Site C: Rendering 2, Original 

Rendering by Antonea Colon 

-94-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Center 
Site C: Rendering 2, Original 

Rendering by Antonea Colon 



Santa Cruz Metro - Capitola Transit Center 
Site C: Rendering 2, Original 

Rendering by Antonea Colon 

-95-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

Santa Cruz Metro· Capitola Transit Center 
Site C: Rendering 2, Original 

Rendering by Anton .. Co 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-96-



PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AGREEMENT 

This Public Infrastructure Agreement, dated as of April 6, 201 { (the "E;ffectiv.e 
Date") is entered into by and among the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola, 
a public body, corporate and politic (the "Agency")., the City of Capitola, a municipal . 
corporation (the "City"), and Macerlch.Property Management Company, LLC;.a 
Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"), with refere.nce to the follOWing 
recitals, . 

RECITALS 

A. Pursuant t6 the California ~ornmunity Redevelopment Law (Health and 
Safety Code Section 33000 ~ seq,; the "Redevelopment·~aw"), the City Council of the 
City has adopted and the Agency is responsible for implementing the Redevelopment 
Plan (the "Redevelopment Plan") for the Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (the 
"Project Area"). 

B. To assist in implementing the RedeVelopment Plan, t.he Agency has 
adopted an implementation plan (the "Implementation Plan") pursuant to Section 33490 
of the Redevelopment Law. . 

C. Pursuant to Health and Safety'Code Section 33220(b) and (c), the City is 
authorized to enter into this Agreement to assist the Agency. In caus'[ng public 
infrastructure to be installed in the Project Area. . 

D. On February 24, 2011, City and Agency entered into that certain 
Cooperation Agreement, as further amended by the City and Agency on March 8, 2011 
(the "Cooperation Agreemenf'), whereby the City agreed to carry out certaIn projects for 
the Agency, including but not limited to the expendit1,ife of funds to furt~er thei 
redevelopment of the Capitola Mall. . . 

E. Developer Is the managing agent for the.current owner of certain. improved 
real property comprising .portions of the shopping center called the Capitola MaJl, which 
fronts on 41 st Avenue in the City (the "Property"). The Property is Improved with 
commercial retail buildings, associated parking facilities, and various site improvements. 
The Developer Intends to construct frontage improvements along the 41't Avenue' . 
frontage, including but not limited to pedestrian access improvements, landscaping, and 
updating to existing architectural features, and various site improvements (the "Private 
peveloper Project"). 

F: The Redevelopment Plan and Implementation Plan include public . 
Improvements to 41't Avenue adjacent to and fronting on the Capitola Mall, and further 
Include Improved and relocated public transit facilities on the Property. These public 
improvements are described in Exhibit A to this Agreement (the "Public Infrastructure"). 

[09Rln [\965999.5 
414120\ [ 

1 

378 

-97-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AGREEMENT 

This Public Infrastructure Agreement, dated as of April 6, 201 f, (the "E;ffectiv.e 
Date") is entered intO by and among the Redeve[opment Agency of the City of Capitola, 
a public body, corporate and politic (the "Agency"), the City of Capitola, a municipal ' 
corporation (the "City"), ar;d Macerlch.Property Management Company, LLC,.a 
Delaware limited liablHty company (the "Developer"), with refera.nce to the folloWing 
recitals, . 

RECITALS 

A Pursuant t6 the California pommunity Redevelopment Law (Health and 
Safety Code Section 33000 ~ seg,; the "Redevelopment~aw"), the City Council ofthe 
City has adopted and the Agency is responsible f.or Implementing the Redevelopment 
Plan {the "Redevelopment Plan"} for the Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (the 
"Project Area"), 

B. To assist In implementing the Redevelopment Plan, tile Agency has 
adopted an implementation plan (the "Implementation Plan") pursuant to Section 33490 
of the Redevelopment Law. ' 

C, Pursuant to Health and Safety'Code Section 33220{b} and (c), the City is 
authorized to enter Into this Agreement to assist the Agency, In causing public 
infrastructure to be installed in the Project Area. ' 

D. On February 24,2011, City fand Agency entered into that certain 
Cooperation Agreement, as further amended by the City and Agency on March 8, 2011 
(the ·Ccopenruon Agreemenf), whereby the City agreed to carry out certain projects for 
the Agency, inclwding but not limited to the expenditwe of funds to furtlJer the' 
reQeve!opment ofthe Capitola Mall .. 

E Developer is the managing agent for the, current owner of certain improved 
real property comprising portions of the shopping center called the Capitola Mall, which 
fronts on 41 st Avenue in the City (the "Property"). The Property is Improved with 
commercial retail buildings, asspciated parking facnities, and various site improvements. 
The Developer intends to construct frontage Improvements a[6ng the 41,t Avenue' 
frontage, Including but not limited to pedestrian access improvements, landscaping, and 
updating to existing architectural features, and various site improvements (the "Private 
peveloper Project"). 

F; The Redevelopment Plan and Implementation Plan include public . 
improvements to 41"1 Avenue adjacent to and fronting on the Capitola Mal[, and further 
include improved and relocated public transit facilities on the Property. These public 
improvements are described in Exhibit A to this Agreement (the "Public Infrastructure") . 

IIl9RIO IW6m9.l 
41412011 

. 1 

378 



G. Implementing the Public Infrastructure concurrently with the Private 
Developer Project would avoid disruption to the public due to ,multiple construction 
projects, costly duplication of activities that are necessary to construct tile Public. 
Infrastructure and the Private Developer Project, and possible inconsistencies between 
projects that may result if the Private Developer Project and Public Infrastructure are 
cO'nstr\.lcted separately. Furthe,r, the Agency and City have determined that it is 
impractical from an architectural, engineering and construction standpoint to separately 
construct the Public Infrastructure improvements because of their physical 
interrelationship with the Private Developer Project improvements to be constructed by 
the Develop<?r; that timely completion of the Public Infrastructure Is essential to the 
elimination of blight at the Capitola Mall and to the successful redevelopment of the 
Property; that the Public Infrastructure would be a complementary enhancement to the 
Private Development Project; and that the construction of the Public Infrastruoture 
pursuant to ,this Agreement would result in a lower public cost and greater benefit than if 
such Public Infrastructure were separately bid and constructed by the Agency or City. 

H. Based on the above finding, the parties desire that the Developer will 
undertake the construction of the Public Infrastructure. The City and Agency have 

, requested and the Developer has agreed that the Developer will pertorm the Public 
Infrastructure work in accordance with City standards and the C.ity will reimburse the 
Developer from Agency funds for the costs associated with such work. 

379 

c· 

I. The Private Developer Project and the Public Infrastructure improvements ( 
are located within the Project Area. 

J. The Public Infrastructure Improvements and the Private Developer Project 
are consistent with the Implementation Plan, the Redevelopment Plan, and the City's 
adopted General Plan and will promote the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment 

'Plan to revitalize the Project Area. The City is currently considering the adoption of 
modifications to the City's General Plan (the "General, Plan Update") ¥lhlch will include 
policies for the development of the Property and the Capitola Mall. 

K. The Developer has represented that it has the necessary experience, 'skill, 
and ability to carry out the oommitments conta'ined in this Agreement. 

L. Prior to execution of this Agreement, the City found that the Public 
Infrastructure improveme'nts are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

, pursuant to CEQA Guic!elines Sections 15301, "Existing Facilities,," in that the ' 
improvements related to 41 51 Avenue consist of improvements to existing streets, 
sidewalks, and similar facilities; a'n¢! pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15302, in 
that the relocation and modifications to the transit center consist of the replacement of 
the existing facility, which will be located on the same site as the center being replaced, 
and will have the same purpose and capacity as any structure 'being replaced. 

M. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 33421.1 and 33445, the 
Agency-and the City CouncH have found that the Public Infrastructure improvements are 
of benefit to the Project Area, that the Public Infrastructure improvements are consiste!")t i 

1098\01\96'999.5 
4/412011 

2 
".. 

-98-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

G. Implementing the Public Infrastructure concurrently with the Private 
Developer Project would avoid disruption to the public due to ,multiple construction 
projects, costly duplication of activities that are necessary to construct tile Public. 
Infrastructure and the Private Developer Project, and possible inconsistencies between 
projects that may result if the Private Developer Project and Public Infrastructure are 
cO'nstr\.lcted separately. Furthe,r, the Agency and City have determined that it is 
impractical from an architectural, engineering and construction standpoint to separately 
construct the Public Infrastructure improvements because of their physical 
interrelationship with the Private Developer Project improvements to be constructed by 
the Develop<?r; that timely completion of the Public Infrastructure Is essential to the 
elimination of blight at the Capitola Mall and to the successful redevelopment of the 
Property; that the Public Infrastructure would be a complementary enhancement to the 
Private Development Project; and that the construction of the Public Infrastructure 
pursuant to ,this Agreement would result in a lower public cost and greater benefit than if 
such Public Infrastructure were separately bid and constructed by the Agency or City. 

H. Based on the above finding, the parties desire that the Developer will 
undertake the construction of the Public Infrastructure. The City and Agency have 

, requested and the Developer has agreed that the Developer will pertorm the Public 
Infrastructure work in accordance with City standards and the C.ity will reimburse the 
Developer from Agency funds for the costs associated with such work. 

379 

c· 

I. The Private Developer Project and the Public Infrastructure improvements ( 
are located within the Project Area. 

J. The Public Infrastructure Improvements and the Private Developer Project 
are consistent with the Implementation Plan, the Redevelopment Plan, and the City's 
adopted General Plan and will promote the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment 

'Plan to revitalize the Project Area. The City is currently considering the adoption of 
modifications to the City's General Plan (the "General, Plan Update") ¥lhich will include 
policies for the development of the Property and the Capitola Mall. 

K. The Developer has represented that it has the necessary experience, 'skill, 
and ability to carry out the commitments conta'ined in this Agreement. 

L. Prior to execution of this Agreement, the City found that the Public 
Infrastructure improveme'nts are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

, pursuant to CEQA Guic!elines Sections 15301, "Existing Facilities,," in that the ' 
improvements related to 41 51 Avenue consist of improvements to existing streets, 
sidewalks, and similar facilities; a'n¢! pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15302, in 
that the relocation and modifications to the transit center consist of the replacement of 
the existing facility, which will be located on the same site as the center being replaced, 
and will have the same purpose and capacity as any structure 'being replaced. 

M. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 33421.1 and 33445, the 
Agency-and the City CouncH have found that the Public Infrastructure improvements are 
of benefit to the Project Area, that the Public Infrastructure improvements are consiste!")t i 

1098\01\96'999.5 
4/412011 

2 
".. 



with the Redevelopment Plan ;:Ind the Agency's Implementation Plan, that there are no 
other reasonable means of financing the Public Infrastructure available to the 
community and that the public financial assistance for· the Public Infrastructure will . 
assist in the elimination of blight conditions in the Project Area. These findings are 
based on the Information contained in the staff report and other information provided to 
the Agency and the City Council. 

N.. Pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section 33205, arid to assist 
the Oity in carrying out projects pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Agency 
desires to .delegate to the City all of Its powers and functions with respect to the Public 
Infrastructure include.:J in this Agreemerit and to authorize the City to carry aut and 
perform such powers and functions for the Agency In connection with ·auch activities. 

O. As more fully set forth below, this Agreement does not authorize or 
gwirantee the granting of any governmental approvals related to the Private Developer 
Project or to the Public Infrastructure, and in no way limits the discretion of the City and 
Agency in-any permit or approval process. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration as set forth herein, the 
parties agree as follows: . 

AGREEMENT 

. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this 
Agreement. . 

ARTICLE 1. 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

Section 1.1 Public Infrastructure. 

The Developer agrees to commence construction of the Public Infrastructure 
shown· on the ·attached Exhibit A, as required by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, no later than three (3)·years following City Council approval of the General 
Plan Update or six years after the Effective Date of this Agreement, whichever is earlier. 
The City Manager may grant a maximum oflwo (2) one-year extensions at the City 
Manager's sole discretion. After commencing construction of the Public· Infrastructure, 
Developer !'Igrees lq diligently prosecute construction of the Public Infrastructure to 
completion in accordance with a construction schedure to be approved by the City, 
Should the Public Infrastructure not be completed within the time established In this 
Section 1.1, subject to extension· of time for enforced delay pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 3.3, this Agreement shall be terminated, 

. Section 1.2 Construction Contract. 

Prior to commencement of co nstructioll, the Developer shall enter into contracts 
for the construction of the Public Infrastructure with reputable general contractors. 

109810[1%5999.5 
4/4120[[ 

:3 

380 

-99-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

with the Redevelopment Plan ;:Ind tile Agency's Implementation Plan, that there are no 
other reasonable means of fir\ancilig !he Public Infrastructure avaUable to the 
community and that the public financial asslstar.ce for the Public Infrastructure will . 
assist lri the €lamination ofbHght conditions in the Project Area. These findings are 
based on the Information contained In the staff report and other Information provided to 
the Agency and the City Council. 

N. Pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section 33205, and to assist 
the Oity in carrying aut projects pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, tt1e Agency 
desires to delegate to the City all of Its poWers and functions with respect to tt1e Public 
Infrastructure included in this Agreement and to authorize the City to eany aut and 
perform such powers and functions for the Agency In connection with ~uch activities. 

O. As more fully set forth below, this Agreement does not authorize or 
guarantee the granting of any governmental approvals related to the Private Developer 
Project or to the Public Infrastructure, and in no way limita the discretion of·the City and 
Agency In. any permit or approval process. 

NOW. THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration as set forth herein, tt1e 
parties agree as follows: . . 

AGREEMENT 

. The foregoing recitals are hereby inco('porated by reference and made part of this 
Agreement. . . 

ARTICLE 1, 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

Section 1.1 public Infrastructure. 

The Developer agrees to commence construction of the P'ublic Infrastructure 
shown on the 'attached Exhibit A, as required by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, no later than three (3)'years following City Council approval of the General 
Plan Update or six years after the Effec!1ve Date of tt1is Agreement, whichever is aarliel'. 
The City Manager may grant a maximum of two (2) one-year extensions at the City 
Managers sole discretion. After commeneing construction of the Public'lnfrastructure, 
Developer iilgrees tq dHigently prosecute construction of the Public Infrastructure to 
completion In accordance with a construction schedul'e to be approved by the City. 
Should the Public Infrastructure not be completed 'Nithin the time estabUshed In this 
Section 1.1, subject to extension of time for enforced delay pursuant to !he provisions of 
Section 3.3, this Agreement shall be terminated. 

Section 1.2 Construction Contract. 

Prior to commencement of constructior, the Developer shall ~nter into contracts 
for the construction of the Public Infrastructure with reputable general contractors. 

11)911\0 [1965999.5 
414l!lll! 

3 

380 



Those contracts shall provide for the Public Infrastructure work to be performed for fixed 
and specified maximum amounts pursuant to final construction plans and speciflC;3tlons 
(the 'Final Construction Plans") approved by the City Public Works Director. i='rior to 
starting construction, the Developer shall make available for review by the City and the 
Agency on a confidential basis, to the extent allowed by the Public Re'cords Act; a copy 

. of each construction contract for the Public Infrastructure for purposes of determining 
the following: (a) that the scope and cost of work liave been clearly fixed and 
determined and are consistent with the scope and cost set forth in the Final 
Construction Plans and this Agreement; (b) that the contract conforms or will conform to 
the reqUirements of this Agreement, Including without limitation the prevailing wages' 
requirements in Section 1.10; and (c) that no changes to the contract that would cause 
the contract to be out of compliance with this Agreement may be made without the prior 
written consent of the City and the Agency. Unless the Agency and City notify the 
Developer in writing within seven (7). days of review of a contract that the contract has 
been disapproved. ilshall be deemed approved. 

Section 1.3 Surety and Improvement Agreement; Guarantee; 

381 

Prior to commencement of construction, the Developer shall deliver labor and 
material bonds arid performance bonds issued by a reputable Insurance company 
licensed to do business in Califomia, each in a penal sum of not less than one hundred 
percent (100%) of the scheduled cost of construction of the Public Infrastructure. or as 
otherwise reasonably required by the Public Works Director. The bonds shall name the C " 
City and Agency as co-obligees. The DeVeloper shall cause the Public Infrastructure 
contractor to guarantee all labor, materials, imd workmanship to be free from all defects 
for a period of one (1) year after acceptance by.the Crty, and the Public Works Director 
may require customary security for such guarantee. 

SeCtion 1.4 Evidence of Availability of. Funds: Redevelopment of Mall. 

(a) Before Developer commences construction of the Public 
Infrastructure or expends funds if! expectation of reimbursement pursuant to this 
Agreement, Developer may request Agency and Clt'f to verify to the Developer In writing 
that the Maximum Reimbursement Amount. as described In Section 1.11', does not 
exceed the MaxImum Grant Amount, as described in Section 1 .12. If the Maximum 
Reimbursement Amount exceeds the Maximum Gra.ht Amount, then the scope of the 

. Public Infrastructure may be reduced by mutual agreement of City, Agency, and 
Developer so as not to exceed the Maximum Grant Amount; or Developer may agree to 
accept a lower Ma)(imum Reimbursement Amount for construction of the Public 
Infrastructure; or the parties may mutually agree to terminate this Agreement. City and 
AgenC'f agree 'that the Maximum Grant Amount shall.not be reduced following written 
verification by City and Agency pursuant to this subsection (a). 

(b) Prior to commencing constrLlction of. the Public Infrastructure, the 
Developer shall submit to the Agency a budget for completion of the Public . 
InfrastructLlre, Including all costs for which Developer .intends to seek reimbursement. 

1098\llL\965999's 
4/4I20LL 

4 

-100-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Those contracts shall provide for the Public Infrastructure work to be performed for fixed 
and specified maximum amounts pursuant to final construction plans and speciflC;3tlons 
(the 'Final Construction Plans") approved by the City Public Works Director. i='rior to 
starting construction, the Developer shall make available for review by the City and the 
Agency on a confidential basis, to the extent allowed by the Public Re'cords Act; a copy 

. of each construction contract for the Public Infrastructure for purposes of determining 
the following: (a) that the scope and cost of work liave been clearly fixed and 
determined and are consistent with the scope and cost set forth in the Final 
Construction Plans and this Agreement; (b) that the contract conforms or will conform to 
the reqUirements of this Agreement, Including without limitation the prevailing wages' 
requirements in Section 1.10; and (c) that no changes to the contract that would cause 
the contract to be out of compliance with this Agreement may be made without the prior 
written consent of the City and the Agency. Unless the Agency and City notify the 
Developer in writing within seven (7). days of review of a contract that the contract has 
been disapproved. ilshall be deemed approved. 

Section 1.3 Surety and Improvement Agreement; Guarantee; 

381 

Prior to commencement of construction, the Developer shall deliver labor and 
material bonds arid performance bonds issued by a reputable Insurance company 
licensed to do business in Califomia, each in a penal sum of not less than one hundred 
percent (100%) of the scheduled cost of construction of the Public Infrastructure. or as 
otherwise reasonably required by the Public Works Director. The bonds shall name the C " 
City and Agency as co-obligees. The DeVeloper shall cause the Public Infrastructure 
contractor to guarantee all labor, materials, imd workmanship to be free from all defects 
for a period of one (1) year after acceptance by.the Crty, and the Public Works Director 
may require customary security for such guarantee. 

SeCtion 1.4 Evidence of Availability of. Funds: Redevelopment of Mall. 

(a) Before Developer commences construction of the Public 
Infrastructure or expends funds if! expectation of reimbursement pursuant to this 
Agreement, Developer may request Agency and Clt'f to verify to the Developer In writing 
that the Maximum Reimbursement Amount. as described In Section 1.11', does not 
exceed the MaxImum Grant Amount, as described in Section 1 .12. If the Maximum 
Reimbursement Amount exceeds the Maximum Gra.ht Amount, then the scope of the 

. Public Infrastructure may be reduced by mutual agreement of City, Agency, and 
Developer so as not to exceed the Maximum Grant Amount; or Developer may agree to 
accept a lower Ma)(imum Reimbursement Amount for construction of the Public 
Infrastructure; or the parties may mutually agree to terminate this Agreement. City and 
AgenC'f agree 'that the Maximum Grant Amount shall.not be reduced following written 
verification by City and Agency pursuant to this subsection (a). 

(b) Prior to commencing constrLlction of. the Public Infrastructure, the 
Developer shall submit to the Agency a budget for completion of the Public . 
InfrastructLlre, Including all costs for which Developer .intends to seek reimbursement. 

1098\llL\965999's 
4/4I20LL 

4 



and evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Agency that sufficient funds will be 
available for constructing the Public Infrastructure . 

. (c) Prior to commencing construction of the Public Infrastructure or 
expending funds in expectation of reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement, 
Developer shall have received all permits necessary to complete the Private Developer 
Project, Including but not limited to all discretionary permits, all building permits, and all 
other permits' required for construction; shall submit to the Pl,lblic Works Director for 
approval a schedule for completion of the Public Infrastructure; and shall have provided 
evidence satisfactory to \he City and Agency that Developer will construct the Private 
Developer Project. 

Section 1.5 Insurance. 

Prior to starting construction., the DeVEllopershall submit to the Agency evidence 
that the insurance requirements of Section 3.8 have been satisfied. 

Section 1.6 Completion of the Construction. 

Subject to extension of time for·enforced delay pursuant to Section 3.3, once 
Developer commences construction of the Public Infrastructure, the Developer shall 
diligently prosecute to completion the construction of the Public Infrastructure as 
provided in Section 1.1 of this Agreement. 

Section 1.7 Construction Pursuant to Plans. 

Unless modified by operation of Section 1.8, all work of construction of the Public 
Infrastructure shall be done in accordance with the approved Final ConstruCtion Plans. . 

Section 1,8 Material Change in Plans. 

(a) If the Developer desires to make any material change In the Final 
Construction Plans for the Public Infrastructure, the Developer sh"!l1 submit the 
proposed change to the City for its approval. A change Is "material" If it, by itself, has a 

.. cost consequence of greater than Ten Thousand Dollars' ($1 0,000), or if it, cumulatively 
with pr~vious chanj;les, has a cost consequence of greater than Ten Thousand Dollars 
($10,000), or if it alters the Final Construction Plans, or if it is reasonably likely to . 
shorten the us~fullife of the Public Infrastructure or increase the maintenance cost of 
the PubliC Infrastructure. 

(b) Unless such proposed change Is rejected by the City within ten (10) 
business days, it shall be deemed approved. If rejected within such time period, the 
previously approved Final Construction Plans shall continue to remain in full fo rce and 
effect. . 

. [098\0[\965999.5 
4/4/20[\ 

5 

382 

-101-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

and evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Agency that sufficient funds will be 
available for constructing the Public infrastructure, 

.(c) Prior to commencing construction of the P.ublic Infrastructure or 
expending funds In expectation of reimbursement pursuant to fhis Agreement, 
Developer shan have received all permits necesssryto complete the Private Developer 
. Project, Including but not limited to an discretionary permits, all building permits, and all 
other permits' required for construction; shall submit to the Pllbllc Works D!rector for 
approval a schedule for completion of the Publio Infrastructure; and shall have provided 
evidence satisfactory to lhe CIty and Agency that De'1eloper will construct the Private 
Developer Project 

Section 1,5 Insurance. 

Prior to starting construction, the Developer shall submit to the Agency evidence 
that the insurance requirements of Section 3.8 have been satisfied, 

Section 1.6Complelion of the Construction. 

Subject to extension of time for·enforced delay pursuant to Section 3,3, once 
Developer commences construction of the Public Infrastructure, the Developer shall 
diligently prosecute to completion the construction of the Public Infrastructure as 
provided In Section 1.1 of this Agreement. 

Section 1,7 Construction Pursuant to Plans. 

Unless modified by operation of Section 1.8, all work of construction of theF'ubl1c 
Infrastructure shall be done in accordance with the approved Final Construction Plans. 

Section 1,8 Material Change in Plans. 

(a) If the Developer desires to make any material change In the Final 
Construction Plans for the Public I nfrastructure,tha Developer shClIl submit the 
proposed change to the City for its approval. A change Is "ma'!erlar' If it, by itself, has a 
cost consequence of grealerthan Ten Thousand Dollars" ($10,000), or if it, cumulatively 
with Pl"?vlous chanj;l6S, has a cost consequence of greater than Ten Thousand Dollars 
($10,000), or if it alters the Final Construction Plans, or if it is reasonably likely to ' 
shorten the uSE1fulllfe- of the Public Infrastructure or Increase the maintenance cost of 
the Publtc Infrastructure, 

(IJ) Unless such proposed change Is rejected by the City within ten (10) 
business days, it shaUbe deemed approved. If rejected within such time period, the 
previously approved Final Construction Plans shall continue to, remain in full fo rce and 
~" . 

" (il'l&\O(\965999's 
4f4JWtt 

5 

382 



Section 1.9 Development In ComplianceWith Law. 

(a) The Developer shall cause all construction of the Public 
Infrastructure to be performed in compliance with (a) all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules and regulations of federal, state, county or municipal govemments or agencies 
now in force or that may be enacted hereafter, anq (b) all direCtions, rules and 
regulations of any fire marshal, health officer, building Inspector, or other officer of every 
govemmentalagency now having or hereafter acquiring jurisdiction. The work shall 
proceed only after procurement of each permit, license, or other authorization that may 
be required by any governmental agency having jurisdiction, and the Developer shall be 
responsible ·to the City and the AgencYfor the procurement and maintenance thereof, 
asrnay be required of the Developer and all entities engaged in work o'n the Public 
Infrastructure. 

(b) The City and Agency approve the Developer's construction of the 
Public Infrastructure without undertaking a competitive bidding process, based on the 
findings incorporated Into the recitals to this Agreement. . 

Section 1.10 Prevailing Wages. 

The Developer shall cause its contractors and subcontractorS to pay prev.alllng 
wages as those wages are determined pursuant to Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. 
and implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations (the "DIR"); to 
employ apprentices pursuant to Labor Code Section 1777.5 et seq, and Implementing 
regulations of the DIR, and to comply with other applicable provisions of Labor Code 
Section 1720 et seg. and the implementing regulations of the DIR, 'in each case with 
respect to the constructfon of the Public Infrastructure. The Developer shall and shall 
cause its contractors and subcontractors to keep and retain'such records as are 
necessary to determine if such prevailing wages have been paid as required pursuant to 
Labor Code Section 1720 et seq and that apprentices have been employed as required 
by Labor Code Section 1777.5. During the construction of the Public Infrastructure, the. 
Developer shall or shall cause the contractor to post at the Public Infrastructure 
construction site the applicable prevailing rates of per diem wages. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend (with counsel reasonably selected by the City) the· 
Agency and the City against any claim for damages, compensation, fines, penalties or 
other amounts ariSing out of the failure or alleged failure of any person or entity 
(including Developer, its contractor an<;l subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages as 
determined pursuant to Labor Code Sections1?20 et seq., and implementing 
regulations of the DIR, to' employ apprentices pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1777.5 
et ~" or to comply with the' other applicable proVisions of Labor Code Sections 1720 
et seq., and the implementing regulations of the DIR In connection with the construction 
of the Public Infrastructure. The Developer's obligation to Indemnify under this Section 
1.10 shall be interpreted broadly to apply to any legal or administrative proceeding, 
arbitrations, or enforcement action. . 

I098W 1\965999.5 
4{412011 

6 

383 

. .. ( 
... 

( . 

-102-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 1.9 Development In ComplianceWith Law. 

(a) The Developer shall cause all construction of the Public 
Infrastructure to be performed in compliance with (a) all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules and regulations of federal, state, county or municipal govemments or agencies 
now in force or that may be enacted hereafter, anq (b) all direCtions, rules and 
regulations of any fire marshal, health officer, building Inspector, or other officer of every 
govemmentalagency now having or hereafter acquiring jurisdiction. The work shall 
proceed only after procurement of each permit, license, or other authorization that may 
be required by any governmental agency having jurisdiction, and the Developer shall be 
responsible ·to the City and the AgencYfor the procurement and maintenance thereof, 
asrnay be required of the Developer and all entities engaged in work o'n the Public 
Infrastructure. 

(b) The City and Agency approve the Developer's construction of the 
Public Infrastructure without undertaking a competitive bidding process, based on the 
findings incorporated Into the recitals to this Agreement. . 

Section 1.10 Prevailing Wages. 

The Developer shall cause its contractors and subcontractorS to pay prev.alllng 
wages as those wages are determined pursuant to Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. 
and implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations (the "DIR"); to 
employ apprentices pursuant to Labor Code Section 1777.5 et seq, and Implementing 
regulations of the DIR, and to comply with other applicable provisions of Labor Code 
Section 1720 et seg. and the implementing regulations of the DIR, 'in each case with 
respect to the constructfon of the Public Infrastructure. The Developer shall and shall 
cause its contractors and subcontractors to keep and retain'such records as are 
necessary to determine if such prevailing wages have been paid as required pursuant to 
Labor Code Section 1720 et seq and that apprentices have been employed as required 
by Labor Code Section 1777.5. During the construction of the Public Infrastructure, the. 
Developer shall or shall cause the contractor to post at the Public Infrastructure 
construction site the applicable prevailing rates of per diem wages. The Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend (with counsel reasonably selected by the City) the· 
Agency and the City against any claim for damages, compensation, fines, penalties or 
other amounts ariSing out of the failure or alleged failure of any person or entity 
(including Developer, its contractor an<;l subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages as 
determined pursuant to Labor Code Sections1?20 et seq., and implementing 
regulations of the DIR, to' employ apprentices pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1777.5 
et ~" or to comply with the' other applicable proVisions of Labor Code Sections 1720 
et seq., and the implementing regulations of the DIR In connection with the construction 
of the Public Infrastructure. The Developer's obligation to Indemnify under this Section 
1.10 shall be interpreted broadly to apply to any legal or administrative proceeding, 
arbitrations, or enforcement action. . 

I098W 1\965999.5 
4{412011 

6 

383 

. .. ( 
... 

( . 



Section 1.11 Reimbursement. 

(a) The City, within thirty (30) days after completion and City 
acceptance of all the Public Infrastructure by the City, shall reimburse the Develo,per for 
all costs Incurred by the Developer in constructing the Public Infrastructure, including 
construction costs and normal and customary soft co;sts .Including without limitation 
design, bonds, construction, project management, and permit fees, In an amount not to 
exceed One Million Thirty Thousand Dollars ($1,030,000) (the "Maximum 
Reimbursement Amount") from Agency funds tlie City Is holding for payment for this 
work. Developer shaH provide the City with caples of Invoices and payment records as 
well as lien releases from aH contractors and subcontractors prior to the City .disbursing 
any funds to the Developer. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event 
shall the Maximum Reimbursement Amount exceed the Maximum Grant Amount. 

Section 1.12 Maximum Grant Amount. 

The Agency hereby grants to the City, and the City hereby grants to the 
Developer, the "Granf for use by the City and Developer to fulfill the obligations of this 
Agreement. The sources of the Grant from the Agency to the. City and Developer . 
consist of: ' 

(a) All funds currently held by the Agency, except the funds held in the 
Low and Moderate Income HOllsing Fund, and not previously encumbered by bir.lding 
contract for other activities, projects, or programs (the "Available Funds"); al')d 

(b) All future tax Increment revenue allocated to, made available to, or 
otherwise received by the Agency or any Successor, to the extent such tax increment 
revenue (1) is Or would be required pursuant to the Redevelopment Plan and the 
Redevelopment Law In effect as 'of the date of this Agreement to be provided to the 
Agency, and (2) is available to the Agency or SuccessQr after the Agency or Successor 
makes all necessary anriual payments required to be made with Agency monies with 
respect to then existing debt obligations of the Agency with respect to debt obligations 
existing as of the date of this Agreement, including, without IhTlitatlon, bonded 
Indebtedness, written agreements with other persons or entities, and, all obligatio)1s of 
the City and Agency included In the Cooperation Agreement (the "Pledged Funds"); and 

(c) All program Income received from any source by the Agency or 
Successor that is required by the Redevelopment Law In effect as of the date of this 
Agreement to be provided to the Agency, including, without limitation, land sale . 
proceeds, lease revenues, and loan repayments (the" Program Income"). 

The Available Funds, Pledged Funds, and Program Income together constitute 
the Maximum Grant Amount. . 

In no event shall the Grant or the Maximum ReImbursement Amount exceed the 
MaxImum Grant Amount. 

[0981011965999.5 
41412all 

7 

384 

-103-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 1.1 i Bejmbursemeo~. 

(a) The City. within thirty (30) days after completion and City 
acceptance of all the Public Infrastructure by the City. shall reimburse the Developer for 
all costs Incurred by the Developer in constructing the Public Infrastructure. including 
construction costs and normal and customary soft costs .including without limitation 
design, bonds, construction. project management. and permit faes. In an amount not to 
exceed One Million Thirty Thousand Dollars ($1,030,000) (tria "Maximum 
Relmj:)ursement Amount") from Agency funds the Cliy Is holding for payment for this 
work. Developer shall provide the City with copIes of Invoices and payment records as 
well as lien releases from all contractors and subcontractors prior to the City .disbursing 
any funds to the Developer. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision 01 this Agreement, In no event 
shan the Maximum Reimbursement Amount exceed ~he Maximum Grant Amount. 

Section 1.12 Maximum Graot Amount. 

The Agency hereby grants to the City, and the City hereby grants to the 
Developer, the "Granf for use by the CIty and Developer to fulfill the obligations of this 
Agreement The sources of the Grant from the Agency to the City and Developer . 
co~~ . 

(8) All funds currently held by the Agency, except the funds held in the 
Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund. and .not previously encumbered by blr.ldlng 
contract for other activities, projects, or programs (the· Available Funds"); al1d 

(b) All future tax Increment revenue allocated to, made avallable to, or 
otherwise received by the Agency or any Successor, to the extent such tax Increment 
revenue (1) Is or would be required pursuant to the Redevelopment Plan and the 
Redevelopment Law In effect as 'of the date of this Agreement to be provided to the 
Agency, and (2) is available to the Agency or Successor after the Agency or Successor 
makes an necessary annual payments required to be made with Agency monies with 
respect to then existing debt obligations of the Agency with respect to debt obligations 
existing as of the date of this Agreement, including, without limitation, bonded 
Indebtedness, written agreements with other persons or entities, and all obllgatlofls of 

. the City and Agency Included In the Cooperation Agreement (the ·Pledged Funds"); and 

(c) All program Incomexeceivedfrom any 50urceby the Agency or 
Successor that Is required by the Redevelopment Law In effect as of the date of this 
Agreement to be provided to the Agency, Including, without limitation, land sale 
proceeds, lease revenues, ar.d loan repayments (the· Program tncome"). 

The Available Funds, Pledged Funds, and Program Income together constitute 
the Maximum Grant Amount . 

In no event shan the Grant or the Maximum Reimbursement Amount exceed the 
Maximum Grant Amount. 

[09810.11965999,5 
4f4l2lJ1l 

7 

384 



As used in this Agreement, "tax increment revenue" means and Includes taxes 
. allocated to, or made available to, or otherwise received by the Agency or a Successor 
pursuant to Health and Safely Code Section 33670 et seq, or other provision of t~e 
Redevelopment Law, at pursuant to any applicable constitutional provision, statute, or 
other prOVision of law now existing or adopted In the futl;Jre to pay the debts and 
obligations of the Agency. 

As used in this Agreement, "Successor" includes any lawful successor of the 
Agency, and/or any lawful successor to any powers and rights of the Agency, pursuant 
to any applicable constitutional provision, statute or other prOvision of law now existing 
or adopted In the future. . 

Section 1.13 Indebtedness of the Agency. The obligation of the Agency to pay 
the Grant funds from the sources set forth in Section 1.12 to the City, and the obligation 
cif the City to pay the Maximum Reimbursement Amount to the Developer, pursuant to 
this Agreement shall constitute ari indebtedness of the Ag·ency Incurred in carrying out 
this Agreement and a pledg¢ of tax increment revenue received by the Agency or 

. S.uccessor from the Project Area to repay such indebtednes!;l under the provisions of 
Article XVI, Section 16 of the Constitution of the State of Califomia, the Redevelopment 
Law, and the Redevelopment Plan, or.under any applicable constitutional provision, 
statute, or other provision of law now existing or adopted in the future, 

ARTICLE 2. 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 2.1 Defaults and Remedies. 

(a) Default. Failure by a party to observe any material provision of 
this Agreement shall constitute a default hereunder, Notwithstanding the foregoing or 
any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the parties agree that: (I) the 
failure of Developer to commence construction of the Public Infrastructure within the 
time specified in Section 1.1 or at all shall not constitute a default or breach by 
Developer, and the City and Agency's remedies under this Agreement on account 
thereof shall be Ilmited to termination of this Agreement as specified in Section 1.1; 
ana (ii). a reduction in the Maximum Reimbursement Amount to equal the Maximum 
Grant Amount shall not ·constitute a default by City or by Agency. 

(b) Notice and Cure, The non-defaulting party or parties shall give 
written notice of a default to the defaulting party, specifying th., nature of the default 
and th.e required action to cure the default. If a default remains uncured thirty (30) 
days after receipt by the defaulting party of such notice, or within such further time as 
the non-defaulting party or parties determine is reasonable to cure such default. such 
default shall be deemed to constitute a 11 "Event of Default" by the defaulting party, and 
the non-defaulting party may exercise the remedies set forth in Section 2.1 (c). 

1098\Ol1965999J 
414/2011 

8 

385 

C' 

( 

f , .... 

-104-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

As used in this Agreement, "tax increment revenue" means and Includes taxes 
. allocated to, or made available to, or otherwise received by the Agency or a Successor 
pursuant to Health and Safely Code Section 33670 et seq, or other provision of t~e 
Redevelopment Law, at pursuant to any applicable constitutional provision, statute, or 
other prOVision of law now existing or adopted In the futl;Jre to pay the debts and 
obligations of the Agency. 

As used in this Agreement, "Successor" includes any lawful successor of the 
Agency, and/or any lawful successor to any powers and rights of the Agency, pursuant 
to any applicable constitutional provision, statute or other prOvision of law now existing 
or adopted In the future. . 

Section 1.13 Indebtedness of the Agency. The obligation of the Agency to pay 
the Grant funds from the sources set forth in Section 1.12 to the City, and the obligation 
cif the City to pay the Maximum Reimbursement Amount to the Developer, pursuant to 
this Agreement shall constitute ari indebtedness of the Ag·ency Incurred in carrying out 
this Agreement and a pledg¢ of tax increment revenue received by the Agency or 

. S.uccessor from the Project Area to repay such indebtednes!;l under the provisions of 
Article XVI, Section 16 of the Constitution of the State of Califomia, the Redevelopment 
Law, and the Redevelopment Plan, or.under any applicable constitutional provision, 
statute, or other provision of law now existing or adopted in the future, 

ARTICLE 2. 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 2.1 Defaults and Remedies. 

(a) Default. Failure by a party to observe any material provision of 
this Agreement shall constitute a default hereunder, Notwithstanding the foregoing or 
any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the parties agree that: (I) the 
failure of Developer to commence construction of the Public Infrastructure within the 
time specified in Section 1.1 or at all shall not constitute a default or breach by 
Developer, and the City and Agency's remedies under this Agreement on account 
thereof shall be Ilmited to termination of this Agreement as specified in Section 1.1; 
ana (ii). a reduction in the Maximum Reimbursement Amount to equal the Maximum 
Grant Amount shall not ·constitute a default by City or by Agency. 

(b) Notice and Cure, The non-defaulting party or parties shall give 
written notice of a default to the defaulting party, specifying th., nature of the default 
and th.e required action to cure the default. If a default remains uncured thirty (30) 
days after receipt by the defaulting party of such notice, or within such further time as 
the non-defaulting party or parties determine is reasonable to cure such default. such 
default shall be deemed to constitute a 11 "Event of Default" by the defaulting party, and 
the non-defaulting party may exercise the remedies set forth in Section 2.1 (c). 

1098\Ol1965999J 
414/2011 

8 

385 

C' 

( 

f , .... 



(c) Limitation of Remedies. City, Agency, and Developer 
acknowledge that the purpose of this Agreement is to carry out the parties' objectives 
as set forth In the recitals. City, Agency, and Developer agree that to determine a sum. 
of money which would adequately compensate any party for choices they have made 
which would be foreclosed should the Public Inf.rastructure not be installed as .. 
contemplated by this Agreement is not possible and that damages would not be an 
adequat~ remedy. Therefore, City, Agency, and Developer agree that in the event of 
a breach or default of this Agreement, the only remedIes available to the non-
breaching party shall be: (1) suits for specific performance to remedy a specific 
breach, (2) suits for declaratory or injunctive or other equitable relief, (:3) suits for 
mandamus under Code of Civil Procedure Section 108$, or special writs, and (4) 
termination or cance/latlon of this Agreement. Except for attorney's fees and 
associated costs as set forth herein, monetary damages shall not be awarded to any 
party. This exclusIon of damages Is not intended to limit, and shall riot preclud e, 
actions by a party to enforce payments of monies due or the performance of 
obligations requiring the expenditures of money under the terms of this Agreement. 
All of these remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive of one another, and the 
exercise of anyone or more of these remedies shall not constitute a Waiver or election . 
with respect to any other available remedy. . 

Section 2.2 Survival. 

Upon termination of this Agreement, the indemnification obiigation In Section 3.7 
shafl survive (along with all other sections whose survival is reasonably necessary to 
carry out the sections' clear intent). This Section 2.2 exists for reference purposes only, 
gnd does not alter the scope or nature of the surviving provisions. . 

ARTICLE 3. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 3.1 .. Notices, Demands and Communications. 

Formal notices, demands, and communications among the Agency, the City and 
the Developer shall be sufficiently given If, and shall not be deemed given unless, . 
secured personally, or dispatched by certified mall, return receipt requested, or by 
facsimile transmission or reputable ovemlght delivery service with a receipt showing 
date of delivery, to the principal offlcesof the Agency, the City and the Developer as 
follows: 

Agency: 

10981011965999.5 
41412011 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave. 
Capitola, CA 95010 
Attn:. Executive Direclor 

9 

386 

, 
i 
I 

-105-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

(e) Limitation of Remedies. Olty, Agency, and Developer 
acknowledge that the purpose of this Agreement is to carry out the parties' objectives 
as set forth In the recitals. Olty, Agency, and Developer agree that to determine iii sum. 
Of money which would adequately compensate any party for choices they have made 
which would be foreclosed should the Public Infrastructure not be installed as . 
contemplated by this Agreement is not posslbie and that damages would not be an 
adequate remedy. Therefore, Oity, Agency, and Developer agree that in the event of 
a breach or default of this Agreement, the only remedIes available to the non
breaching party shall be: (1) suits for specific performance to remedy iii ~pecific 
breach, (2) suits for declaratory or injunctive or other equitable rel!ef, (3) suits for 
mandamus Linder Oede of Civil Procedure Section 1085, or special writs, and (4) 
termination or cancellatlon of this Agreeme.nt. Except for attorney's fees and 
associated costs as set forth herein. monetary damages shall not be aWarded to any 
party. This exclusion of damages Is not intended to limit, and shall riot precllXle, 
actions by a party to enforce payments of monies due or the performance of 
obligations requiring the 6.xpendlturas of money under the tenTIs of this Agreement. 
All of these remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive of one another, and the 
exercise of anyone or more of these remedies shall not const~ute a waiver or election 
with respect to any other available remedY.' . 

Section 2.2 Survival. 

Upon termination of this Agreement, the indemnification obiigation In Section 3.7 
shail suiVive (along with all other sectlons whose survival is reasonably necessary to 
carry aut the sections' clear intent). This Section 2.2 exists for reference purposes only, 
and does not alter the scope or nature of the surviving proVisions. . 

ARTIOLE 3. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 3.1 . Notices. Demands and Communications. 

Formal notices, demands, and communications among the Agency, the CIty and. 
the Developer shan be sufficientfy g!ven If, and shall not be deemed given unless, 
secured personally, or dispatched by certified mall, return receipt requested, or by 
facsimile transmission or reputable overnIght defivery service with a recaipt showing 
date of deUvery,to the principal offlcesof the Agency, the City and the Developer as 
follows: 

Agency: 

10'J3\1)11!16.5999.5 
41AJ2<l1l 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Av'iiJ. 
Oapitollil,OA 95010 
Attn:. Executiv6.Director 

9 

386 



City: City of Capitola 
. 420 Capitola Ave. 
Capitola, CA 9501 Q 
Attn: City Manager 

Developer. Macerioh Property Management Company, LLC 
401 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Attn: Charles W. Davis, Jr., Vice-President, Development 

With a copy to: Macerich Property Management Company, LLC 
401 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Attn: Chief Legal Officer 

Sucn written notices. demands and communications may be sent In the same manner 
to such other addresses as the affected party may from time to time designate by mall 
as provided in this Section 3.1. Delivery shall be deemed to have occurred at the time 
indicated on the receipt for delivery or refusal of delivery. , 

Section 3.2 Non-Liabilitvaf Officials, Employees and Agents. 

No member, official, employee or agent of the Agency or the City shall be 
personally liable to the Developer, or any successor in Interest, in the event of any 
default or breach by the Agency or the City or for any amount which may become· due to 

. the Developer or successor or on any obligation under the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 3.3 Enforced Delay. 

In additional to specific prOvisions of this Agreement, performance by any party 
shall not be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; 
Insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; quarantine restrictions; 
freight embargoes; lack of transportation; or court order; or any other similar causes 
(other than lack of funds or the Developer's. Inability to finance the construction of the 
Public Infrastructure) beyond the control or without the fault of the party claiming an . 
extension of time to peiionn. An extension of time for any cause will be deemed 
granted if notice by the party claiming such extension ii:? sent to the other within ten (10) 
days from the commencement of the cause and such extension of time is not rejected In 
writing by the· other party within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice. In no event shall 
the City and Agency be required to agree to cumulative delays prior to commencement 
of construction of the Public Infrastructure In excess of one hundred eighty (180) days, 
or to cumUlative delays after commencement of construction of the Public Infrastrudure 
I'n excess of one year. Times of performance under this Agreement may also be 
extended by written agreement of the Agency, the City and the Developer. 

1098\01\9659995 
41412011 

10 

387 

(. 

I 
i 
I 

I 

-106-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

City: City of Capitola 
. 420 Capitola Ave. 
Capitola, CA 9501 Q 
Attn: City Manager 

Developer. Macerioh Property Management Company, LLC 
401 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Attn: Charles W. Davis, Jr., Vice-President, Development 

With a copy to: Macerich Property Management Company, LLC 
401 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
Attn: Chief Legal Officer 

Sucn written notices. demands and communications may be sent In the same manner 
to such other addresses as the affected party may from time to time designate by mall 
as provided in this Section 3.1. Delivery shall be deemed to have occurred at the time 
indicated on the receipt for delivery or refusal of delivery. , 

Section 3.2 Non-Liabilitvaf Officials, Employees and Agents. 

No member, official, employee or agent of the Agency or the City shall be 
personally liable to the Developer, or any successor in Interest, in the event of any 
default or breach by the Agency or the City or for any amount which may become· due to 

. the Developer or successor or on any obligation under the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 3.3 Enforced Delay. 

In additional to specific prOvisions of this Agreement, performance by any party 
shall not be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; 
Insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; quarantine restrictions; 
freight embargoes; lack of transportation; or court order; or any other similar causes 
(other than lack of funds or the Developer's. Inability to finance the construction of the 
Public Infrastructure) beyond the control or without the fault of the party claiming an . 
extension of time to peiionn. An extension of time for any cause will be deemed 
granted if notice by the party claiming such extension ii:? sent to the other within ten (10) 
days from the commencement of the cause and such extension of time is not rejected In 
writing by the· other party within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice. In no event shall 
the City and Agency be required to agree to cumulative delays prior to commencement 
of construction of the Public Infrastructure In excess of one hundred eighty (180) days, 
or to cumUlative delays after commencement of construction of the Public Infrastrudure 
I'n excess of one year. Times of performance under this Agreement may also be 
extended by written agreement of the Agency, the City and the Developer. 

1098\01\9659995 
41412011 

10 

387 

(. 

I 
i 
I 

I 



Section 3.4 Time of the Essence. 

Time Is of the essence in this Agreement. 

Section 3 .. 5 Inspection of Books and Records. 

The Agency and the City have the right at all reasonable times to inspect on a 
confidential basis the books, records and all other docum\'lntation of the Developer 
pertaining to its obligations under this Agreement. 

Section 3.6 Title of Parts and Sections. 

Any titles of ,the sections or subsections of this Agreement are Inserted for 
convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded 'In interpreting any of its 
proVisions. 

Section 3.7 Indemnity. 

The Developer shall Indemnify, defend and hold the City and Agency hamnless 
against any and all claims, suits, actions, losses and liability of every kind, nature and 
description made against It and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) which 
arise out of or In connection with this Agreement, Including but not limited to 
Developer'S construction of the Public Infrastructure, except to the e~ent such claim 
arises from the, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, the Agency, or any of 
their respective agents or employees. The provisions of this seCtion shall survive the 
expiration of this Agreement. ' 

Section 3.8 Liability Insurance. 

The Developer shall cause to have In fl,JlI force and effect during the construction 
of the Public Infrastructure Insurance under the temns and conditions as required by the _ 
Public Works Director; prov.ided that. at a minimum, Peveloper and its general 
contractor shall have liability insurance with limits of not less than Two Million Doliars 
($2,000,000) per occurrence and Five Milliori Dollars ($p,OOO,OOO) combined, _which 
insurance shall name the Agency and City as additional Insureds . 

. Section 3.9 Rights and Remedies Cumulative. 

Except as otherwise expressly stated Ih this Agreement, the,rights and remedies 
of the Parties are cumulative, and the exercise or failure to exercise one or more of 
such rights or remedies by any party shall not preclude the-exercise by.lt, at the same 
time or different times, of any right or remedy fortbe same default or any other default 
by another party. 

Section 3.10 Apollcable Law. 

This Agreement shall be Interpreted under the laws of the State of California. 

109.\0 l\965999.5 
4/4/2011 

11 

388 

I 
- I 

-107-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 3.4 Time of the Essence. 

TIme Is of the essence in this Agreement. 

Section 3,5 Inspection of Books and Records. 

The Agency and the City have the right at all reasonable times to inspect on a 
confldentlal basis the books, records and all other documentation of the Developer 
pertaining to its obligations under this Agreement 

Section 3.6 Title of Parts and Sect1ons. 

Any titles of , the sections or subsections of this Agreement are Inserted for 
convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in Interpreting any of its 
provisions. 

Section 3.7 Indemnity. 

The Developer shall Indemnify, defend and hold the City and Agency harmless 
against any and aU claims, suits, actions, losses and liability of every kind, nature and ' 
description made against it and expenses {including reasonable attomeys' fees) which 
arise out of or In connection with this Agreem,ent, Including but not limited to 
Developer's construction of the Publlc Infrastructure, except to the elfient such claim 
arises from the, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, the Agency, or any of 
their respective agents or employees. The provlsions of this seCtien shan survive the 
expiration of this Agreement. 

Section 3.8 Liability Im,yranca. 

The Developer shall cause to have In full force and effect during the construction 
af the Public Infrastructure Insurance under the terms and condlt!ons as required by the . 
Public Works Director; provided that, at a minimum, Develeper and its general 
contractor shall have Dability insurance with limits of not less than TwO' Million Doliars 
($2,000,000) per accurrenee and Five Millien Dollars ($(5,000,000) combined, ,which 
insurance shall name the Agency and City as sdditionallnsureds. 

Section 3.9 Rights and Remedies Cumulative. 

Except as otherwise expressly stated Ih this Agreement, the,rights and remedies 
of the Parties are cumulative, and the exercise or failure to exercise one or more of 
such rights or. remedies by any party shan not preclude the'eXercise by It, at the same 
time or different times, of any right or remedy for the same default or any other default 
by another party. 

Section 3.10 Applicable Law. 

This Agreement shall be Interpreted under the laws of lhe State of California. 

, 10_[\96.1999,5 
41412l)1I 

11 

388 

, 
i 

. I 



Section 3.11 Severability. 

If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement Is held in a final 
disposition by a court of competent jurisdiction to be Invalid, void or unenforceable, then 
the remainder of the provisiqns shall continue in full force and effect unless the rights· 
and obligations of the parties have be.en materially altered or abridged. by such Rolding 
of invalidity. 

Section 3.12 Legal Actions. 

In the event legal action Is commenced by a third party or parties, the effect of 
which is to directly or Indirectly challenge or compromi1)e the enforceability, validity, or 
legality of this Agreement and/or the power and ability of the Agency and the City to 
enter into this. Agreement or perform their obligations hereunder, any of the City, the 
Agency or the Developer may (but shall have no obligation to) defend such action. 
Upon commencement of any such ac;tion,. the Agency, the City and the Developer shall 
meet In good faith to seel< to establish a mutually acceptable method of defending such 
action. If, thirty (30) days after the commencement of any such action, a mutually 
acceptable method of defense has not been established, the Developer may (but shall 
have no obligation to) provide written notice of its intention to defehd such action. 

Section 3.13 Equal Opportunity. 

389 

( .. 

For purposes of this Agreement and Developer's obligations hereunder regarding ( 
the Public Infrastructure, the Developer and its successors, assigns, cqntractors and 
subcontractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex; sexual orientation, national origin, veteran's status 
or physical or mental disability. Such action will include and apply to the employment of 
contractors·, subcontractors, and applicants for employment. During construction of the 
Public Infrastructure by the Developer, ·the Developer agrees to post and to cause its 
contractors and SUbcontractors to post, in conspicuous places, available to all 
employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
non-discriminatlon clause. 

Section 3.14ldentjty and Authoritv. 

The·person executIng this Agreement on behalf of the Developer does hereby 
covenant and warrant that the Developer Is a.dulyauthorized and existing Delaware 
limited liability company; that the Developer has, is and shall remain In good standing 
and qualified to do business In the State of California; that the Developer has full right, 
·power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry out all actions on its part 
contemplated by this Agreement; that the execution and delivery of this Agreement 
were duly authorized by proper action of the Developer and no consent, authorization or 
approval of any person Is necessary in connection with such execution and delivery or 
to carry out all actions on the Developer's part contemplated by this Agreement, except 
as have been obtained and are in full force and effect; that the persons executing this 
Agreement on behalf of the Developer have full authority to do so; and that this . L, 
Agreement constitutes the valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Developer. 

109810 1\965999.5 
414120ll 

12 

-108-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 3.11 Severability. 

If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement Is held in a final 
disposition by a court of competent jurisdiction to be Invalid, void or unenforceable, then 
the remainder of the provisiqns shall continue in full force and effect unless the rights· 
and obligations of the parties have be.en materially altered or abridged. by such Rolding 
of invalidity. 

Section 3.12 Legal Actions. 

In the event legal action Is commenced by a third party or parties, the effect of 
which is to directly or Indirectly challenge or compromi1)e the enforceability, validity, or 
legality of this Agreement and/or the power and ability of the Agency and the City to 
enter into this. Agreement or perform their obligations hereunder, any of the City, the 
Agency or the Developer may (but shall have no obligation to) defend such action. 
Upon commencement of any such ac;tion,. the Agency, the City and the Developer shall 
meet In good faith to seel< to establish a mutually acceptable method of defending such 
action. If, thirty (30) days after the commencement of any such action, a mutually 
acceptable method of defense has not been established, the Developer may (but shall 
have no obligation to) provide written notice of its intention to defehd such action. 

Section 3.13 Equal Opportunity. 

389 

( .. 

For purposes of this Agreement and Developer's obligations hereunder regarding ( 
the Public Infrastructure, the Developer and its successors, assigns, cqntractors and 
subcontractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex; sexual orientation, national origin, veteran's status 
or physical or mental disability. Such action will include and apply to the employment of 
contractors·, subcontractors, and applicants for employment. During construction of the 
Public Infrastructure by the Developer, ·the Developer agrees to post and to cause its 
contractors and SUbcontractors to post, in conspicuous places, available to all 
employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
non-discriminatlon clause. 

Section 3.14ldentjty and Authoritv. 

The·person executIng this Agreement on behalf of the Developer does hereby 
covenant and warrant that the Developer Is a.dulyauthorized and existing Delaware 
limited liability company; that the Developer has, is and shall remain In good standing 
and qualified to do business In the State of California; that the Developer has full right, 
·power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry out all actions on its part 
contemplated by this Agreement; that the execution and delivery of this Agreement 
were duly authorized by proper action of the Developer and no consent, authorization or 
approval of any person Is necessary in connection with such execution and delivery or 
to carry out all actions on the Developer's part contemplated by this Agreement, except 
as have been obtained and are in full force and effect; that the persons executing this 
Agreement on behalf of the Developer have full authority to do so; and that this . L, 
Agreement constitutes the valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Developer. 

109810 1\965999.5 
414120ll 

12 



Section 3.15 Assignment 

(a) City and Agency are entering into this Agreement based on the 
experience, skill, and ability to perform of Developer. This Agreement shall not be 
assigned by the Developer without first obtaining the express written consent of the City 
and Agency, which consent shail not be unreasonably withheld. Any disapproval shall 
specify the CIty's orAgency's objections in reasonable detail; such objections may 
reasonably Include a request for additional information regarding the experience, sklll, 
and ability to perform of the proposed assignee. Fallure of the City or Agency to 
disapprove any assignment by wrltten r:1otlce to Developer within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of Developer's written request fOf consent shall be deemed to be the consent of 
the City or the Agency to the assignment. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, neither the City's 
nor the. Agenty'sconsent shall be required fqr any assignment of this Agreement by 
Developer to any of the following entities: (a) an entity in which The Macerich 
Company, a Maryland corPoration ("Macerlch"), or The Macerich Partnership, L.P., a 
Delaware limited partnership ("Macerich LP"), owns fifty percent (50%) or more of the 
ownership interests; (b) an entity in which Macerich or Macerich LP has the right, under 
the goveming agreements or documents of the controlled entity, to manage and operate 
the entity; or (c) any entity that acquires an ownership Interest in Capitola Mall any time 
after commencement of construction of the Public Infrastructure has occurred in 
conformance wit~ this Agreement, provided that all bonds and guarantees stipulated in 
Section 1.3, and elsewhere In this Agreement, are binding with respect io the 
obligations of the assignee. City and Agency shall be provided with written notice of any 
assignment pursuant to this subsection within ten (10) days after such assignment. 

Section 3.16 Assignment Betw€(en Agency and City: Delegation of Powers 

(a) Pursuant to California Health & Safety COde Section 33205, the 
. Agency delegates t6 the City all of its powers and functions with respect to the 'planning 
and undertaking of activities necessary to effectuate the ImplementatIon of this 
Agreement, and authorizes the City to carrY out and perform such powers and functions 
for the Agency In connection with such development. The City hereby accepts such 
delegation from.the Agency. . 

(b) The City may assign to the Agency any power delegated to the City 
by this Agreement; and the Agency may assign to the City any power delegated to the 
Agency by this Agreement. Should any enacted statute or voter Initiative temporarily or 
permanently prohibit the Agency from hiking any action required by this Agreement, 
then those actions may be taken by the City without need for Agency action. 

Section 3.17 Binding Upon Successors, 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors 
in interest and aS51gns of each of the parties. 'Any reference in this Agreement to a 
specifically named party shall be deemed to apply to any successor or assign of such 

13 
10981011965999.5 
4f4l2011 

390 

-109-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 3.15 Assignment 

(a) City and Agency are entering into this Agreement based on the 
experience, skill. and ability to perform of Developer. This Agreement shall not be 
assigned by the Developer without first obtaining the express written consent of the City 
and Agency. which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any disapproval shall 
specify the CIty's or Agency's objections in reasonable detail; suchobjec!ions may 
reasonably Include a request for additional informalion regarding the experience, skill, 
and ability to perform of the proposed assignee. Fanure of the City or Agency to 
disapprove any assfgnment by written l'1otlce tc Developer within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of Developer's wrItten request for consent shall be deemed to be the consent of 
the City or the Agency to the assignment. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, neither !lie City's 
nor the Agency's consent shall be required fqr any assignment of thls Agreement by 
Developer to any of the following entities: (a) an entity in which The Macerich 
Comp<iny, a Maryland corPoration ("Macerlch"), or The Macerich Partnership, L.P., a 
Delaware Iim/ted partnership ("Macerich LP'). owns fifty percent (50% )or more of the 
ownership interests; (b) an entity in which Macerich or Macerich LP has the right, under 
the goveming agreements or documents of the controlled entity, to manage and operate 
Iheentity; or (0) any entity that acquires an ownership Interest In Capitola Man any time 
after commencement of construction of the Public Infrastructure has occurred in 
conformance witf;1 this Agreement .• provided that all bonds and guarantees stipulated in 
Section 1.3, and elsewhere in this Agreement, are binding with respect \0 the 
obligations of the assignee. City and Agency sha!! be provided with written notice of any 
aSSignment pursuant to this subsection within ten (10) days after Such assignment. 

Section 3.16 Assignment BetwEJen Agency andCitv; Delegation of Powers 

(a) Pursuant to California Health 8. Safety COde Section 33206, the 
. Agency delegates to the City all of its powers and functions with respect to the 'planning 
and undertaking of activities necessary to etfectuate the implementatIon of this 
Agreement, and authorizes the City to carrY aut and perform such powers and functions 
for the Agency In connection with such development. The City hereby accepts suoh 
delegation from.the Agency. . 

(b) The City may assign to the Agency any power delegated to the City 
by this Agreement; and the Agency may assign to the City any power delegated to the 
Agency by this Agreement. Should any enacted statute or voter Initiative temporarilY or 
permanently prohibit the Agency from biking any action required by this Agreement, 
then those actions may be taken by the City without need for Agency action. 

Section 3.17 Binding Upon Successors. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors 
in interest and assigns of each of the parties. -Any reference in this Agreement to a 
specifiCally named party shall be deemed to apply to any successor or assign of such 

13 
lO'lll101I%S999.5 
414120tl 

390 



party who has acquired an Interest in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or ' 
under law, provided that any assignment must be consistent with the provisions of 
Section -3.15 of this Agreement. 

Section 3.18 Parties Not Co-Venturers. 

Nothing In this Agreement is Intended to or does establish the parties as partners 
or co-venturers. -

Section 3.19 Interpretation. 

Each party to this Agreement has had an opportunity to review tl;le Agreement, confer 
with legal counsel regarding the meaning of the Agreement, and negotiate revisions to 
the Agreement. Accordingly, neither party shall rely upon Civil Code Section 1654 in 
ordedo interpret any uncertainty in the meaning of the Agreement. 

Section 3.20 Fntire Understanding of the Parties. 

This Agreement (Including the exhibits) constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties with respect to the construction and use of the Public 
Infrastructure. 

Section 3.21 Approvals. 

(a) Whenever this Agreement calls for Agency approval, consent, or 
waiver, the written approval, consent, or waiver of the Agency Executive Director shall 
constitute the approval, con;sent, or waiver of the Agency, without further authorization 
required from the Agency Board. -The Agency hereby authorizes the Agency's 
Executive Director to deliver such approvals or consent;:; 'ls are required by this 
Agreement, or to waive requirements under this Agreement, on behalf oHhe Agency. 

(b) Whenever this Agreement C<lits for City approval, consent, or 
waiver, the written approval, co nsent, or waiver of the City Manager shall constitute the 
approval, consent, or waiver of the City, without further authorization required from the 
City Council. The City hereby authorizes the City Manager to deliver such <lpprovals or 
consents as are required by this Agr?ement, or to waive requirements under this 
Agreement, on behalf of the City. 

(c) All approvals under this Agreement shall be subject tO,<I 
reasonableness standard, except where a sole discretion standard Is specifically 
provided. -

(d) Developer acknowledges ihat execution of this Agreement by the 
City and Agency does not constitute approval by the City or Agency of <lny required 
additional governmental approvals for the Private Developer Project or for the Public 
Infrastructure, including but not limited to any discretionary planning approvals, 
construction permits, and operating permits, and that this Agreement in no way limlts 
the discretion of the City and Agency in any permit or approval process .. 

1098\01\965999,5 
4/4ll.Dll 

14 

391 

( 

( , -
'-

-110-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

party who has acquired an Interest in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or ' 
under law, provided that any assignment must be consistent with the provisions of 
Section -3.15 of this Agreement. 

Section 3.18 Parties Not Co-Venturers. 

Nothing In this Agreement is intended to or does establish the parties as partners 
or co-venturers. -

Section 3.19 Interpretation. 

Each party to this Agreement has had an opportunity to review ti;le Agreement, confer 
with legal counsel regarding the meaning of the Agreement, and negotiate revisions to 
the Agreement. Accordingly, neither party shall rely upon Civil Code Section 1654 in 
ordedo interpret any uncertainty in the meaning of the Agreement. 

Section 3.20 Fntire Understanding of the Parties. 

This Agreement (Including the exhibits) constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties with respect to the construction and use of the Public 
Infrastructure. 

Section 3.21 Approvals. 

(a) Whenever this Agreement calls for Agency approval, consent, or 
waiver, the written approval, consent, or waiver of the Agency Executive Director shall 
constitute the approval, con;sent, or waiver of the Agency, without further authorization 
required from the Agency Board. -The Agency hereby authorizes the Agency's 
Executive Director to deliver such approvals or consent;:; 'ls are required by this 
Agreement, or to waive requirements under this Agreement, on behalf oHhe Agency. 

(b) Whenever this Agreement C<lits for City approval, consent, or 
waiver, the written approval, co nsent, or waiver of the City Manager shall constitute the 
approval, consent, or waiver of the City, without further authorization required from the 
City Council. The City hereby authorizes the City Manager to deliver such <lpprovals or 
consents as are required by this Agreement, or to waive requirements under this 
Agreement, on behalf of the City. 

(c) All approvals under this Agreement sh<lll be subject tO,a 
reasonableness standard, except where a sole discretion standard Is specifically 
provided. -

(d) Developer acknowledges ihat execution of this Agreement by the 
City and Agency does not constitute approval by the City or Agency of <lny required 
additional governmental approvals for the Private Developer Project or for the Public 
Infrastructure, including but not limited to any discretionary planning approvals, 
construction permits, and operating permits, and that this Agreement in no way limlts 
the discretion of the City and Agency in any permit or approval process .. 

1098\01\965999,5 
4/4ll.Dll 

14 

391 

( 

( , -
'-



Section 3.22 Amendments. 

The parties can amend this Agreement only by means of a writing signed by ali 
parties. . . 

Section 3.23 Multiple Originals; Counterparts. 

Thi~ Agreement may be executed In multiple originals, each of which Is deemed 
to be an original, and may be signed In counterparts. . 

1098\011965999.5 
4/01120ll 

.. 

15 

392 

-111-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

Section 3.22 Amendmen1s. 

The parties can amend this Agreement oniy by meaflS of a writing signed by all 
parties. - ' 

Section 3.23 Mu[1lple Originals: Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed In multiple originals, each of which is deemed 
to be an original, and may be signed In counterparts. . 

1098\1)[\%5999.5 
4/01/20 [ [ 

. ' 

15 

392 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of. the 
date first written above. . 

\09810\\965999.5 
41412011 

AGENCY: 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA, a public body, oorporate and politic 

~, ~ 

By:'!;;J 5". . . 
Name: Jamie Goldstein 

Its: EXecutive Director 

CITY: 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, a municipal corp.oration 

By: ~ -. 

Name: Jami e· Goldsteiu 

Its: CHy Manager 

DEVELOPER: . 

Macerich Property Manag",ment Company, LLC, a 
Delaware lim~ ytlliity co pa • 

BY:~. . 

Its: SVP, Genera 1 Counse 1 

16 

393 

(' 

c· 

c· 

-112-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of. the 
date first written above. . 

\09810\\965999.5 
41412011 

AGENCY: 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA, a public body, oorporate and politic 

~, ~ 

By:'!;;J 5". . . 
Name: Jamie Goldstein 

Its: EXecutive Director 

CITY: 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, a municipal corp.oration 

By: ~ -. 

Name: Jami e· Goldsteiu 

Its: CHy Manager 

DEVELOPER: . 

Macerich Property Manag",ment Company, LLC, a 
Delaware lim~ ytlliity co pa • 

BY:~. . 

Its: SVP, Genera 1 Counse 1 

16 

393 

(' 

c· 

c· 



EXHIBIT A 

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 

The Public Infrastructure to be· Installed under this Agreement includes the followtng: 

Reconstruct existing public Improvemel1ts ac:!jacent to the Private Developer 
p~~ . 

• Widen sidewalks within public right of way 
• Install landscaping, street trees, and street fumiture within public right-of-way 
• Reconstruct eJdstlng public transit center currently located within the Capitola 

Mali to improve public access and circulation 
• Improve bicycle access . . 

If the total costs for the above improvements that are eligible for reimbursement 
pursuant to Section 1.11 are less than the Maximum Reimbursement Amount, Agency, 
City, and Developer may agree to increase the scope of the Public Infrastructure to 
incorporate curbs, gutters, drainage, and similar improvements. 

1098\0 11965999.5 
414i201l 

A-1 

394 

-113-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

EXHI81TA 

PUBUCINFRASTRUCTURE 

The PubUc Infrastructure to be· Installed under this Agreement includes the following, 

Reconstruct existing public Improvemel1ts adjacent to the Private Developer 
Project 

• WIden sidewalks within public right of way 
• InstaH landscaping, street trees, and street furniture within public right-af-way 
• Reconstruct exlstlng public transit center currently located within the Capitola 

Mall to fmprove public access and circulation 
• linp~ovE! bicycle access . . 

If the total costs for the above improvements that are eligible for reimbursement 
pursuant to Section 1.11 are less than the Maximum Reimbursement Arrount, Agency, 
City, and Developer may agree to Increase the scope of the Public Infrastructure to 
incorporate curbs, gutters, drainage, and similar improvements. 

Hl911\Ot\%5999.i 
414t20lt 

394 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-114-



CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13,2014 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH KIMLEY-HORN TO 
PREPARE THE CITY'S 2015-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Ctty Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare the City's 2015-2023 Housing Element Update in 
an amount not-to-exceed $41,036. 

BACKGROUND: State law requires all cities and counties in California to update the 
General Plan Housing Element every eight years. The City's current Housing Element for 
the 2007-2014 housing cycle was adopted by the City Council on February 11, 2010, and 
certified by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) on 
April 6, 2010. The deadline to adopt the 2015-2023 Housing Element update is December 
31,2015. 

On June 11 2014, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) 
approved the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for the 2015-2023 housing 
cycle. The City's 2015-2023 RHNA obligation is 143 units, which is the same as the 
previous housing cycle. 

DISCUSSION: City staff issued a request for proposals for qualified professional 
planning firms to prepare the City's 2014-2023 Housing Element update on August 6, 
2014. A total of three firms submitted proposals. All three firms were invited to present 
their qualifications to a Selection Committee consisting of the City's Community 
Development Director, Senior Planner, a Planning Commission representative, and a 
Capitola resident who previously served as a Capitola Planning Commissioner and is 
currently employed as a professional planner for the City of Santa Cruz. 

After a careful review of each firm's qualifications, proposals, and presentations, the 
Selection Committee recommended awarding a contract to Kimley-Horn. Kimley-Horn has 
assigned a team of highly qualified planners who have extensive experience with 
preparing successful Housing Element updates, including cities in the Monterey Bay 
region. Furthermore, Kimley-Horn recently opened an office in Capitola and their 
Principal-in-Charge, Bill Wiseman, has extensive experience working on both public and 
private projects in Capitola. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funds for the Housing Element update are available from the City's 
General Plan Maintenance Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Professional Services Contract 

Report Prepared By: Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and 4rc;led 
By City Managb.~ 

R:\CITY CQUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\111314\9.D. Housing Element Update Contract Staff Report.doC)( 

-115-

Item #: 9.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 13,2014 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH KIMLEY-HORN TO 
PREPARE THE CITY'S 2015-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Ctty Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare the City's 2015-2023 Housing Element Update in 
an amount not-to-exceed $41,036. 

BACKGROUND: State law requires all cities and counties in California to update the 
General Plan Housing Element every eight years. The City's current Housing Element for 
the 2007-2014 housing cycle was adopted by the City Council on February 11, 2010, and 
certified by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) on 
April 6, 2010. The deadline to adopt the 2015-2023 Housing Element update is December 
31,2015. 

On June 11 2014, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) 
approved the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for the 2015-2023 housing 
cycle. The City's 2015-2023 RHNA obligation is 143 units, which is the same as the 
previous housing cycle. 

DISCUSSION: City staff issued a request for proposals for qualified professional 
planning firms to prepare the City's 2014-2023 Housing Element update on August 6, 
2014. A total of three firms submitted proposals. All three firms were invited to present 
their qualifications to a Selection Committee consisting of the City's Community 
Development Director, Senior Planner, a Planning Commission representative, and a 
Capitola resident who previously served as a Capitola Planning Commissioner and is 
currently employed as a professional planner for the City of Santa Cruz. 

After a careful review of each firm's qualifications, proposals, and presentations, the 
Selection Committee recommended awarding a contract to Kimley-Horn. Kimley-Horn has 
assigned a team of highly qualified planners who have extensive experience with 
preparing successful Housing Element updates, including cities in the Monterey Bay 
region. Furthermore, Kimley-Horn recently opened an office in Capitola and their 
Principal-in-Charge, Bill Wiseman, has extensive experience working on both public and 
private projects in Capitola. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funds for the Housing Element update are available from the City's 
General Plan Maintenance Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Professional Services Contract 

Report Prepared By: Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and 4rc;led 
By City Managb.~ 

R:\CITY CQUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\111314\9.D. Housing Element Update Contract Staff Report.doC)( 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-116-



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT. 

2015-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE PREPARATION 
KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on November 24, 2014, by and between the City of Capitola, 
a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called "City" and Kimley-Hom & Associates, hereinafter called 
"Consultant". 

WHEREAS, City desires certain services described in Appendix One and Consultant is capable 
of providing and desires to provide these services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, City and Consultant for the consideration and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter specified agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 
Scope of Services 

The services to be performed under this Agreement are for preparation ofthe City's 2015-2023 
Housing Element update and further detailed in Appendix One. 

SECTION 2 
Duties of Consultant 

All work performed by Consultant, or under its direction, shall be sufficient to satisfy the City's 
objectives for entering into this Agreement and shall be rendered in accordance with the generally 
accepted practices, and to the standards of, Consultant's profession. 

Consultant shall not undertake any work beyond the scope of work set forth in Appendix One 
unless such additional work is approved in advance and in writing by City. The cost of such additional 
work shall be reimbursed to Consultant by City on the same basis as provided for in Section 4. 

If, in the prosecution of the work, it is necessary to conduct field operations, security and safety of 
the job site will be the Consultant's responsibility excluding, nevertheless, the security and safety of any 
facility of City within the job site which is not under the Consultant's control. 

Consultant shall meet with the Community Development Director, called "Director," or other City 
personnel, or third parties as necessary, on all matters connected with carrying out of Consultant's 
services described in Appendix One. Such meetings shall be held at the request of either party hereto. 
Review and City approval of completed work shall be obtained monthly, or at such intervals as may be 
mutually agreed upon, during the course of this work. 

SECTION 3 
Duties of the City 

City shall make available to Consultant all data and information in the City's possession which 
City deems necessary to the preparation and execution of the work, and City shall actively aid and assist 
ConSUltant in obtaining such information from other agencies and individuals as necessary. 

The Director may authorize a staff person to serve as his or her representative for conferring with 
Consultant relative to Consultant's services. The work in progress hereunder shall be reviewed from time 
to time by City at the discretion of City or upon the request of Consultant. If the work is satisfactory, it will 

-117-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT. 

2015-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE PREPARATION 
KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on November 24, 2014, by and between the City of Capitola, 
a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called "City" and Kimley-Horn & Associates, hereinafter called 
"Consultant". 

WHEREAS, City desires certain services described in Appendix One and Consultant is capable 
of providing and desires to provide these services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, City and Consultant for the consideration and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter specified agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 
Scope of Services 

The services to be performed under this Agreement are for preparation ofthe City's 2015-2023 
Housing Element update and further detailed in Appendix One. 

SECTION 2 
Duties of Consultant 

All work performed by Consultant, or under its direction, shall be sufficient to satisfy the City's 
objectives for entering into this Agreement and shall be rendered in accordance with the generally 
accepted practices, and to the standards of, Consultant's profession. 

Consultant shall not undertake any work beyond the scope of work set forth in Appendix One 
unless such additional work is approved in advance and in writing by City. The cost of such additional 
work shall be reimbursed to Consultant by City on the same basis as provided for in Section 4. 

If, in the prosecution of the work, it is necessary to conduct field operations, security and safety of 
the job site will be the Consultant's responsibility excluding, nevertheless, the security and safety of any 
facility of City within the job site which is not under the Consultant's control. 

Consultant shall meet with the Community Development Director, called "Director," or other City 
personnel, or third parties as necessary, on all matters connected with carrying out of Consultant's 
services described in Appendix One. Such meetings shall be held at the request of either party hereto. 
Review and City approval of completed work shall be obtained monthly, or at such intervals as may be 
mutually agreed upon, during the course of this work. 

SECTION 3 
Duties of the City 

City shall make available to Consultant all data and information in the City's possession which 
City deems necessary to the preparation and execution of the work, and City shall actively aid and assist 
ConSUltant in obtaining such information from other agencies and individuals as necessary. 

The Director may authorize a staff person to serve as his or her representative for conferring with 
Consultant relative to Consultant's services. The work in progress hereunder shall be reviewed from time 
to time by City at the discretion of City or upon the request of Consultant. If the work is satisfactory, it will 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 2 

be approved. If the work is not satisfactory, City will inform Consultant of the changes or revisions 
necessary to secure approval. 

SECTION 4 
Fees and Payment 

Payment for the Consultant's services shall be made upon a schedule and within the limit, or 
limits shown, upon Appendix Two. Such payment shall be considered the full compensation for all 
personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant in carrying out the work. If Consultant 
is compensated on an hourly basis, Consultant shall track the number of hours Consultant, and each of 
Consultant's employees, has worked under this Agreement during each fiscal year (July 1 through June 
30) and Consultant shall immediately notify City when the number of hours worked during any fiscal year 
by any of Consultant's employees reaches 900 hours. In addition each invoice submitted by Consultant 
to City shall specify the number of hours to date Consultant, and each of Consultant's employees, has 
worked under this Agreement during the current fiscal year. 

SECTION 5 
Changes in Work 

City may order major changes in scope or character of the work, either decreasing or increaSing 
the scope of Consultant's services. No changes in the Scope of Work as described in Appendix One 
shall be made without the City's written approval. Any change requiring compensation in excess of the 
sum specified in Appendix Two shall be approved in advance in writing by the City. 

SECTION 6 
Time of Beginning and Schedule for Completion 

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will terminate on the 
earlier of: 

• The date Consultant completes the services required by this Agreement, as agreed by the City; or 

• The date either party terminates the Agreement as provided below. 

Work shall begin on or about December 1, 2014. 

In the event that major changes are ordered or Consultant is delayed in performance of its 
services by circumstances beyond its control, the City will grant Consultant a reasonable adjustment in 
the schedule for completion provided that to do so would not frustrate the City's objective for entering into 
this Agreement. Consultant must submit all claims for adjustments to City within thirty calendar days of 
the time of occurrence of circumstances necessitating the adjustment. 

SECTION 7 
Termination 

City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving ten days written 
notice to Consultant. Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to City should the. 
City fail to fulfill its duties as set forth in this Agreement. In the event of termination, City shall pay the 
Consultant for all services performed and accepted under this Agreement up to the date of termination. 

-118-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 2 

be approved. If the work is not satisfactory, City will inform Consultant of the changes or revisions 
necessary to secure approval. 

SECTION 4 
Fees and Payment 

Payment for the Consultant's services shall be made upon a schedule and within the limit, or 
limits shown, upon Appendix Two. Such payment shall be considered the full compensation for all 
personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant in carrying out the work. If Consultant 
is compensated on an hourly basis, Consultant shall track the number of hours Consultant, and each of 
Consultant's employees, has worked under this Agreement during each fiscal year (July 1 through June 
30) and Consultant shall immediately notify City when the number of hours worked during any fiscal year 
by any of Consultant's employees reaches 900 hours. In addition each invoice submitted by Consultant 
to City shall specify the number of hours to date Consultant, and each of Consultant's employees, has 
worked under this Agreement during the current fiscal year. 

SECTION 5 
Changes in Work 

City may order major changes in scope or character of the work, either decreasing or increaSing 
the scope of Consultant's services. No changes in the Scope of Work as described in Appendix One 
shall be made without the City's written approval. Any change requiring compensation in excess of the 
sum specified in Appendix Two shall be approved in advance in writing by the City. 

SECTION 6 
Time of Beginning and Schedule for Completion 

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will terminate on the 
earlier of: 

• The date Consultant completes the services required by this Agreement, as agreed by the City; or 

• The date either party terminates the Agreement as provided below. 

Work shall begin on or about December 1, 2014. 

In the event that major changes are ordered or Consultant is delayed in performance of its 
services by circumstances beyond its control, the City will grant Consultant a reasonable adjustment in 
the schedule for completion provided that to do so would not frustrate the City's objective for entering into 
this Agreement. Consultant must submit all claims for adjustments to City within thirty calendar days of 
the time of occurrence of circumstances necessitating the adjustment. 

SECTION 7 
Termination 

City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving ten days written 
notice to Consultant. Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to City should the. 
City fail to fulfill its duties as set forth in this Agreement. In the event of termination, City shall pay the 
Consultant for all services performed and accepted under this Agreement up to the date of termination. 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 3 

SECTION 8 
Insurance 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage 
(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 

2. Insurance Services office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1 (any auto). 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 

4. Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. 
Architects' and engineers' coverage shall include contractual liability. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance 

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability: 
(including operations, 
products and completed 
operations) 

2. Automobile Liability: 

3. Errors and Omissions 
Liability: 
Limits 

Other Insurance Provisions 

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in 
aggregate (including operations, for bodily injury, 
personal and property damage. 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

$1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 

1. The City of Capitola, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insured's as respects: liability ariSing out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Consultant or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Consultant. 

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees 

-119-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 3 

SECTION 8 
Insurance 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage 
(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 

2. Insurance Services office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1 (any auto). 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 

4. Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. 
Architects' and engineers' coverage shall include contractual liability. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance 

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability: 
(including operations, 
products and completed 
operations) 

2. Automobile Liability: 

3. Errors and Omissions 
Liability: 
Limits 

Other Insurance Provisions 

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in 
aggregate (including operations, for bodily injury, 
personal and property damage. 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

$1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 

1. The City of Capitola, its officers, offiCials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insured's as respects: liability ariSing out of work or operations perforrned 
by or on behalf of the Consultant or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the ConSUltant. 

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, offiCials, employees and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, offiCials, employees 



Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 4 

or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice 
by certified mail, returned receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the 
additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured 
would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current AM. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to the City. 

Verification of Coverage 

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting 
coverage by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the City or on other than the 
City's forms provided those endorsements conform to City requirements. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

SECTION 9 
Indemnification 

Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, or judgments, including 
associated costs of investigation and defense arising in any manner from consultant's negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct in the performance of this agreement. 

SECTION 10 
Civil Rights Compliance/Equal Opportunity Assurance 

Every supplier of materials and services and all consultants doing business with the City of 
Capitola shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, and shall be an equal opportunity employer as defined by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and including the California Fair Employment and Housing Act of 1980. As such, consultant shall not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sex with respect to hiring, application for employment, 
tenure or terms and conditions of employment. Consultant agrees to abide by all of the foregoing 
statutes and regulations. 

SECTION 11 
Legal Action/Attorneys' Fees 

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees in addition to any other relief to which 
he or she may be entitled. The laws of the State of California shall govern all matters relating to the 
validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged changes, the 
performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of Consultant and the City. 

-120-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 4 

or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice 
by certified mail, returned receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the 
additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured 
would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current AM. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to the City. 

Verification of Coverage 

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting 
coverage by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the City or on other than the 
City's forms provided those endorsements conform to City requirements. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

SECTION 9 
Indemnification 

Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, or judgments, including 
associated costs of investigation and defense arising in any manner from consultant's negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct in the performance of this agreement. 

SECTION 10 
Civil Rights Compliance/Equal Opportunity Assurance 

Every supplier of materials and services and all consultants doing business with the City of 
Capitola shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, and shall be an equal opportunity employer as defined by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and including the California Fair Employment and Housing Act of 1980. As such, consultant shall not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sex with respect to hiring, application for employment, 
tenure or terms and conditions of employment. Consultant agrees to abide by all of the foregoing 
statutes and regulations. 

SECTION 11 
Legal Action/Attorneys' Fees 

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees in addition to any other relief to which 
he or she may be entitled. The laws of the State of California shall govern all matters relating to the 
validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged changes, the 
performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of Consultant and the City. 



Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 5 

SECTION 12 
Assignment 

This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the express written consent of the 
Director after approval of the City Council. 

SECTION 13 
Amendments 

This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a written instrument which 
expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, which expressly states that its purpose is to 
amend this particular Agreement, and which is duly executed by the City and Consultant. Consultant 
acknowledges that no such amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the City 
Council, or an officer of the City when the City Council may from time to time empower an officer of the 
City to approve and authorize such amendments. No representative of the City is authorized to obligate 
the City to pay the cost or value of services beyond the scope of services set forth in Appendix Two. 
Such authority is retained solely by the City Council. Unless expressly authorized by the City Council, 
Consultant's compensation shall be limited to that set forth in Appendix Two. 

SECTION 14 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Project Manager. Director reserves the right to approve the project manager assigned by 
Consultant to said work. No change in assignment may occur without prior written approval of the City. 

2. Consultant Service. Consultant is employed to render professional services only and any 
payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional services. 

3. Licensure. Consultant warrants that he or she has complied with any and all applicable 
governmental licensing requirements. 

4. Other Agreements. This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter, and no other agreement, 
statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

5. City Property. Upon payment for the work performed, or portion thereof, all drawings, 
specifications, records, or other documents generated by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are, and 
shall remain, the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is executed or not. The 
Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible copies, of drawings and 
specifications for information and reference in connection with the City's use and/or occupancy of the 
project. The drawings, specifications, records, documents, and Consultant's other work product shall not 
be used by the Consultant on other projects, except by agreement in writing and with appropriate 
compensation to the City. 

6. Consultant's Records. Consultant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 
written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project. Such records and documentation 
shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period of this Agreement, and after the term of this 
Agreement for a period of three years from the date of the final City payment for Consultant's services. 

-121-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 5 

SECTION 12 
Assignment 

This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the express written consent of the 
Director after approval of the City Council. 

SECTION 13 
Amendments 

This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a written instrument which 
expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, which expressly states that its purpose is to 
amend this particular Agreement, and which is duly executed by the City and Consultant. Consultant 
acknowledges that no such amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the City 
Council, or an officer of the City when the City Council may from time to time empower an officer of the 
City to approve and authorize such amendments. No representative of the City is authorized to obligate 
the City to pay the cost or value of services beyond the scope of services set forth in Appendix Two. 
Such authority is retained solely by the City Council. Unless expressly authorized by the City Council, 
Consultant's compensation shall be limited to that set forth in Appendix Two. 

SECTION 14 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Project Manager. Director reserves the right to approve the project manager assigned by 
Consultant to said work. No change in assignment may occur without prior written approval of the City. 

2. Consultant Service. Consultant is employed to render professional services only and any 
payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional services. 

3. Licensure. Consultant warrants that he or she has complied with any and all applicable 
governmental licensing requirements. 

4. Other Agreements. This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter, and no other agreement, 
statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

5. City Property. Upon payment for the work performed, or portion thereof, all drawings, 
specifications, records, or other documents generated by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are, and 
shall remain, the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is executed or not. The 
Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible copies, of drawings and 
specifications for information and reference in connection with the City's use and/or occupancy of the 
project. The drawings, specifications, records, documents, and Consultant's other work product shall not 
be used by the Consultant on other projects, except by agreement in writing and with appropriate 
compensation to the City. 

6. Consultant's Records. Consultant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 
written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project. Such records and documentation 
shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period of this Agreement, and after the term of this 
Agreement for a period of three years from the date of the final City payment for Consultant's services. 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 6 

7. Independent Contractor. I n the performance of its work, it is expressly understood that 
Consultant, including Consultant's agents, servants, employees, and subcontractors, is an independent 
contractor solely responsible for its acts and omissions, and Consultant shall not be considered an 
employee of the City for any purpose. 

8. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant stipulates that corporately or individually, its firm, its 
employees and subcontractors have no financial interest in either the success or failure of any project 
which is, or may be, dependent on the results of the Consultant's work product prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

9. Notices. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party 
to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given and fully received when made in writing and 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective 
parties as follows: 

CITY 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

831-475-7300 

By:_-:---:--,-."..--,-,--,-,--=---,.,,.---__ _ 
Benjamin Goldstein, City Manager 

Oated: _____________ _ 

Approved as to Form: 

John G. Barisone, City Counsel 

CONSULTANT 
Kimley-Horn and Associates 
824 Bay Avenue, Suite #10 

Capitola, CA 95010 
831-316-1430 

By: 
~E~n~d~a~M7e~lv~in-,~P~.E~.---------------

Oated: ____________ _ 

-122-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 6 

7. Independent Contractor. I n the performance of its work, it is expressly understood that 
Consultant, including Consultant's agents, servants, employees, and subcontractors, is an independent 
contractor solely responsible for its acts and omissions, and Consultant shall not be considered an 
employee of the City for any purpose. 

8. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant stipulates that corporately or individually, its firm, its 
employees and subcontractors have no financial interest in either the success or failure of any project 
which is, or may be, dependent on the results of the Consultant's work product prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

9. Notices. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party 
to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given and fully received when made in writing and 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective 
parties as follows: 

CITY 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

831-475-7300 

BY:_::--:---:-:::-;-"'-;-~~-:7 __ _ 
Benjamin Goldstein, City Manager 

Oated: ____________ _ 

Approved as to Form: 

John G. Barisone, City Counsel 

CONSULTANT 
Kimley-Horn and Associates 
824 Bay Avenue, Suite #10 

Capitola, CA 95010 
831-316-1430 

By:----;:,...--;---:-;;--;-:---;::-;:::-_____ _ 
Enda Melvin, P.E. 

Oated: ____________ _ 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 7 

APPENDIX ONE 
Scope of Services 

The Consultant shall be responsible for preparing the City of Capitola's 2015-2023 Housing Element 
update and performing all necessary background studies, research, public outreach, and coordination 
with the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) as further detailed below: 

Task 1: Housing Element Assessment 

1.1 Document Review: The consultant shall review all applicable City, regional, and State 
documents pertaining to the Housing Element update, including but not limited to the General 
Plan, Municipal Code, building permit data, census data, and any other City housing policies, 
programs, and codes. The consultant shall be responsible for identifying and resolving any 
information gaps. 

1.2 Evaluate the Current Housing Element: The consultant shall review and evaluate the 
current Housing Element and its programs, including: 

• Evaluate the status, effectiveness, and appropriateness of the current housing policy 
programs and identify any barriers to implementation; 

• Compare identified goals from the adopted Housing Element to actual accomplishments 
during the plan period; 

• Evaluate the existing Housing Element in relation to current State housing laws and 
identify any omissions or deficiencies; 

• Prepare a Housing element assessment memo summarizing the results from this analysis 
and recommending specific changes to be incorporated into the Housing Element update; 

• Considering the findings of the Housing Element assessment memo, prepare a detailed 
outline for the Housing Element Update. . 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Housing Element assessment 

memo; 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Housing Element update 

outline. 

Task 2: Community Workshop 
The consultant shall conduct a community outreach meeting to solicit public comments on the 
Housing Element Update prior to initiating work on Housing Element components. The consultant 
shall prepare and deliver a powerpoint presentation, informational handouts, visual aids, and other 
materials to help participants understand the update process, issues to resolve (as identified during 
the current Housing Element Evaluation), and potential solutions. In collaboration with City staff, the 
consultant shall identify key stakeholders. City staff will schedule, coordinate, organize, and provide 
noticing, facilities, set-up, and general meeting facilitation for the workshop. 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to workshop. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

Task 3: Prepare Housing Element Components 
The consultant shall prepare the components of a draft Housing Element that addresses the 
requirements of State law, with an emphasis on any new statutory requirements since the last update 

-123-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 7 

APPENDIX ONE 
Scope of Services 

The Consultant shall be responsible for preparing the City of Capitola's 2015-2023 Housing Element 
update and performing all necessary background studies, research, public outreach, and coordination 
with the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) as further detailed below: 

Task 1: Housing Element Assessment 

1.1 Document Review: The consultant shall review all applicable City, regional, and State 
documents pertaining to the Housing Element update, including but not limited to the General 
Plan, Municipal Code, building permit data, census data, and any other City housing policies, 
programs, and codes. The consultant shall be responsible for identifying and resolving any 
information gaps. 

1.2 Evaluate the Current Housing Element: The consultant shall review and evaluate the 
current Housing Element and its programs, including: 

• Evaluate the status, effectiveness, and appropriateness of the current housing policy 
programs and identify any barriers to implementation; 

• Compare identified goals from the adopted Housing Element to actual accomplishments 
during the plan period; 

• Evaluate the existing Housing Element in relation to current State housing laws and 
identify any omissions or deficiencies; 

• Prepare a Housing element assessment memo summarizing the results from this analysis 
and recommending specific changes to be incorporated into the Housing Element update; 

• Considering the findings of the Housing Element assessment memo, prepare a detailed 
outline for the Housing Element Update. . 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Housing Element assessment 

memo; 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Housing Element update 

outline. 

Task 2: Community Workshop 
The consultant shall conduct a community outreach meeting to solicit public comments on the 
Housing Element Update prior to initiating work on Housing Element components. The consultant 
shall prepare and deliver a powerpoint presentation, informational handouts, visual aids, and other 
materials to help participants understand the update process, issues to resolve (as identified during 
the current Housing Element Evaluation), and potential solutions. I n collaboration with City staff, the 
consultant shall identify key stakeholders. City staff will schedule, coordinate, organize, and provide 
noticing, facilities, set-up, and general meeting facilitation for the workshop. 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to workshop. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

Task 3: Prepare Housing Element Components 
The consultant shall prepare the components of a draft Housing Element that addresses the 
requirements of State law, with an emphasis on any new statutory requirements since the last update 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 8 

of the Housing Element. In preparing the Housing Element update, the consultant shall proactively 
identify issues, immediately bring those issues to the attention of City staff, identify potential solutions, 
and coordinate with City staff as to the best course of action. The consultant will regularly 
communicate and meet with City staff as necessary to resolve issues. 

3.1 Needs Analysis: The consultant shall complete a housing assessment and needs analysis 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65583(a) and SB 375. The consultant shall obtain and 
analyze demographic, economic, and housing data for the City and develop a housing needs 
assessment using State-approved criteria. The assessment shall include, but is not limited to: 

• Population, demographic, and employment trends with the accompanying analysis of the 
existing and projected share of regional housing needs for all income levels; 

• Housing cost, affordability, housing characteristics, housing stock, and market conditions 
(including overcrowding and overpayment); 

• Housing stock characteristics, including at-risk units and vacant and underutilized land; 
• Potential for increased residential development under existing zoning requirements and 

General Plan policies; 
• Special housing needs (e.g. large families, seniors, homeless, etc.); 
• Verify with the California Housing Partnership Commission (CHPC) the number of units at 

risk of conversion to market rate. 

3.2 Housing Resources and Opportunities: The consultant shall identify housing resources, 
including programmatic, physical, and financial. In addition, the consultant shall prepare an 
"adequate sites analysis" showing the relationship between the City's RHNA and the dwelling 
unit capacity and availability of potential housing sites based on zoning and General Plan 
policies, requirements, and limitations. The analysis will evaluate and include: 

• Funding resources; 
• Regulatory incentives for housing; 
• Opportunities for energy conservation for residential development; 
• Existing assisted housing developments that are eligible to change designation from low

income housing during the Housing Element planning period; 
• An inventory of vacant and/or undeveloped land and its suitability for housing 

development. 

3.3 Housing Constraints: The consultant shall identify potential and actual governmental and 
non-governmental constraints to housing production. These may include, but are not limited 
to, land use controls (including code requirements, permitting fees, and permitting processes), 
physical/environmental constraints, infrastructure, financial, and market constraints. If 
governmental or non-governmental fees or processes have been changed, the consultant 
shall revise the Housing Element as necessary. Where constraints exist, the consultant shall 
identify and develop housing programs to remove the constraints where feasible. 

3.4 Housing Policy Program and Quantified Objectives: The consultant shall build upon 
existing Housing Element policy program and the needs and constraints analysis to formulate 
a housing policy program and implementation plan. This task includes preparation of a 
"Review of Past Performance" analysis and will build upon the analysis of the previous 
HoLising Element's policy program. The Plan must include appropriate housing goals, policies, 
and quantified objectives relative to the production, conservation, maintenance, preservation, 
and improvement of housing. The policy program will be specific, practical, and tailored to the 

-124-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 8 

of the Housing Element. In preparing the Housing Element update, the consultant shall proactively 
identify issues, immediately bring those issues to the attention of City staff, identify potential solutions, 
and coordinate with City staff as to the best course of action. The consultant will regularly 
com municate and meet with City staff as necessary to resolve issues. 

3.1 Needs Analysis: The consultant shall complete a housing assessment and needs analysis 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65583(a) and SB 375. The consultant shall obtain and 
analyze demograph'lc, econom'lc, and hous'mg data for the CHy and develop a hous'lng needs 
assessment using State-approved criteria. The assessment shall include, but is not limited to: 

• Population, demographic, and employment trends with the accompanying analysis of the 
existing and projected share of regional housing needs for all income levels; 

• Housing cost, affordability, housing characteristics, housing stock, and market conditions 
(including overcrowding and overpayment); 

• Housing stock characteristics, including at-risk units and vacant and underutilized land; 
• Potential for increased residential development under existing zoning requirements and 

General Plan policies; 
• Special housing needs (e.g. large families, seniors, homeless, etc.); 
• Verify with the California Housing Partnership Commission (CHPC) the number of units at 

risk of conversion to market rate. 

3.2 Housing Resources and Opportunities: The consultant shall identify housing resources, 
including programmatic, physical, and financial. In addition, the consultant shall prepare an 
"adequate sites analysis" showing the relationship between the City's RHNA and the dwelling 
unit capacity and availability of potential housing sites based on zoning and General Plan 
policies, requirements, and limitations. The analysis will evaluate and include: 

• Funding resources; 
• Regulatory incentives for housing; 
• Opportunities for energy conservation for residential development; 
• Existing assisted housing developments that are eligible to change designation from low

income housing during the Housing Element planning period; 
• An inventory of vacant and/or undeveloped land and its suitability for housing 

development. 

3.3 Housing Constraints: The consultant shall identify potential and actual governmental and 
non-governmental constraints to hous'lng production. These may 'Include, but are not i"lm'lted 
to, land use controls (including code requirements, permitting fees, and permitting processes), 
physical/environmental constraints, infrastructure, financial, and market constraints. If 
governmental or non-governmental fees or processes have been changed, the consultant 
shall revise the Housing Element as necessary. Where constraints exist, the consultant shall 
identify and develop housing programs to remove the constraints where feasible. 

3.4 Housing Policy Program and Quantified Objectives: The consultant shall build upon 
existing Housing Element policy program and the needs and constraints analysis to formulate 
a housing policy program and implementation plan. This task includes preparation of a 
"Review of Past Performance" analysis and will build upon the analysis of the previous 
HoLising Element's policy program. The Plan must include appropriate housing goals, policies, 
and quantified objectives relative to the production, conservation, maintenance, preservation, 
and improvement of housing. The policy program will be specific, practical, and tailored to the 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 9 

unique needs and challenges of the City. The policy program will also satisfy the requirements 
of Housing Element law, including: 

• Ensuring that housing opportunities are available for all persons in the City, including 
special needs populations; 

• Preserving and improving the existing stock of affordable housing, including assisted 
housing developments; 

• FaCilitating development of adequate housing to meet RHNA goals and needs of extremely 
low, very low, low, and moderate income households; 

• Removing any governmental constraints to housing production, improvement and/or 
maintenance, including barriers to persons with disabilities. 

3.5 Implementation Program: The' consultant shall propose an implementation program 
including monitoring procedures and milestones for assessment purposes. 

Task 4: HCD Coordination 
The consultant shall serve as the City's representative and liaison with HCD during the Housing 
Element Update process. The consultant will be HCD's primary contact and will communicate with 
HCD staff as necessary to answer questions about the document and resolve any issues that arise 
during the review process. The consultant shall be responsible for the following: 

• Pre-submittal consultation with HCD staff, as necessary, depending on any issues that arise 
during preparation of the Public Review Draft; 

• Submittal of Public Review Draft Housing Element to HCD; 
• Completion and submittal of Implementation Review worksheet, Completeness Checklist, and any 

other documentation needed for the HCD streamlined update process, if the City qualifies for 
streamlined review; 

• Submittal of additional information or data requested by HCD; 
• Meetings and conference calls with HCD staff to discuss issues or comments; 
• Preparation of written responses to HCD comments; 
• Preparation of changes to the Public Review Draft Housing Element required for HCD certification; 
• Consultation with HCD staff regarding changes requested by the Planning Commission or City 

Council; 
• Submission of the Final Housing Element to HCD for review and certification. 

Task 5: Public Review Draft Housing Element 
The consultant shall prepare a Screencheck Draft and Public Review Draft Housing Element. The 
consultant shall prepare the HCD transmittal letter and streamline checklist for the Public Review 
Draft. 

5.1 Screencheck Draft: The consultant shall prepare and submit a Screencheck Draft Housing 
Element to the City for review. The Screencheck Draft shall be a complete draft and include 
all required components of a Housing Element as described in Task 2, and will include all 
tables, maps, and graphics. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Screencheck Draft Housing 

Element for City review and comment. 
• Three hard copies of the Screen check Draft Housing Elemen!. 

-125-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 9 

unique needs and challenges of the City. The policy program will also satisfy the requirements 
of Housing Element law, including: 

• Ensuring that housing opportunities are available for all persons in the City, including 
special needs populations; 

• Preserving and improving the existing stock of affordable housing, including assisted 
housing developments; 

• FaCilitating development of adequate housing to meet RHNA goals and needs of extremely 
low, very low, low, and moderate income households; 

• Removing any governmental constraints to housing production, improvement and/or 
maintenance, including barriers to persons with disabilities. 

3.5 Implementation Program: The' consultant shall propose an implementation program 
including monitoring procedures and milestones for assessment purposes. 

Task 4: HCD Coordination 
The consultant shall serve as the City's representative and liaison with HCD during the Housing 
Element Update process. The consultant will be HCD's primary contact and will communicate with 
HCD staff as necessary to answer questions about the document and resolve any issues that arise 
during the review process. The consultant shall be responsible for the following: 

• Pre-submittal consultation with HCD staff, as necessary, depending on any issues that arise 
during preparation of the Public Review Draft; 

• Submittal of Public Review Draft Housing Element to HCD; 
• Completion and submittal of Implementation Review worksheet, Completeness Checklist, and any 

other documentation needed for the HCD streamlined update process, if the City qualifies for 
streamlined review; 

• Submittal of additional information or data requested by HCD; 
• Meetings and conference calls with HCD staff to discuss issues or comments; 
• Preparation of written responses to HCD comments; 
• Preparation of changes to the Public Review Draft Housing Element required for HCD certification; 
• Consultation with HCD staff regarding changes requested by the Planning Commission or City 

Council; 
• Submission of the Final Housing Element to HCD for review and certification. 

Task 5: Public Review Draft Housing Element 
The consultant shall prepare a Screencheck Draft and Public Review Draft Housing Element. The 
consultant shall prepare the HCD transmittal letter and streamline checklist for the Public Review 
Draft. 

5.1 Screencheck Draft: The consultant shall prepare and submit a Screencheck Draft Housing 
Element to the City for review. The Screencheck Draft shall be a complete draft and include 
all required components of a Housing Element as described in Task 2, and will include all 
tables, maps, and graphics. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Screencheck Draft Housing 

Element for City review and comment. 
• Three hard copies of the Screen check Draft Housing Element. 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 10 

5.2 Public Review Draft: The consultant shall prepare a Public Review Draft Housing Element 
based on City staff's comments on the Screencheck Draft. City staff will provide the 
consultant with comments on the Screencheck Draft within 14 calendar days for preparation of 
the Public Review Draft. The consultant shall resolve any issues and make requested 
revisions to the Screencheck Draft to the satisfaction of the City. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronlc copy (in native file format and . pdf format) of the Public Review Draft Housing 

Element. 
• 12 hard copies of the Public Review Draft Housing Element 

5.3 HCD Submittal: The consultant shall prepare the HCD Streamline Review Checklist and a 
transmittal letter to HCD detailing how the Housing Element meets State requirements. The 
consultant shall submit the checklist, transmittal letter, and Public Review Draft Housing 
Element to HCD for review and comment. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in natlve file format and . pdf format) of the transmittalletler and checklist 

to HCD. 

5.4: Community Workshop #2: The consultant shall facilitate a community workshop to discuss 
the Public Review Draft Housing Element. The consultant shall prepare and deliver a 
powerpoint presentation, informational handouts, visual aids, and other materials. In 
collaboration with Clty staff, the consultant shall identify key stakeholders. City staff will 
schedule, coordinate, organize, and provide noticing, facilities, set-up, and general meeting 
facilitation for the workshop. . 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to workshop. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

5.5: Responses to Comments: The consultant shall assist City staff with preparing responses to 
any public or agency comments (including HCD) on the Public Review Draft Housing Element. 

Task 6: Final Draft Housing Element 
The consultant shall revise the Public Review Draft Housing Element based on public and agency 
comments as dlrected by City staff. The Final Draft Housing Element shall be presented at public 
hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Final Draft Housing Element. 
• 16 hard copies of the Final Draft Housing Element 

Task 7: Public Hearings 
The Consultant shall attend two public hearings (one Planning Commission hearing and one City 
Council hearing). The consultant shall be responsible for preparing and delivering a powerpoint 
presentation and responding to questions at the public hearings. The consultant may also be required 
to attend additional public hearings as necessary. Please include a per-meeting cost item in the Cost 
Proposal. . 

-126-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 10 

5.2 Public Review Draft: The consultant shall prepare a Public Review Draft Housing Element 
based on City staff's comments on the Screencheck Draft. City staff will provide the 
consultant with comments on the Screencheck Draft within 14 calendar days for preparation of 
the Public Review Draft. The consultant shall resolve any issues and make requested 
revisions to the Screencheck Draft to the satisfaction of the City. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronlc copy (in native file format and . pdf format) of the Public Review Draft Housing 

Element. 
• 12 hard copies of the Public Review Draft Housing Element 

5.3 HCD Submittal: The consultant shall prepare the HCD Streamline Review Checklist and a 
transmittal letter to HCD detailing how the Housing Element meets State requirements. The 
consultant shall submit the checklist, transmittal letter, and Public Review Draft Housing 
Element to HCD for review and comment. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in natlve file format and . pdf format) of the transmittalletler and checklist 

to HCD. 

5.4: Community Workshop #2: The consultant shall facilitate a community workshop to discuss 
the Public Review Draft Housing Element. The consultant shall prepare and deliver a 
powerpoint presentation, informational handouts, visual aids, and other materials. In 
collaboration with City staff, the consultant shall identify key stakeholders. City staff will 
schedule, coordinate, organize, and provide noticing, facilities, set-up, and general meeting 
facilitation for the workshop. . 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to workshop. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

5.5: Responses to Comments: The consultant shall assist City staff with preparing responses to 
any public or agency comments (including HCD) on the Public Review Draft Housing Element. 

Task 6: Final Draft Housing Element 
The consultant shall revise the Public Review Draft Housing Element based on public and agency 
comments as directed by Clty staff. The Final Draft Housing Element shall be presented at public 
hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Final Draft Housing Element. 
• 16 hard copies of the Final Draft Housing Element 

Task 7: Public Hearings 
The Consultant shall attend two public hearings (one Planning Commission hearing and one City 
Council hearing). The consultant shall be responsible for preparing and delivering a powerpoint 
presentation and responding to questions at the public hearings. The consultant may also be required 
to attend additional public hearings as necessary. Please include a per-meeting cost item in the Cost 
Proposal. . 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Hom & Associates 
Page 11 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to public hearings. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

Task 8: Final Housing ElementlHCD Certification 
Based on City Council direction, the consultant shall make final revisions and prepare a Final Housing 
Element for HCD review and approval. The consultant shall transmit the Final Housing Element to 
HCD for certification. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Final Housing Element 
• 12 hard copies of the HCD-certified Final Housing Element 

Task 9: Additional Community Workshop (Optional) 
At the City's sole discretion, the Consultant shall conduct an additional community workshop. 

Deliverables 
The format for all text documents, tables, charts, and illustrations shall be 8-1/2 x 11" vertical. If 
oversize documents are necessary, they will be 11" x 17". Document covers for all related documents 
shall be coordinated so they appear as a "set". All hard copy administrative drafts, drafts, and final 
documents shall be two-sided, black ink, on white or light recycled stock paper. 

-127-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 11 

Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies (in .pdf format) of draft presentation, handouts, etc. at least two weeks prior 

to public hearings. Consultant shall revise materials as directed by City staff. 

Task 8: Final Housing ElementlHCD Certification 
Based on City Council direction, the consultant shall make final revisions and prepare a Final Housing 
Element for HCD review and approval. The consultant shall transmit the Final Housing Element to 
HCD for certification. 

Deliverables: 
• One electronic copy (in native file format and .pdf format) of the Final Housing Element 
• 12 hard copies of the HCD-certified Final Housing Element 

Task 9: Additional Community Workshop (Optional) 
At the City's sole discretion, the Consultant shall conduct an additional community workshop. 

Deliverables 
The format for all text documents, tables, charts, and illustrations shall be 8-1/2 x 11" vertical. If 
oversize documents are necessary, they will be 11" x 17". Document covers for all related documents 
shall be coordinated so they appear as a "set". All hard copy administrative drafts, drafts, and final 
documents shall be two-sided, black ink, on white or light recycled stock paper. 



Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 12 

APPENDIX TWO 
Fees and Payments 

For the services performed, City will pay consultant on a not-to-exceed, lump sum basis upon 
satisfactory completion of the services and delivery of work products. Payments will be issued 
monthly as charges accrue, the sum of consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses. 

Consultant hereby represents and warrants, based upon Consultant's independent 
determination of the time and labor, including overtime, which will be required to perform said 
services, that Consultant will provide all said services at a cost which will not exceed the maximum 
price set forth in this agreement for Consultant's services. Consultant hereby assumes the risk that 
Consultant will perform said services within this maximum price constraint and Consultant 
acknowledges that its inability to do so shall not excuse completion of the services and shall not 
provide a basis for additional compensation. 

Salary expenses include the actual direct pay of personnel assigned to the project plus payroll 
taxes, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacation, and other fringe benefits. The percentage of 
compensation attributable to salary expenses includes all of Consultant's indirect overhead costs and 
fees. For purposes of this Agreement, Consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses will be 
compensated in accordance with the terms set forth therein. Non-salary expenses include travel, 
meals and lodging while traveling, materials other than normal office supplies, reproduction and 
printing costs, equipment rental, computer services, service of subconsultants or subcontractors, and 
other identifiable job expenses. The use of Consultant's vehicles for travel shall be paid at the current 
Internal Revenue Service published mileage rate. 

Salary payment for personnel time will be made at the rates set forth in the attached fee 
schedule for all time charged to the project. Normal payroll rates are for 40 hours per week. 
Consultant shall not charge the City for personnel overtime salary at rates higher than those set forth 
in the attached fee schedule without the City's prior written authorization. 

I n no event shall the total fee charged for the scope of work set forth in Appendix One exceed 
the total budget of $41 ,036 (Forty-One Thousand Thirty-Six Dollars and Zero Cents), without specific, 
written advance authorization from the City. The total budget includes $34,645 to prepare the 
Housing Element update and associated tasks contained in the scope of work, plus a $2,660 optional 
task to conduct an additional community workshop, plus $3,731 (10%) contingency. The optional task 
and contingency allowances may only be expended if authorized by the City. 

Payments shall be made monthly by the City, based on itemized invoices from the Consultant 
which list actual costs and expenses. Such payments shall be for the invoice amount. The monthly 
statements shall contain the following affidavit signed by a principal of the Consultant's firm: 

"I hereby certify as principal of the firm of , that the charge of $ as 
summarized above and shown in detail on the attachments is fair and reasonable, is in accordance with 
the terms of the Agreement dated _, _, and has not been previously paid." 

-128-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24,2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 12 

APPENDIX TWO 
Fees and Payments 

For the services performed, City will pay consultant on a not-to-exceed, lump sum basis upon 
satisfactory completion of the services and delivery of work products. Payments will be issued 
monthly as charges accrue, the sum of consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses. 

Consultant hereby represents and warrants, based upon Consultant's independent 
determination of the time and labor, including overtime, which will be required to perform said 
services, that Consultant will provide all said services at a cost which will not exceed the maximum 
price set forth in this agreement for Consultant's services. Consultant hereby assumes the risk that 
Consultant will perform said services within this maximum price constraint and Consultant 
acknowledges that its inability to do so shall not excuse completion of the services and shall not 
provide a basis for additional compensation. 

Salary expenses include the actual direct pay of personnel assigned to the project plus payroll 
taxes, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacation, and other fringe benefits. The percentage of 
compensation attributable to salary expenses includes all of Consultant's indirect overhead costs and 
fees. For purposes of this Agreement, Consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses will be 
compensated in accordance with the terms set forth therein. Non-salary expenses include travel, 
meals and lodging while traveling, materials other than normal office supplies, reproduction and 
printing costs, equipment rental, computer services, service of subconsultants or subcontractors, and 
other identifiable job expenses. The use of Consultant's vehicles for travel shall be paid at the current 
Internal Revenue Service published mileage rate. 

Salary payment for personnel time will be made at the rates set forth in the attached fee 
schedule for all time charged to the project. Normal payroll rates are for 40 hours per week. 
Consultant shall not charge the City for personnel overtime salary at rates higher than those set forth 
in the attached fee schedule without the City's prior written authorization. 

I n no event shall the total fee charged for the scope of work set forth in Appendix One exceed 
the total budget of $41 ,036 (Forty-One Thousand Thirty-Six Dollars and Zero Cents), without specific, 
written advance authorization from the City. The total budget includes $34,645 to prepare the 
Housing Element update and associated tasks contained in the scope of work, plus a $2,660 optional 
task to conduct an additional community workshop, plus $3,731 (10%) contingency. The optional task 
and contingency allowances may only be expended if authorized by the City. 

Payments shall be made monthly by the City, based on itemized invoices from the Consultant 
which list actual costs and expenses. Such payments shall be for the invoice amount. The monthly 
statements shall contain the following affidavit signed by a principal of the Consultant's firm: 

"I hereby certify as principal of the firm of , that the charge of $ as 
summarized above and shown in detail on the attachments is fair and reasonable, is in accordance with 
the terms of the Agreement dated _, _, and has not been previously paid." 



Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 13 

APPENDIX THREE 
Consultant Fee Schedule 

City of C"pimla Housing Bement 
PROFESSImIAl FEES FOIl I'lAIIIlIIiIG cmISUlTil'IG SERVICE 

1,1 Pmi'ctKllll<~Re- 2 '1 e, 

12 :2 4 

2. t 2 4 4 

2 4 4 

iJ I 
12 HouSing """_ .... ~~_ 4 
l$ Hou'i"ll Cor""- 2 

~4 Ho."I1Q!'l!Ii<\' Pf<lII!""'''' !11! ... , ... ~ • 4 
2 4 

6 '12m 
s $1.1111) 

e 2 $2.6110 

e 2 

'1</ 
III 
ill 

a 

4 

• 

!) All ItI01k1."JlJl be :psri~d OIl a "Not11:l ~ ~ i!V;i);;. mh'dt .. ~ b hf":.Eld prize~n >OO11J_1fun4 ~~s oMfu sJtaff authorized to 
~ate an aflreement Any ~s wI! be ~ ~'~~afm'fM? Qy. 

'2) The total budfJet 'mdut\M aU mlSCEfun~(lOS!lS fuf~.~~, postal.. deiv~q\ ~~ N~als;;M: inciden!:aI~. 
1(m1le:y-Homwljrecei~pa:~effuerm,af~~~rn&~fMb:r~t.wrrJ<as_~Edby'_aient TheKimleV-Homproject~ 
~ 11'«= ~ to ~acijus;bmetnts ro:st.r *CG':icr1s;;a~ wlffivitkE<Wle!1"aiTh ~ .. 
3)The ~ fiee:v.l[t be valldb~'ooysirnm~(lf~ ~ p;~l£ta~~_~ ~ KjlW.~ fBSefil6S ~ ~ to ~te: 
~s 00;;&1 on )'et'rly-!'a? ~ ~m fii!bnJlifYd.ed~mr:~o 

4)hry soope re1IisitlflS (If 'tn.t ~~ata1 ~ Sha'$i:m~-iilpm~.8'i~~f$ City '£'!atf. 

Kimley)) Horn 

-129-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
Professional Services Agreement November 24, 2014 
2015-2023 Housing Element Update 
Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Page 13 

APPENDIX THREE 
Consultant Fee Schedule 

City (if C"pimla Housing Bement 
PROFESSIOtlAl FEES FOIl I'lAIIIlIIiIG cmISUlTil'IG SERVICE 

12 :2 

2.1 COOM~W~Jx;.p#1 2 4 

2 • 4 

l j 11I>.d> Mol",. 
12 HouSing """'_ .... ~~_ 4 
l$ Hou';"11 Cor_ 2 
~4 Ho."11Q p"ji<\' Pf<lII!""'''' .:11! ... , ... ~ 4 

S 

e 2 

• ~. 

.1</ 
III 
ill 

!) All ItI01k1."JlJl m :psri~d OIl a "Not11:l ~ ~ i!V;i);;. mh'dt. ~ b fum: f":.Eld prize~n >OOt1J_1fun4 ~~s oMfu sJtaff authorized to 
~ate an aflreement Any~ssho!! be~ ~'~~afm'fM? Qy. 

'2)1be total budfjet'mdutIM aU mlSCEfun~(lOS!lSb~"~~. postY.,deiveq\ ~~N~als;;M: inciden!:m~. 
1(m1le:y-Homwljrecei~pa:~~m,af~~~rn&~fMb:rrnmihfyt.wrrJ<as_ernmEdby'_aien,t TheKimleV-Homproject~ 
~ 1t«=~ to~acijus;bmetnts ro:st.r .CG':~s;;a~lfMlffiv;tfle<WIe!1"3Th~ .. 

3)The ~ fiee:v.l[t be vaildb ~'ooysirnm~(lf~ ~ p;~l£ta~~_~ ~ KjlW.~ fBSefil6S ~ ~ to ~te: 
~s 00;;&1 on yet'rly-!'a? ~ ~ m fii!bnJiifJd -eru'Al ~mr :~o 

4)hry soope revisitlflS {If 'tn.t .mtf~ata1 ~ Sha'$i:m~-iilp:m~.8'i~~-r§ City '£'!atf. 

KimleYl»Horn 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-130-


	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor Sam Storey
	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Proclamation honoring Museum Board Member Thomas "Tom" McGranahan.
	[Presentation.pdf]

	B. Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation.
	[Presentation.pdf]

	C. Proclamation supporting the Mayors' challenge to end Veteran homelessness.
	[Presentation.pdf]


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. 8.J.
	[8.J. Additional Material.pdf]


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Consider approving the October 23, 2014, Regular City Council Meeting Minutes.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	B. Receive the November 6, 2014, Regular Planning Commission Action Minutes.
	[Minutes.pdf]

	C. Consider an Ordinance amending Chapter 17.10 of the City Municipal Code (Green Building Ordinance) [2nd Reading].
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	D. Receive and approve the 2015 Meeting Schedules for City Council/Successor Agency, Planning Commission/Architectural and Site Review Committee.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	E. Consider a Resolution approving the 2015 City Hall Closure Schedule.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	F. Consider a request from the Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce to offer free three-hour parking in Village Parking Zone A(1), November 26, 2014, through December 25, 2014; and consider a Resolution establishing temporary three-hour parking in Village Parking Zone A (1) November 26, 2014, through December 25, 2014.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	G. Consider a request from the Heritage Lane Home Owner’s Association for the Mayor to send a letter to the USPS to request a Zip Code change from 95062 to 95010.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]

	H. Consider a liability claim of Water Rock Construction in the amount of $674,260.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	I. Consider approving a Notice of Completion for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	J. Consider a Resolution authorizing the execution of State Standard Agreement for Housing Related Parks Program Grant for Rispin Park.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Consider approving the Wharf Road Mural Extension Public Art Project; and authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement with the artist, John Ton, for an amount not to exceed $12,000.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	B. Receive Report regarding options to relocate the Capitola Mall Transit Center.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]

	C. Consider a professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare the City’s 2015-2023 Housing Element Update, in an amount not to exceed $41,036.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]


	10. ADJOURNMENT


